MEETING NOTICE

A SPECIAL MEETING
Of The
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER BOARD
Will Be Held On
TUESDAY, June 30, 2015
At
5:15 pam.
In The
COMMISSION CHAMBERS

(2" floor, Governmental Center)
400 Boardman Avenue

Traverse City Light and Power will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services,
such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at
the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon notice to Traverse City
Light and Power. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact
the Light and Power Department by writing or calling the following,

Traverse City Light and Power

1131 Hastings Street

Stephanie Tvardek
Administrative Assistant
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686
(231) 932-4543

Traverse City, MI 49686

(231) 922-4940

Posting Date: 06-26-15

4:00 p.m.




Light and Power Board 2 June 30, 2015
Special Meeting

AGENDA
Pledge of Allegiance
1. Roll Call

2. Consent Calendar

The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items
fogether to be dealf with by one Board motion without discussion. Any member of the Board,
staff or the public may ask that any item on the consent calendar be removed therefrom and
placed elsewhere on the agenda for full discussion. Such requests will be automatically
respected. If an item is not removed from the consent calendar, the action noted in parentheses
on the agenda is approved by a single Board action adopting the consent calendar.

a. Consideration of approving minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 9, 2015. (Approval
recommended) (p. 4)

b. Consideration of approving an amended Freedom of Information Act Policy. (Approval
recommended) (Myers-Beman) (p. 8)

C. Consideration of authorizing a Settlement Agreement between TCL&P and GRP
Engineering, Inc. (Approval recommended) (Arends) (p. 29)

d. Appointment of Michigan Public Power Agency Commissioner and Alternates.
(Approval recommended) (Arends) (p. 42)

e. Consideration of the withdrawal of Municipal Competitive Trust Funds. (Approval
recommended) (Arends) (p. 43)

f. Consideration of authorizing a purchase order to Sauber Manufacturing in the amount of
$60,906 for a reel turret trailer. (Approval recommended) (Solak) (p. 45)

g Consideration of authorizing a purchase order to Power Line Supply in the amount of
$43,200 for underground cable for the Pine Street — Overhead to Underground
Conversion, Hickory Hills and Cowell Family Cancer Center Projects. (Approval
recommended) (Arends) (p. 47)

h. Consideration of authorizing a purchase order to RESCO in the amount of $32,725 for
transformers for the Hickory Hills Project. (Approval recommended) (Arends) (p. 49)

i. Consideration of authorizing three purchase orders to Power Line Supply in the combined
amount of $119,674.21 for electrical material for the Pine Street — Overhead to
Underground Conversion, Hickory Hills and Cowell Family Cancer Center Projects.
(Approval recommended) (Arends) (p. 50)

J- Consideration of authorizing two purchase orders to All-Phase Electric in the combined
amount of $43,360.71 for conduit material for the Pine Street — Overhead to
Underground Conversion Project. (Approval recommended) (Arends) (p. 55)




Light and Power Board 3 June 30, 2015
Special Meeting

k. Consideration of authorizing a purchase order to Irby Utilities in the amount of $87,000
for switchgear equipment for the Pine Street — Overhead to Underground Conversion
Project. (Approval recommended) (Arends) (p. 59)

Items Removed from the Consent Calendar

a.

b.

3. Unfinished Business

None.

4. New Business

a. Consideration of authorizing funding for the Traverse City Public Pier Project.
(Arends/City Planning) (p. 61)

b. - Consideration of authorizing a purchase order to the City of Traverse City in the amount
of $226,040.25 for the Pine Street Pedestrian Way. (Arends) (p. 65)

c. Consideration of authorizing a Tree Trimming Services Agreement for tree trimming for
the West Side Transmission Line Project, (Arends) (p. 76)

d. Consideration of a revised organizational chart and job description for the Light & Power
Department. (Schroeder) (p. 79)

e. Consideration of approving an updated wage scale. (Schroeder) (p. 84)

f. 2015 Biennial filing for the Renewable Energy Plan. (Wheaton) (p. 120)
Public comment will be accepted on the 2015 Renewable Energy Biennial filing.

5, Appointments

None.

6. Reports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.
b. From Staff.

1. Community Solar Phase II update. (Wheaton) (p. 131)

C. From Board.

7. Public Comment

/st



TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes of Regular Meeting
Held at 5:15 p.m., Commission Chambers, Governmental Center

Tuesday, June 9, 2015
Board Members -
Present: Barbara Budros, Jim Carruthers, Pat McGuire, Jeff Palisin, Bob Spence,
Jan Geht, John Taylor
Ex Officio Member -
Present: Penny Hill, Acting City Manager
Others: Tim Arends, W. Peter Doren, Scof art, Karla Myers-Beman, Kelli

Schroeder, Stephanie Tvardek, J¢s ,.:fheaton, Blake Wilson
The meeting was called to order at 5:15 p.m. by
5:18 p.m. Bob Spence joined the meeting.

Item 2 on the Agenda being Consent Calendar

Moved by McGuire, seconded by Budri
Consent Calendar portion of the Agend:

he followitig:actions, as recommended on the

roved:

a. Minutes of the

b. Recetve and
22,2015.

Jtems Remove_fl,:from the Consent Calendar
None.

Ttem 3 on the Agenda b finished Business

a. Pine Street — Overhead to Underground Conversion Project expanded re-authorization.
The following individuals addressed the Board:

Tim Arends, Executive Director
Blake Wilson, System Engineer

Moved by Spence, seconded by Palisin, that the Light & Power Board re-authorizes the Pine
Street — Overhead to Underground Conversion Project as presented.

Roll Call:
Yes — Budros, Carruthers, Palisin, Spence, Taylor
No — McGuire, Geht




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 2 June 9, 2015

CARRIED.

‘Ttem 4 on the Agenda being New Business

Bob Spence announced he would recuse himself from all discussions and the vote regarding item
4a.

a. Consideration of awarding a bid for Hastings Street Storage Facility.
The following individuals addressed the Board:

Tim Arends, Executive Director
Bob Sommerville, AAIL Inc,

the Chairman and Secretary to
,_J;E,Gland Traverse Constr uctlon

Moved by Palisin, seconded by Budros, that the Board au
execute a construction agreement in the amount of $4
for the Hastings Street Storage Facility; subject to.
Director and to form by General Counsel. Furthe
work orders for services and administer amend
interests of the Light and Power Department.

ive Director to execute
at are in the best

Moved by Budros,'s¢eo “Geht, that the Board authorizes the Chairman and Secretary to
execute a construct _agteemel the amount of $257,744.75 with Severance Electric for the
Union Street conduit installation? subject to approval as to substance by the Executive Director
and to form by General Counsel. Further, authorizing the Executive Director to execute work
orders for services and administer amendments and change orders that are in the best interests of

the Light and Power Department.

CARRIED unanimously.

c. Consideration of authorizing a construction agreement for Pine Street — Overhead to
Underground Conversion Project electrical cable and equipment installation.

The following individuals addressed the Board:

Tim Arends, Executive Director



TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 3 June 9, 2015

Moved by Spence, seconded by Budros, that the Board authorizes the Chairman and Secretary to
execute a construction agreement in the amount of $499,479.34 with Kent Power for the Pine
Street — Overhead to Underground Conversion -- electrical cable and equipment installation;
subject to approval as to substance by the Executive Director and to form by General Counsel.
Further, authorizing the Executive Director to execute work orders for services and administer
amendments and change orders that are in the best interests of the Light and Power Department.

CARRIED unanimously.
d. Consideration of authorizing a purchase order to Power Line Supply in the amount of

$407,928 for underground cable for the Pine Street — Overhead to Underground
Conversion Project.

The following individuals addressed the Board:
Tim Arends, Executive Director

xecutive Director to issue
 less for underground

Moved by Budros, seconded by Palisin, that the Be d authorizes'th
a purchase order to Power Line Supply in the amotint of $407,928 mio;
cable for the Pine Street — Overhead to Unde d Conversion Proj

CARRIED unanimously.

e, m Arends, Executive Director.

Item S on the Agenda b¢ ppointments
None.

Item 6 on the Agenda being Reports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.
None.
b. From Staff.

1. Tim Arends announced the RP3 designation awarded to TCL&P.




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 4 June 9, 2015

2. Jessica Wheaton discussed the details of adding solar to the Hastings Street Storage
Facility.

The following individuals addressed the Board:

Tim Arends, Executive Director
Karla Myers-Beman, Controller

3. Karla Myers-Beman presented the third quarter financials.
The following individuals addressed the Board:
Tim Arends, Executive Director

c. From Board.

1. John Taylor announced the cancelation of the: un 015 Regular Meeting, the
scheduling of a Special Meeting on J 30, 2015, and Al ancelation of the July 14,
2015 Regular Meeting.

Item 7 on the Agenda being Public Comment

No one from the public commented

There being no objection, Chairman Taylor d o

m Arends, Secretary

/st LIGHT AND POWER BOARD



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board )
From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller Y-
Date: June 22, 2015
Subject: FOIA Policy Modifications

The Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”), Public Act 442 of 1976 was amended with an effective date
of July 1, 2015. The key changes to the Act are as follows:

1.

2

&

The utility is required to publish on TCL&P’s website a summary of FOIA practices in
responding to FOIA requests (a copy is attached).

If records requested are available on TCL&P’s website, staff is required to advise the requestor of
that and confirm if they still wish to have a copy produced for them.

Uniform copying costs across the State of Michigan.

Allows the utility to charge a deposit of 100% of the estimated processing fee before beginning to
process the requested, when the utility had not been paid for prior FOIA fees within the past year
by the requestor, provided certain circumstances exist (see Section 7 of the proposed policy
changes for full details).

The utility’s fees under FOIA must be reduced by 5% each day the utility exceeds he allowable
time for response, with a maximum of 50% fee reduction, if the written request includes the
words, characters or abbreviations for “Freedom of Information”, “Information”, “FOIA”,
“Copy” or a recognizable misspelling.

Allow for appeal of charges under FOIA,

Increase penalties to the utility for willful and intentional violation or for acting in bad faith.
Allows FOIA requestors to require that the public body provide records on non-paper physical
media, by e-mail, or otherwise electronically provided, so long as the public body has the
technological capability necessary to provide records on the particular media stipulated by the
requestor.

Allows the utility to charge for contractual services required to perform separation and deletion of
exempt information from nonexempt information if the public body does not employ a person
capable of such activity. The utility cannot charge more than six times the state minimum hourly
wage rate for such contractual services.

TCL&P used the City’s amended FOIA Policy and related documents that were prepared by the City
Clerk and City Attorney’s as a base to modify the utility’s to have consistency between the two entities.

The related documents include Affidavit of Indigence, FOIA Request Form, FOIA Request
Itemized Cost Worksheet, FOIA Request Letter and Public Summary of FOIA Procedures and
Guidelines. All of the documents are included for your review.

The changes provided align the TCL&P’s policy to be in compliance with Michigan’s law which goes
into effect July 1.




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

Staff recommends approval of the amended FOIA Policy and adoption of the related documents.
This item is on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed non-controversial. ~ Approval of this ifem
on the Consent Calendar means you agree with staff’s recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the
agenda for full discussion, If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the
following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY y SECONDED BY , THAT THE

BOARD ADOPTS THE AMMENDED FOIA POLICY AND RELATED DOCUMENTS.




Light and Power Department
City of Traverse City, MI
Adopted: February 14, 2006
Amended: April 8, 2008

| Amended:

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT POLICY

1. Purpose:
It is the intent of this Policy to provide clear-cut procedures for citizens and TCL&P officials in

disclosing public records. The intent of this Policy is to comply in all respects with the
Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), but in the unintended event of a conflict, the FOIA shall
control and be deemed part of this Policy.

2. FOIA Coordinator:

I The Exeentive DireeterController is hereby designated and delegated duties as the FOIA
Coordinator. With the exception of Section 4 of this Policy, all TCL&P officials and
employees receiving document disclosure inquiries shall immediately transfer them to the
FOIA Coordinator. All written requests for public records shall be forwarded to the FOIA
Coordinator to keep for no less than once year.

3. Procedure:
With the exception of information requested described in Section 4 of this Policy, all responses
to requests for information under the FOIA shall be forwarded to and reviewed by the FOIA
Coordinator prior to granting the request according to the following procedure:

| A. Requests to review and for copies of records under the FOIA shall be in writing.
B. The request shall be date-stamped by the receiving department.
C. The request shall immediately be forwarded to the FOIA Coordinator.

D. The FOIA Coordinator shall distribute the request to all applicable departments, who
shall return the information to the FOIA Coordinator.

E. The FOIA Coordinator shall prepare the response, with review by the TCL&P Attorney
when appropriate.

4. Routine Information:
Requests for information from departments shall be handled by that department if the request

is notsubmittedas-a FOIAreguest-verbal and/or therequester-withdraws theirrequestasa-
EOIA reguestandwritten FOIA requests of a more routine nature:

(1) The request is for records that are routinely provided to the public by that department;

| (2) The records are readily available; or on TCL&P’s website:

(3) The records are-net-exempt-from-disclosure-under-the FOIA do not fall into a category

exempt from disclosure under the FOIA;

(4) The records exist at the time of the request;

Page 1 of 5

10




(5) The record is sufficiently described; and
(6) No other department would be likely to have the requested records::

€6)(7) If a verbal request for information is available on the website. the employee shall
inform the requestor about the website’s address.

The fees described in Section 7 of this Policy shall be applicable to such requests.

5. Rules to Prevent Excessive and Unreasonable Interference with TCL &P Functions:

A. Records may be personally examined only during normal business hours, i.e. between
8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on TCL&P business days_and such requests shall be routed
through the FOIA Coordinator.

B. TCL&P staff shall be given ample opportunity to review files for exempt or privileged
records prior to allowing public examination.

C. TCL&P staff may defer a request to personally examine records within the time limits
indicated in the FOIA.

6. Rules to Protect Records:
To protect records from loss, unauthorized alteration, mutilation or destruction, each
department may adopt rules to protect the records of his or her department. The following are
general records protection rules for all departments:

A. Records are to remain in the departmental vicinity while being reviewed.
B. Records are not to be altered in any manner.
C. Pens are not allowed in review rooms.

D. Copies of records are to be made by TCL&P staff or its designee, with the exception of

microfilmed records-inthe-Seeretary'soffice. At the discretion of the TCL&P
secretary, microfilmed records in-the-Seeretary s-effice-may be made by the person
reviewing the records.

E. For documentation purposes, staff shall keep copies of or a list of documents released
or copied.

F. Records may not be removed from binders.
G. Records within files shall be kept intact and in order.

H. Copies of TCL&P computer records shall be made on computer discs or flash drives
provided by TCL&P.

1. Copies of tapes shall be made on tapes provided by the requesting person.

J. Records te-bethat are copiesd may be identified by tape flags or “Post-It” notes, by
separate written description, or by inserting loose paper between pages.

Page 2 of 5



K. Copyrighted material shall not be photocopied.

7. Tees:

A. Copies.
25 cents-perpagetoreachotthefirstiive pages
10 cents per page for 8 %4” x 11” and 8 '2” x 14” each-page-after-the firstfive pages

Actual costs for all other sized pages

1/ 3% " 29 2

Non-Paper Physical Media such as €Ecomputer discs, flash drives or other digital media
devices — eurrent FEL&P-eostActual Cost

If duplication requires outside services, actual cost

Double-sided copies shall be made when possible and is cost saving

€.B. Mailing. Actual mailing and; packaging-and-transpertation costs shall be

charged at the reasonable economical and justified rate.

B-C. Labor. The labor cost_to locate, separate exempt from non-exempt. and
copyldupllcate records mcludmg -340% ovelhead 0f the lowest pald employee capable

sepa;aﬂng—exemp%&em—ﬂen—e*eﬂ&pt—ma%eﬂalperfonnmg such work, regardless 1f that
employee is available.

E—Contracted labor. The contractual labor costs when calculating charges under this
shall not exceed an amount equal to 6 times the state minimum hourly wage rate.

E. Costs set by Law. Documents which are required to be prepared and sold for a specific
fee under Michigan or federal law shall be sold in accordance with the applicable
Michigan or federal law.

F. Detailed Standard Form. The Detail Standard Form is designated as the Itemized Cost
Worksheet document, which provides a detailed itemization that lists and explains the

allowable charges.

The FOIA Coordinator is authorized to establish such other fees and charges in situations not
covered by this Policy. Atthe timearequestismade;TCL&P may require a deposit from the
person requesting the public record or series of public records if the fees will exceed $50.00_as
determined by a good faith estimate prepared by the FOIA Coordinator. The deposit shall not
exceed one-half of the total fee for the request. Detailed itemization of the estimated cost and

an estimate of the timeframe needed to provide the records shall be provided to the requestor.

TCL&P may require a deposit of 100% of the estimated processing fee before beginning to
search for a public record if the following conditions exist:
o the final fee for a prior written request is not more than 105% of the estimated fee;

Page 3 of S5

12




the public records made available contained the information sought in the prior written

request and remain in TCL&P’s possession:
the public records were made available to the individual. subject to payment, within the

time frame estimated by TCL&P to provide the records;
90 days have passed since the FOIA Coordinator notified the individual in writing that

the public records were available for pickup or mailing;
the individual is unable to show proof of prior payment to TCL&P: and

the FOIA Coordinator has calculated a detailed itemization that is the basis for the

current written request’s increased estimated fee deposit;

The FOIA Coordinator shall not require an increased estimated fee deposit if any of the following

apply:

the person making the request is able to show proof of prior payment in full to TCL&P;

L ]
e TCL&P is subseqguently paid in full for the applicable prior written request; or
e 365 days have passed since the person made the request for which full payment was note

remitted to TCL&P.

A copy of a public record shall be furnished without charge for the first $20.00 of the fee for such

request if the individual requesting such information submits an affidavit demonstrating that the

individual is receiving public assistance. or it not receiving public assistance, is unable to pay the

cost because of indigence consistent with the provisions of FOIA.

8.

Appeals:
A requesting person, in lieu of seeking a Court determination regarding a final determination

of the FOIA Coordinator, may file a written appeal to the FCE&P-Beard Executive Director.
Pursuant to the FOIA, the FEE&PBoardExecutive Director-shallreceive-the-appeal-atitsnext
fegula{—meehnguandﬁf—p%ﬁble— shall respond to the written appeal not more than 10 business
days after receiving the written appeal. The FEE&P-BeardExecutive Director shall take one
of the following actions in response to the filing of an appeal:

A. Reverse the denial.

B.

C.

Issue a written notice to the appellant affirming the denial.

Reverse the denial in part and issue a written notice to the appellant affirming the denial
in part.

If necessary due to unusual circumstances, issue a notice extending for not more than
10 business days the period during which the TCL&P BeardExecutive Director may
respond to the appeal.

. Exemptions:

The FOIA Coordinator is authorized to exempt from disclosure a public record pursuant to
Section 13 of the FOIA, including records of information specifically described and exempted
from disclosure by others statures, including without limitation, Section 33a of the Michigan
Energy Employment Act of 1976, subject to appeal to the FEL&P BeardExecutive Director
and the Beard-Executive Director is also authorized to so exempt a public record.

Page 4 of §

13



Timothy J. Arends
Executive Director and Secretary
Traverse City Light and Power Board

Page 5 of 5

14




TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

FOTA - Affidavit of Indigence

TCL&P charges a reasonable processing fee to fulfill FOIA Requests. Pursuant to Section 4 of
the Freedom of Information Act, this affidavit is submitted in support of a request that TCL&P
waive the first $20.00 of the processing fee for the request dated for records
relating to

L , do affirm or swear under penalty of perjury that I
am not submitting this request in conjunction with outside parties in exchange for payment or
other remuneration, and:

1. I am receiving public assistance, or

2.1 am unable to pay the cost for the following reasons:

Signature of Requester

STATE OF MICHIGAN )

COUNTY OF GRAND TRAVERSE ;SS'

Acknowledged by beforemeonthe _ day
of , 20

Signature

Printed name

Notary public, State of Michigan, County of
My commission expires

Return to FOIA Coordinator
Karla Myers-Beman, CPA
Controller/FOIA Coordinator
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686
231.932.4560
kmyersbe@tclp.org

15




TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

Michigan Freedom of Information Act- Request for Public Records

Name of Requester:

Street Address:
City: State: Zip Code:
Contact Phone Number: Contact Email;

1. Please state the name of the public record you are requesting and include the following:

Names Referred to in Record:

Date of Record:

Location of Event:

Other information helpful to identify the record:

2. Method of Access Desired: Pickup Mail Examine

3. Mailing Address (If different than above):

Email

City: State: Zip Code:

Signature of Requester:

Date:

Return to FOIA Coordinator
Karla Myers-Beman, CPA
Controller/FOIA Coordinator
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686
231.932.4560
kmyersbe@tclp.org

16




TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

EST., 1912

[1 Cost Estimate
0 Bill

Freedom of Information Act Request Itemized Cost Worksheet

Date:

Prepared for Requester:

Date Request Received:

The following costs are being charged in compliance with Section 4 of the Michigan
Freedom of Information Act, MCL 15.234, according to TCL&P’s FOIA Policies and
Guidelines.

1. Labor Cost for Copying / Duplication

This is the cost of labor directly associated with duplication of publication, including making paper copies,
making digital copies, or transferring digital public records to be given to the requester on non-paper
physical media or through the Internet or other electronic means as stipulated by the requester.

This shall not be more than the hourly wage of TCL&P’s lowest-paid employee capable of necessary
duplication or publication in this particular instance, regardless of whether that person is available or who
actually performs the labor.

These costs will be estimated and charged in 15 -minute time increments as set by the FOIA
Coordinator (for example: 15-minutes or more); all partial ime increments must be rounded down. If the
number of minutes is less than one increment, there is no charge.

Hourly Wage : $
Fringe Benefit Multiplier: _40%
Total Hourly Wage with Fringe Benefit Cost: $ 14=§

(Charge per increment)

[] Overtime rate charged as stipulated by Requester (overtime is not used to calculate the fringe benefit
cost)

Total Time

Number of 15
minute
increments
(rounded down)

Increment x
Charge per
increment =
1.
Labor Cost

$

2. Labor Cost to Locate:

This is the cost of labor directly associated with the necessary searching for, locating, and examining public
records in conjunction with receiving and fulfilling a granted written request. This fee is being charged
bhecause failure to do so will result in unreasonably high costs to TCL&P that are excessive and
beyond the normal or usual amount for those services compared to TCL&P’s usual FOIA requests.

TCL&P will not charge more than the hourly wage of its lowest-paid employee capable of searching for,
locating, and examining the public records in this particular instance, regardless of whether that person is
available or who actually performs the labor.

These costs will be estimated and charged in 15 -minute time increments as set by the FOIA
Coordinator (for example: 15-minutes or more); all partial time increments must be rounded down. /f the
number of minutes is less than one increment, there is no charge.

Hourly Wage : $
Fringe Benefit Multiplier: _40%
Total Hourly Wage with Fringe Benefit Cost: $ 14=%

(Charge per increment)

[ Overtime rate charged as stipulated by Requester (overtime is not used to calculate the fringe benefit
cost)

Total Time

Number of 15
minute
increments
(rounded down)

Increment x
Charge per
increment =
2,
Labor Cost

$

Page 1 of 5

17




3. Employee Labor Cost for Separating Exempt from Non-Exempt (Redacting):

TCL&P will not charge for labor directly assoctated with redaction if it knows or has reason to know that it
previcusly redacted the record in question and still has the redacted version in its possession.

This fee is being charged hecause failure to do so will result in unreasonably high costs to TCL&P
that are excessive and beyond the normal or usual amount for those services compared to TCL&P’s
usual FOIA requests.

This is the cost of labor of a TCL&P employes, including necessary review, directly associated with
separaling and deleting exempt from nonexempt information. This shall not be more than the hourly wage of
TCL&P’s lowest-paid employee capable of separating and deleting exempt fram nonexempt information in
this particular instance, regardless of whether that person is available or who actually performs the labor.

These costs will be estimated and charged in 15 -minute time increments as set by the FOIA Tola! Time
Coordinator {for example: 15-minutes or more); all partial time increments must be rounded down. f the
nurnber of minutes is fess than one increment, there is no charge.
Hourly Wage:$_____ Increment x
Fringe Benefit Multiplier: _40% Number of 15 Charge per
Total Hourly Wage with Fringe Benefit Cost: § 14=§ (Charge per increment) minute increment =
. _ o _ increments 3.
(] Overtime rate charged as stipulated by Requester (overtime is not used fo calcufate the fringe benefit {rounded down) | Labor Cost
cosf)
$
4. Copying / Duplication Cost:
Copying costs may be charged if a copy of a public record is requested, or for the necessary copying of a
record for inspection {for example, to aliow for blacking out exempf informalion, to protect ofd or delicate
original records, or because the original record is a digital fie or database not avaitable for public
inspection). a. Number of
o . _ . ) . . ‘ _ 8% " x 11" and
TCL&P will utilize the most economical means available for making copies of public records, including using | g1 " x 14
double-sided prinling, if cost saving and available. Sized Sheets:
If the public body has included the website address for a record in its writlen response to the requester, and
the requester thereafter stipulates that the public record be provided to him or her in a paper format or non-
paper physical digital media, TCL&P will provide the public records in the specified format and will charge b.Number of | {a. x $.10)
copying costs to provide those copies. Other Paper +
Size Shests: fb.x%_ )
No mora than the actual cost of a sheet of paper or 10 cents per sheet for Letter {8 % x 11 -inch) and +
Legal (8 %2 x 14-inch) sized paper, single and double -stded. c.
No more than the actual cost of a sheet of paper for other paper sizes as delailed in TCL&P's FOIA Policy. | ¢. Cost of Non- ) 4,
. Paper Digital Total
Actual and most reasonably economical cost of non-paper physical digital media; Media: Copy Cost
- CD/DVD - Actual Cost as determined by TCL&P $
- Flash Drive - Actual Cost as determined by TCL&P $ $ $

Page 2 of 5

18



5. Mailing Cost:

TCL&P vill charge the actual cost of mailing, if any, for sending records in a reasonably economical and
justifiable manner. Delivery confirmation is not required. TCL&P may charge for the least expensive form of

postal delivery confirmation. TCL&P cannot charge more for expedited shipping or insurance unless Cost of
specifically requested by the requester. Envelope
and/or
Actual Cost of Envelope or Packaging: $ Package
+
Actual Cost of Postage: $ per stamp Cost of all
$ per pound Postage
Actual Cost (least expensive) Postal Delivery Confirmation: $ 5,
Total
Expedited Shipping or Insurance as Requested: $ Mailing Cost
[ Requester has requested expedited shipping or insurance $
6. Contractual Labor Cost for Separating Exempt from Non-Exempt (Redacting):
TCL&P will not charge for labor directly associated with redaclion if it knows or has reason to know that it
previously redacted the record in question and still has the redacted version in its possession.
This fee is being charged because failure to do s0 will result in unreasonably high costs to TCL&P
that are excessive and beyond the normal or usual amount for those services compared to TCL&P's
usual FOIA requests.
This Is the cost of contraclual labor for necessary review, directly associated with separating and deleting
exempt from nonexempt information. This shall not be more than six imes the state minimum hourly wage.
These cosls will be estimated and charged in 15 -minute time increments as set by the FOIA
Coordinator (for example: 15-minutes or more}; all partial ime increments must be rounded down. /f the
number of minutes is fess than one increment, there is no charge. Total Time
Hourly Amount : §
Total Hourly Amount: $ [4=% {Charge per increment)
Increment x
Number of 15 Charge per
minute increment =
increments 6.
(rounded down) | Contractual
Labor Cost
Subtotal Fees Before Waivers, Discounts or Deposits:
1. Labor Cost for Copying: $
: ; . 2. Labor Gost to Locate: $
Estimated Time Frame to Provide Records:
3. Labor Cost to Redact: $
{days or date) 4, CopyingfDuplication Cost: $
5. Mail Cost: $
The time frame estimate is nonbinding upon 6. Contractual Labor Cost: $
TCL&P, but the township is providing the
estimate In good faith, Providing an estimated Subtotal: $

time frame does not relieve TCL&P from
any of the other requirements of this act.

Page 3 of 5

19




Discount: Indigence

A public record search must be made and a copy of a public record must be furnished without charge for
the first $20.00 of the fee for each request by an individual who is entitled {o information under this act and
who:

1)  Submits an affidavit stating that the individual is indigent and receiving specific public assistance, OR
2) I not receiving public assistance, staling facts showing inability to pay the cost because of indigence.

if a requester is ineligible for the discount, the public body shall inform the requester specifically of the

reason for ineligibility in the public body's written response. An individual is ineligible for this fee reduction if

ANY of the following apply:

1) The individual has previously received discounted capies of public records from the same public body
twice during that cafendar year, OR

2} The individual requests the information in conjunction with outside parties who are offering or providing
payment or other remuneration to the individual to make the request. A public body may require a
statement by the requester in the affidavit that the request is not being made in conjunction with outside
parties in exchange for payment or other remuneration.

[ Eligible for Indigence Discount

Subtotal Fees
After Discount
{subtract $20):

Discount: Nonprofit Organization

A public record search must be made and a copy of a public record must be furnished without charge for
the first $20.00 of the fee for sach request by a nonprofit organization formally designated by ihe stale to
carry out activities under subtitle C of the federal Developmentat Disabiliies Assistance and Bill of Rights
Act of 2000 and the federal Protection and Advocacy for Individuals with Mental lliness Act, if the request
meets ALL of the following requirements:
1) Is made directly on behalf of the organization or its clients.
2) s made for areason wholly consistent with the mission and provisions of those laws

under section 931 of the Michigan Mental Health Code, 1974 PA 258, MCL 330.1931.
3) Is accompanied by decumentation of its designation by the state, if requested by TCL&P.

[ Etigible for Nonprofit Discount

Subtotal Fees
After Discount
{subtract $20):

Deposit: Good Faith

TCL&P will require a good-faith deposit before providing the public records to the requester if the entire fee
estimate or charge authorized under this section exceeds $50.00, based on a good-faith calculation of
the total fee. The deposit will tofal 50% of estimated fee,

Date Paid:

Deposit
Amount
Reguired:

$

Denosit: Increased Deposit Due fo Previous FOIA Fees Not Paid In Full

After TCL&P has granted and fulfilled a written request from an individual under this act, if TCL&P has not

been paid in full the total amount of fees for the copies of public records that TCL&P made available to the

individual as a result of that viritlen request, TCL&P may require an increased estimated fee deposit of

up to 100% of the estimated fes before it beqins a full public record search for any subseqguent

written request from that individual if ALL of the following apply:

1) The final fee for the prior writlen request was not mere than 105% of the estimated fee.

2) The public records made available contained the information being scught in the prior vritten request
and are still in TCL&P's possession.

3) The public records were made available to the individua!, subject to paymaent, within the best effort
gstimated time frame given for the previous request.

4)  Ninety (90) days have passed since TCL&P notified the individual in writing that the public records were
available for pickup or mailing.

5) The individual is unable to show proof of prior payment to TCL&P.

6) TCL&P calculates a detailed itemization, as required under MCL 15.234, that is the basis for the current
written request's increased estimated fee deposit.

Percent
Deposit
Reguired:

%

Page 4 of 5

20



TCL&P can no longer require an increased estimated fee deposit from an individual if ANY of the
following apply:

1) The individual is able to show proof of prior payment in full to TCL&P, OR Deposit
2) TCL&P is subsequently paid in full for the applicable prior written request, OR Date Paid: Required:
3} Three hundred sixty-five (365) days have passed since the individual made the written request for
which full payment was not remitted to the ulility. $
Late Response Labor Costs Reduction rotal Lab
otal Labor
if TCL&P does not respond to a written request in a timely manner as required under MCL 15.235(2), Costs
TCL&P must do the following: Number of
. . Days Over L
a)} Reduce the charges for lahor costs otherwise permitted by 5% for each day TCL&P Required .
exceeds the time permitted for a response to the request, with a maximum 50% reduction, | paadiine: Minus )
if EITHER of the following applies: Reduction
1} The late response was willful and intentional, OR
2} The written request included language that conveyed a request for information within the m s
first 250 words of the body of a letter, facsimile, electronic mail, or electronic mail
allachment, or specifically included the words, characters, or abbreviations for "freedom | = Total Percent | - Reduced
of information,” "information,” "FOIA,” "copy”, or a recognizable misspelling of such, or Reduction: Total Labor
appropriate legal code reference for this act, on the front of an envelope, or in the Costs
subject line of an electronic mal, telter, or facsimile cover page. $
The Public Summary of TCL&P's FOIA Procedures and Guidelines is available free of charge from:
Website: www.tclp.org Email: kmyershe@tclp.org
Phone: 231-932-4560
Address: 1131 Hastings Street, Traverse City, Mi 49686 gg:::me
Request Will Be Processed, | Date Paid: Due:
But Balance Must Be Paid Before Copies May Be Picked Up, Delivered or Mailed $

Revised: 5/14/2015

Karla Myers-Beman, CPA
Controller/FOIA Coordinator
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686
231.932.4560
kmyersbe@tclp.org

Page 5 of 5

21



Date

Name

Title
Company
Address
CityStateZip

Re: FOIA Request

Dear <<Name>>

This letter is in response to your FOIA request dated <<Date>>, and received on <<Date>>, [
am responding to your letter as the TCL&P FOIA Coordinator.

You have requested copies of any and all information for <<FOIA request>>.

Due to the nature and extent of your request, we require an additional ten (10) business days to
respond as allowed under the Freedom of Information Act. We will respond to your request by
<<Date>>,

Sincerely,

Karla Myers-Beman, CPA
TCL&P Controllei/FOIA Coordinator

22




TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

Public Summary of FOIA Procedures and Guidelines

It is the public policy of Traverse City Light & Power (TCL&P) that all persons
(except those persons incarcerated in state or local correctional facilities)
are entitled to full and complete information regarding the affairs of government and
the official acts of those who represent them as public officials and public employees.

Karla Myers-Beman, CPA
Controller/FOIA Coordinator
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686
231.932.4560
kmyersbe@telpl.org

Consistent with the Michigan Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), Public Act 442 of 1976, as amended,
the following is the Written Public Summary of TCL&P’s FOIA Procedures and Guidelines relevant to
the general public.

This is only a summary of TCL&P’s FOIA Procedures and Guidelines. For more details and information,
copies of TCL&P’s FOIA Procedures and Guidelines are available at no charge at the utility’s office and
on the utility’s website: www.tclp.org.

1. How do I submit a FOIA request to TCL&P?
e A request must sufficiently describe a public record to enable TCL&P to find it.

o Please include the words “FOIA” or “FOIA Request” in the request to assist TCL&P in providing
a prompt response. TCL&P has a FOIA Request form for your convenience on their website at

www.telp.org.

e Requests to inspect or obtain copies of public records prepared, owned, used, possessed or
retained by TCL&P may be submitted on TCL&P’s FOIA Request form or in any other form of
writing (letter, fax, email, etc.).

o No specific form to submit a written request is required. However, a FOIA Request Form
and other FOIA-related forms are available for your use and convenience on TCL&P’s

website at www.tclp.org.

e  Written requests may be delivered to TCL&P Office in person or by mail to:
Karla Myers-Beman, Controller, TCL&P, 1131 Hastings Street, Traverse City, MI, 49686

e Requests may be faxed to: (231) 922-4368. To ensure a prompt response, faxed requests should
contain the term “FOIA” or “FOIA Request” on the first/cover page.

Public Summary of FOIA Procedures and Guidelines
Page 1 of 6

23




Requests may be emailed to: kimyersbe@tclp.org. To ensure a prompt response, email requests
should contain the term “FOIA” or “FOIA Request” in the subject line.

A verbal request is not considered a FOIA request.

2. What kind of response can I expect to my request?

Within 5 business days after receiving a FOTA request TCL&P will issue a response. If a request
is received by fax or email, the request is deemed to have been received on the following business
day. TCL&P will respond to your request in one of the following ways:

Grant the request;

Issue a written notice denying the request;

Grant the request in part and issue a written notice denying in part the request;
Issue a notice indicating that due to the nature of the request TCL&P needs an
additional 10 business days to respond; or

Issue a written notice indicating that the requested public record is available at no
charge on TCL&P’s website

O C O ¢

o}

For instances where the requested public record is available on TCL&P’s website,
TCL&P will so indicate.

If the request is granted, or granted in part, TCL&P will ask that payment be made for the
allowable fees associated with responding to the request before the public record is made
available.

If the cost of processing the request is expected to exceed $50, or if you have not paid for a
previously granted request, TCL&P will require a deposit before processing the request.

3. What are TCL&P’s deposit requirements?

If TCL&P has made a good faith calculation that the total fee for processing the request will
exceed $50.00, TCL&P may require that you provide a deposit in the amount of 50% of the total
estimated fee. When TCL&P requests the deposit, it will provide you a non-binding best efforts
estimate of how long it will take to process the request after you have paid your deposit.

If TCL&P receives a request from a person who has not paid TCL&P for copies of public records
made in fulfillment of a previously granted written request, TCL&P may require a deposit of
100% of the estimated processing fee before it begins to search for the public record for any
subsequent written request when all of the following conditions exist:

o The final fee for the prior written request is not more than 105% of the estimated
fee;

o The public records made available contained the information sought in the prior
written request and remain in TCL&P's possession;

o The public records were made available to the individual, subject to payment,
within the best effort time frame estimated by TCL&P to provide the records;

o Ninety (90) days have passed since TCL&P notified the individual in writing that
the public records were available for pickup or mailing;

Public Summary of FOIA Procedures and Guidelines
Page 2 of 6

24




o The individual is unable to show proof of prior payment to TCL&P, and
o TCL&P has calculated an estimated detailed itemization that is the basis for the
current written request’s increased fee deposit.

o TCL&P will not require the 100% estimated fee deposit if any of the following apply:

o The person making the request is able to show proof of prior payment in full to TCL&P;

o TCL&P is subsequently paid in full for all applicable prior written requests; or

o Three hundred sixty five (365) days have passed since the person made the request for
which full payment was not remitted to TCL&P.

4, How does TCL&P calculate FOIA processing fees?

The Michigan FOIA statute permits TCL&P to charge for the following costs associated with processing
a request:

* Labor costs associated with copying or duplication, which includes making paper copies,
making digital copies, or transferring digital public records to non-paper physical media
or through the Internet.

» Labor costs associated with searching for, locating and examining a requested public
record.

¢ Labor costs associated with a review of a record to separate and delete information
exempt from disclosure.

» If contractual labor is required in the review of a record to separate and delete
information exempt from disclosure.

¢ The cost of copying or duplication, not including labor, of paper copies of public records.
This may include the cost for copies of records already on TCL&P’s website if you ask
for TCL&P to make copies.

¢ The cost of flash drives or other digital or similar media when the requester asks for
records in non-paper physical media. This may include the cost for copies of records
already on TCL&P’s website if you ask for TCL&P to make copies.
o The cost to mail or send a public record to a requester.
Labor Costs
o All labor costs will be estimated and charged in 15-minute increments, with all partial

time increments rounded down. If the time involved is less than 15 minutes, there will be
no charge.

Public Summary of FOIA Procedures and Guidelines

Page 3 of 6 |
25




e Labor costs will be charged at the hourly wage of the lowest-paid TCL&P employee
capable of doing the work in the specific fee category, regardless of who actually
performs work and will also include a 40% charge to cover or partially cover the cost of
fringe benefits.

e Overtime wages will not be included in labor costs unless agreed to by the requester;
overtime costs will not be used to calculate the fringe benefit cost.

o Contractual labor will be no more than six times the state minimum wage.
A labor cost will not be charged for the search, examination, review and the deletion and separation of
exempt from nonexempt information unless failure to charge a fee would result in uareasonably high
costs to TCL&P. Costs are unreasonably high when they are excessive and beyond the normal or usual
amount for those services compared to TCL&P’s usual FOIA requests, because of the nature of the
request in the particular instance. TCL&P must specifically identify the nature of the unreasonably high
costs in writing,.

Copying and Duplication

TCL&P must use the most economical method for making copies of public records, including
using double-sided printing, if cost-saving and available.

Non-paper Copies on Physical Media
¢ The cost for records provided on non-paper physical media, such as flash drives or other
digital media devices, the actual and most reasonably economical cost for the non-paper
media will be charged.

Paper Copies

s Paper copies of public records made on standard letter (8 Y2 x 11) or legal (8 Y2 x 14)
sized paper will not exceed $.10 per sheet of paper.

»  Copies for non-standard sized sheets will paper will reflect the actual cost of
reproduction.

Mailing Costs
o The cost to mail public records will use a reasonably economical and justified means.
¢ TCL&P may charge for the least expensive form of postal delivery confirmation.

s TCL&P may charge for expedited shipping or insurance if such method of delivery has been
requested by the requester.

Waiver of [Fees

The cost of the search for and copying of a public record may be waived or reduced if in the sole
judgment of the FOIA Coordinator a waiver or reduced fee is in the public interest because it can be

Public Summary of FOIA Procedures and Guidelines
Page 4 of 6

20




considered as primarily benefitting the general public. TCL&P may identify specific records or types of
records it deems should be made available for no charge or at a reduced cost.

5. How do I qualify for an indigence discount on the fee?
TCL&P will discount the first $20.00 of fees for a request if you submit an affidavit stating that you are:
¢ Indigent and receiving specific public assistance; or

o Ifnot receiving public assistance, stating facts demonstrating an inability to pay because
of indigence.

You are not eligible to receive the $20.00 discount if you:

o Have previously received discounted copies of public records from TCL&P twice during
the calendar year; or

e Are requesting information on behalf of other persons who are offering or providing
payment to you to make the request.

An affidavit is a sworn statement. For your convenience, TCL&P has provided an Affidavit of Indigence
for the waiver of FOIA fees on its website: www.tclp.org.

6. May a nonprofit organization receive a discount on the fee?

A nonprofit organization advocating for developmentally disabled or mentally ill individuals that is
formally designated by the state to carry out activities under subtitle C of the federal developmental
disabilities assistance and bill of rights act of 2000, Public Law 106-402, and the protection and advocacy
for individuals with mental illness act, Public Law 99-319, may receive a $20.00 discount if the request
meets all of the following requirements in the Act:

o Is made directly on behalf of the organization or its clients.

o Is made for a reason wholly consistent with the mission and provisions of those laws
under section 931 of the mental health code, 1974 PA 258, MCL 330.1931.

o Is accompanied by documentation of its designation by the state, if requested by the
public body.

7. How may I challenge the denial of a public record or fee?
Appeal of a Denial of a Public Record

If you believe that all or a portion of a public record has not been disclosed or has been improperly
exempted from disclosure, you may appeal the FOIA Coordinator’s decision by filing a written appeal of
the denial with the Executive Director at the following: TCL&P, 1131 Hastings Street, Traverse City,
MI 49686 or tarends@tclp.org.

The appeal must be in writing, specifically state the word “appeal,” and identify the reason or reasons you
are seeking a reversal of the denial.

Within 10 business days of receiving the appeal the Executive Director will respond in writing by:

Public Summary of FOIA Procedures and Guidelines
Page 5 of 6

21




o Reversing the disclosure denial;
o Upholding the disclosure denial; or
o Reverse the disclosure denial in part and uphold the disclosure denial in part.

Whether or not you submitted an appeal of a denial to the Executive Director, you may file a civil action
in Circuit Court.

Appeal of a FOIA Processing Fee

If you believe that the fee charged by TCL&P to process your FOIA request exceeds the amount
permitted by state law, you may appeal the FOIA Coordinator’s decision by filing a written appeal for a
fee reduction to the office of Executive Director or Circuit Court.

The appeal must specifically state the word “appeal” and identify how the required fee exceeds the
amount permitted.

Within 10 business days after receiving the appeal, the Executive Director will respond in writing by:

o Waiving the fee;

o Reducing the fee and issue a written determination indicating the specific basis that supports the
remaining fee;

o Upholding the fee and issue a written determination indicating the specific basis that supports the
required fee; or

o Issuing a notice detailing the reason or reasons for extending for not more than 10 business days
the period during which TCL&P Board will respond to the written appeal.

After receiving notice of the Executive Director’s determination of the processing fee appeal, you may
commence a civil action in Circuit Court for a fee reduction,

Public Summary of FOIA Procedures and Guidelines

Page 6 of 6
28




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board

From: Tim Arends, Executive Director

Date: June 22, 2015

Subject: South Substation Transforiner Settlement Agreement

At the April 28, 2015 Board meeting, the Board declared the South Substation transformers surplus,
authorized their sale and approved the purchase of the new transformers. Included in the packet is the
agreement with the City of Wyandotte for the purchase of the current transformers installed at the South
Substation. Even though the Board authorized the sale, staff wanted to bring the Procurement Agreement
similar to a bill of sale, before the Board for review before execution. The agreement with SPX for the
purchase of the new transformers to replace the current transformers located at South Substation was
executed on May 29, 2015,

Other concerns brought up by the Board during that board meeting included 1) that the sale later would
not be challenged as a failure to mitigate damages and 2) the cost of installation of the new transformers
would not be at the expense of the utility.

The risk of the sale later being challenged as a failure to mitigate damages has been made moot by the
Settlement Agreement.  Additionally, a letter is expected from GRP Engineering Inc.’s (GRP) fegal
counsel confirming the costs relating to the installation of the transformers will be borne by GRP. It is
staff’s expectation this letter will be provided to you by the Board meeting.

The last step of this process is to authorize the Settlement Agreement, which is included for your review.
This Agreement has been reviewed and approved by General Counsel.

Staff recommends the Board authorize the execution of the Seftlement Agreement between TCL&P and
GRP. This item is on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed non-controversial.  Approval of this
item on the Consent Calendar means you agree with staff’s recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes o discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the
agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the
following motion would be appropriate:

(MOTION ON FOLLOWING PAGE)

29



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

MOVED BY » SECONDED BY » THAT

THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO EXECUTE THE
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH GRP ENGINEERING, INC. SUBJECT TO
APPROVAL AS TO SUBSTANCE BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND
APPROVAL AS TO FORM BY GENERAL COUNSEL. CONTINGENT ON THE
RECEIPT OF A WRITTEN DOCUMENT STATING GRP WILL ASSUME

LIABILITY FOR INSTALLATION COSTS OF THE NEW TRANSFORMERS

SUBJECT TO LEGAL REVIEW,

30




PROCUREMUENT AGREEMENT FFOR
TWO 1216/20 MVA TRANSFORMERS

This Agreement is made thc‘(}![ "_’Elay of Mﬂ ‘/ - L2015, by and between
the Traverse City Light and Power Department, whose address is 1131 Hastings
Strect, Traverse City, ME 39686 (Seller). and Wyandotte Municipal Services. whose
address is 3200 Biddle Avenue, #1200, Wyandotte. M1 48192 (Buyer), and the part
agree as follows:

1. Goods. Setler shall sell and Buyer shalt buy the following (hereinafter

referred o as e Goods™):

Two 12716720 MVA Transformers with 1L'VCs and one spare high
voltage bushing and one spare low vollage bushing,

Purchase Price. The purchase price of the Goods is $601,969. The
purchase price shatl be paid to Seller at or before delivery of the Goods by cashier’s
ek or immedintely available lunds.

1, Place and Tine of Delivery. The Goods shall be delivered “as is/whereis”
at Sellur’s south substation, 2760 LaFranicr Road. Traverse Cily. M1 49686. and at such
time as Buver divects Seller to bepin the work to disconnect the Goods. Buyer shall give
Seher at beast 1 days advance notice of the intended Lime of the defivery. Delivery shall
net by Jader than September 30, 2015,

4. Diseonneetion and Transportalion. Buyer shall be responsible for the

disconnection. disassembly and transportation of the Goods. External disconnection shall
he doue by Seller al Buyer's direction.
3. Risk of Loss, Until delivery Seller assumes risk of loss of the Goods,

Atter Jefivery Buyer assumies risk ol {oss of the Goods.

31



{. Warrantly. Seller warrants only that it has good title to the Goods and thal
they have never carried any electrical distribution load. Seller shall assist Buyer in the
ansfer of an extended warranty by AR Public Power, the original manufacturer of the

{100,

7. Contract Dacuments. Tn addition 1o this Procurement Agreement, the

contract documents consist of the Request for Bid, Specifications, and Insurance
Requirements submitted by Scller, and Bid Form submitted by Buyer. These dociments
are altached hereto and incorporated here by reference. In the event there is any conflict
or inconsistency between the terms of the incorporated documents and this Procurement
Agreement. the terms of this Procurement Agreement shall control.

8. Entre Agreement. This Agreement containg all agrecments between the
partics. There are no other representations. warranties, promises, agresments or
understandings., oval, written or implicd, among the parties, except to the extent reference
is made thereto in this Agreement.

9. l'oree Majeure. If cither party is prevented or delayed in the performance
of any of its obligations under this Agreement due 10 Force Majeure (defined below). that
party will provide written notice to the other party specifying the nature and expected
duration of the Force Majeure. ‘The performance ol the party invoking Force Majeuirs
with respect (o any obligation will be excused for the period of delay or inability o
perform due to Foree Majeure. 1t the total ol'any period of delay or inability 1o perform
dhie to Force Majeure asserted by either party during the Term cquals or exceeds 30
consceutive days, tie other party will have the right, at its option, to either terminate this

Agreement by written notice or 1o continue to excuse the first party’s performance for the

32



period ol any delay or inability to perform due to Foree Majeure. As used in this
Agrcerment, “Foree Majeure”™ shall mean any act of God, fire, casualty, flood, war. strike,
lockout, Libor trouble. court order or any other circumsiances beyond the reasonable
canirol ol the party asserting it that prevents or delays the purtormance ol any of ity
obligations under this Agreement.

i, Interpretation. This Agreement shall be governed by the Liws of the State

of Michiiean. both as to interpretation and performance. This Agreement was drafted at the
Jomnt direction of the parties. The pronouns and relative words used herein are written in
e penter and singular.

1. Ny Joint Venture or Partnership. This Agreement does not and ks not

inlended W ereate a joint venture o partnership between the parties. The rights and

obligations of the parties are entirely contained within this Agrcement.

Y No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement confers no rights or
remedios onany third-party, other than the parties o this Agreement, and their respective
stceessors and permitted assipns.

13, Dispule Resolution. Ifany party has a dispute with another regarding the
rmeaning. operition or enforcement of any provision of this Agreement, the disputing
nitics aeree to meet and confer 1o negotiate a resolution of the dispute. They turther
apree as lolfows:

(a} Mediation. 1 they are unable Lo resolve the dispute themselves, and

betore Tormally instituting any other dispute mechanism. they shall utilize

the services of a mutually acceptable neuteal mediator, who mects the

33




quatifications of MCR 2,411, to bring them together in at fcast one
mediation session,

th Venue. Al meetings. hearings and actions to resolve the dispute shall be
in Grand Traverse County.

() Natice. Written notice of a dispute shall be given to the other parties not
later than 990 days alter the occurrence giving rise to the dispute becomes
known or should have become known. Negotiations and mediation ahall
oceur within 60 days after such notice.

1. Counterpurts. This Agreement may be signed in one or more counterparts.
amd cach comnterpart will be considered an original Agrecment. All of the counterparts
will be considered one document and becorwe a binding agreement when one or more
counterparts have been signed by each of the partics and delivered to the other.

IN WETNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the

dute and vear first above written.

John Tavior. Chairman
Traverse City Light and Power Board Wyandotte Municipal Services

Fimothy b Arends, Bxeculive Director
Eraverse ity Baght antl Power Board

34



SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE

This Settlement Agreement and Release (the “Agrecment™) is made by and between
the Traverse City Light & Power Department (“TCL&P”) and GRP Engineering, Inc,
(“GRP”). These entities may hereafter be referred fo as a “Party”, individually, or the
“Parties”, collectively.

RECITALS

1. TCL&P was created in 1979 as a municipal electric utility and has the required
legal autonomy to enter into its own contracts and sue or be sued as an independent entity.

2. GRP is a Michigan corporation in the business of providing professional
engineering and design services.

3. On or about May 2, 2012, GRP entered into an Agreement for Professional
Services with TCL&P (the “Contract™). The Contract was a master services agreement
pursuant to which work orders were issued for specific projects and services. References to the
Contract herein include all associated work orders.

4, Also on May 2, 2012, TCL&P issued six (6) work orders to GRP involving
design of the physical plant and transmission/distribution systems associated with the new
South Side Substation in Traverse City (the “Project”). The work orders all related to
professional engineering design and construction management services associated with the
Project.

5. The Project involved the construction of a new 69kV transmission line from
LaFranier Road info the South Substation including structure replacements on LaFranier Road
in the area of the substation, plus up to four new 13.8kV distribution circuits to LaFranier Road
and one new circuit to Garfield Road. The design also included provisions for one additional

distribution circuit routed east to Garfield Road.

35




6. The equipment for TCL&P's new substation included two 69kV breakers, two
69k V:13.8kV transformers, five distribution circuit reclosers, associated bus work and
switches, and a relay control house including SCADA equipment.

7. As indicated, the Contract was awarded in May 2012, with the goal of issuing
procurement contracts for the transformers by November 2013. The delivery of fransformers
was initially scheduled for 2014 with substation energization in January 2015. The distribution
circuit connections were also targeted for connection in January 2015.

8. During the design phase, GRP prepared the material procurement specifications
for two 69kV:13.8kV 12/16/20MV A power transformers. The transformer winding
configuration written into the bid specifications was a Delta-Wye which produces a 30-degree
phase shift between the primary (69kV) and secondary (13.8kV) voltage. This is the normal
and accepted transformer configuration for distribution level substations.

9. TCL&P's other substation transformers all have Wye-Delta-Wye winding
configurations which have no phase shift between primary and secondary voltage.

10.  TCL&P has alleged that GRP improperly specified a transformer winding
configuration of DELTA-WYE when it should have specified WYE-DELTA-WYE (the
“Claim™).

11.  Upon energization of the Substation in January 2015, and the related attempts to
connect the four new 13.8kV distribution circuits to the existing system, a voltage was
measured between circuits where the voltage should have been zero. Following several voltage
tests at the new substation, the transformer winding configurations were compared to TCL&P's
other substations and the alleged error was discovered.

12. After the alleged error was discovered, GRP proposed three corrective actions to

remedy the situation, TCL&P ultimately selected the option that involved the purchase of two

36




new transformers with the correct winding configuration and the sale of the incorrect
transformers.

13, Based upon this decision, TCL&P, with the assistance of GRP, prepared two bid
packages: one seeking proposals for the procurement of the two new transformers (attached as
Exhibit 1), and the second sceking bids for the sale of the original transformers (attached as
Exhibit 2).

14, TCL&P has subsequently resolved to purchase the transformers pursuant to the
proposal presented by SPX for a total amount of $1,241,409 (including one set of spare
bushings).

15.  Inaddition, TCL&P is prepared to scll the transformers to the high bidder,
Wyandotte Municipal Services, for the amount of $601,969.

16. GRP and TCL&P have engaged in settlement negotiations to resolve the Claim
between the Parties,

17.  The Parties have agreed to resolve all differences between and amongst them in
any way relating to the Claim based on the terms set forth within, The Parties desire to enter
into this settlement to avoid the uncertainty expenses involved in pursuing litigation.

18.  The Parties wish to settle the Claim without any admission of liability or
wrongdoing by any Parties.

OPERATIVE TERMS

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, mutual covenants, recitals,
releases and agreements contained herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt of and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties promise, undertake and

agree as follows:

37




1. Pursuant to the terms of this Agreement and as consideration for the same, GRP
shall pay to TCL&P the sum of $378,931.

2. Immediately upon execution of this Agreement and receipt of the payment
described in paragraph 1, the release set forth below shall become effective and legally binding
upon the Parties.

3. Except with respect to any rights or obligations created by this Agreement, the
Parties, for themselves and their respective predecessors, successors, related entities (including
Traverse City), insurers, assigns, sharcholders, directors, officers, officials, members, agents and
employees release, acquit and forever discharge each other and their respective predecessors,
successors, related entities, insurers, assigns, shareholders, directors, officers, officials,
members, agents and employees of and from any and all actions, claims, causcs of action, suits,
debts, liabilities, dues, accounts, demands, obligations, costs, expenses, losses, damage and
indemnities of every kind or nature whatsoever, which the Parties have, ever may have, own or
hold, or at any time heretofore has, may have had, owned or held, whether based on coniract,
tort, statutory or other legal or equitable theory of recovery, whether known or unknown, or
developed or undeveloped with respect and or in any way relating to or arising out of the Claim.

4, The Parties acknowledge that neither of them, by entering into this Agreement,
admits the truth of any claims or allegations with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement,
unless otherwise stated herein. The execution of this Agreement and the payment of the
consideration described shall not be construed as an admission of liability by either Party.

5. The Parties and signatories to this Agreement affirm that they have the full right,
power, legal capacity and authority to enter into and perform the promises made in this
Agreement; that the statements, representations, agreements and covenants contained herein are

contractual in nature and not mere recitations; and that the agreements and covenants stated

38




herein shall survive the execution of this Agreement and shall be binding upon the Parties and
their respective successors and assigns.

6. The Parties agree to refrain from commencing any action or lawsuit against each
other relating in any way to any matier released by this Agreement, and acknowledge that any
such proceeding would cause irreparable injury to the Party against whom it is brought, such that
any court with competent, personal and subject matter jurisdiction may enter an injunction
restraining prosecution thereof, This Agreement may be pleaded as a full and complete defense
to any action, suit or other proceeding which may be instituted, prosecuted or attempted for,
upon or in respect of any of the claims released hereby.

7. In any legal action pertaining to the enforcement of this Agrcement, the
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all of its costs and expenses, including reasonable
attorneys’ fees, incurred in connection with such action.

8. In entering and making this Agreement, the Parties assume the risk of any
mistake of fact or law. If the Parties, or any of them, should later discover that any fact they
relied upon in entering into this Agreement is not true, or that their understanding of the facts or
law was incorrect, the Parties shall not be entitled to seek rescission of this Agreement by reason
thereof. This Agreement is intended to be final and binding upon the Parties regardless of any
mistake of fact or law.

9. The language of this Agreement shall be construed as a whole, according to its
fair meaning and intent, and not strictly for or against any party, regardless of who drafted or
was principally responsible for drafiing the Agreement or any specific term or condition hereof.
This Agreement shall be deemed to have been drafied by all Parties, and no party shall urge

otherwise.

39




10. The Parties agree that the scope and terms of this Agreement are reasonable and
that it is the Parties’ intent and desire that this Agreement be enforced to the fullest extent
permissible. In case any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement (other than its release
provisions) should be determined invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, the validity,
legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions contained in this Agreement will not in
any way be affected or impaired thereby. If any particular provision of this Agreement shall be
adjudicated to be invalid or unenforceable, the Parties specifically authorize the tribunal making
such determination to edit and/or sever the invalid or unenforceable provision to allow this
Agreement, and the provisions thereof, to be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent allowed
by law and/or public policy.

11.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the Pasties
with respect to its subject matter, and any and all prior agreements, understandings and
representations with respect to its subject matter are hereby terminated and canceled in their
entirety and are of no further force and effect, except as otherwise provided herein.

12.  The Parties declare and represent that they have fully read and understand the
terms of this Agreement; that they have had the benefit of counsel with respect to the same; and
no promise, inducement or agreement not herein expressed has been made to it in connection
with this Agreement.

13.  Itis understood and agreed by the Parties that this Agreement may not be altercd,
amended, modified or otherwise changed in any respect whatsoever, except by a writing duly
executed by authorized representatives of each of the Parties

14.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed according the laws of the

State of Michigan.

40



15.  The Parties further agree that this Agreement may be executed in multiple
counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original. The Parties agree that a signatures sent
by facsimile or other electronic transmission shall have the same force and effect as an original
signature. The Parties further agree that a fully executed copy of this Agreement shall be ireated
as an original for all purposes.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the Parties below acknowledge that they are acting of their
own free will and have caused the execution of this Agreement as of the day and year first

written below.

Traverse City Light & Power Department

Approved as to form: By:
John Taylor, Chairman
_ By:
W. Peter Doren Timothy Arends, Sccretary
General Counsel
Date:

GRP Engineering, Inc.

By:

Name:

Title:

Open.19770.50833.15453486-1

41




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

oSl 1913

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board

From: Tim Arends, Executive Director

Date: June 17, 2015

Subject: Michigan Public Power Agency Commissioner & Alternates

The Michigan Public Power Agency (MPPA) Bylaws permit each member municipality’s governing
body to appoint a Commissioner and a first (1¥) and second (2"") alternate to represent the
municipality on the MPPA Board of Directors. The recognition to vote is applied in ascending order
from Commissioner to the 1% alternate and then the 2" alternate.

Most recently, Tom Olney, Operations Manager/Chief Engineer was the 1% alternate and Karen
Feahr was the 2" alternate. With Tom Olney’s recent retirement, the Utility needs to designate
alternates to represent the municipality on the MPPA Board of Directors.

It is my recommendation that the position of Controller be appointed as 1* alternate and the position
of the Manager of Operations and Engineering as 2" alternate.

This item is being placed on the Consent Calendar because staff deems it to be a non-controversial
item. Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar will mean that you agree with staff’s
recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the
agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the
following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY » SECONDED BY ,
THAT THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD APPOINTS THE POSITION OF CONTROLLER
AS 1 ALTERNATE AND THE POSITION OF MANAGER OF OPERATIONS AND
ENGINEERING AS THE 2™’ ALTERNATE TO REPRESENT TCL&P ON THE MPPA

BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

42




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light and Power Board

From: Tim Arends, Executive Director

Date: June 17, 2015

Subject: Withdrawal of Municipal Competitive Trust Funds

During the budget process, the Board provided direction to staff to incorporate $1,000,000 of
TCL&P’s Municipal Competitive Trust Fund Investments held at Michigan Public Power Agency
(“MPPA”) to be applied against TCL&P’s Belle River Project purchased power costs monthly
invoice. The impact of this withdrawal would provide a monthly credit on Belle River Project
invoices of $83,333.33 and reduce the monthly power cost recovery rate charged to TCL&P’s utility
customers by approximately $.003 per kWH, or a reduction of approximately $1,000,000 in power
COSt recovery revenue.

The balance of the account as of May 31, 2015 is $1,076,428.62 and with the amount of realized and
unrealized income it is uncertain whether the balance will be sufficient or have cxcess at the end of
the fiscal year. Therefore, staff is recommending withdrawing $83,333.33 each month until the fund
is fully depleted with the expectation the last withdrawal will be a partial amount.

In accordance with Article 6 of the Municipal Competitive Trust document, the document governing
these funds, staff must request from the MPPA Board of Commissioners approval of this withdrawal.

Staff has provided a motion below to formalize this direction. This item is on the Consent Calendar
as it is deemed non-controversial. Approval ofthis item on the Consent Calendar means you agree
with staff’s recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the
agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with stafl’s recommendation the
following motion would be appropriate:

(MOTION ON FOLLOWING PAGE)

43



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

MOVED BY y SECONDED BY )

THAT THE LIGHT AND POWER BOARD APPROVES STAFF TO PROVIDE A
REQUEST TO MPPA BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR APPROVAL OF THE
WITHDRAWAL OF $83,333.33 ECACHMONTH WITH A PARTIAL PAYMENT THE LAST
MONTH UNTIL THE FUND IS DEPLETED FROM THE TCL&P MUNICIPAL
COMPETITIVE TRUST FUNDS HELD BY MPPA TO BE APPLIED AGAINST THE
BELLE RIVER PROJECT PURCHASED POWER COSTS.

44



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Rod Solak, Line Superintendent
Date: June 22, 2015
Subject: Reel Turret Trailer Purchase

TCL&P has budgeted $60,000 in the 2014-15 capital improvements plan for the purchase of a reel
turret trailer (“stringing trailer™), a trailer that will be utilized to feed wire for internal distribution
circuit rebuild projects.

Bids have been obtained for the purchase of this trailer. Requests were sent out to four companies
and bids were received as follows:

Bidder Bid Price
Brooks Brother Trailers No Bid
Sherman-Reilly No Bid
Sauber Manufacturing $60,906.00
TSE International No Bid

Brooks Brothers Trailers and Sherman-Reilly submitted formal no-bid letters citing issues
complying with manufacturing requirements. The sole bid received from Sauber Manufacturing
is fairly close to budget at $60,906.

This item is appearing on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed non-controversial. Staff
recommends issuing a purchase order to Sauber Manufacturing for the purchase of a reel turret
trailer, Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar means you agree with staff’s
recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the
agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the
following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ,
THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ISSUE A
PURCHASE ORDER TO SAUBER MANUFACTURING IN THE AMOUNT OF $60,9006

FOR A REEL TURRET TRAILER.

45



juapualuadng sur] Y ejos poy

Jamod 72 1431

46

‘peaJ pue papuado Apignd suam uiaJay paie(ngel spig ayl ‘ STOZ ‘6T aunr ‘Aepu4  uo awi} |e20| ¢ INY 00:00:0T 1B 1ey3 A}I1Ja2 01 SISIYL
p!g oN - paJdinbay 10N ST0Z/S/9 WwooAj13J-urIBYS @ uediuials
Ajay-uewiiays
pig oN - paJinbay 10N ST02/S/9 WO02°[BUONBUJIRIUI-IS1@ST|es
) |euoneussiul 3S1
pig ON = paJinbay 10N ST0Z/S/9 wod'|lewioy@gLIa|pueyd|iyd
sJ9|lel] sisyloag syooug
pig mon uejsded q|000‘S-2¥'006S$ | 00°906°09 S paJinbay 10N ST0Z/S/9 Wod BN IBNES@ UYRHI!IN
adoJ 0O8TX8/€-00'8L2SS SunnjoenNUBA 1agnes
aiiono 3014d aig 3svd
SHYVYINTY ALIMNO3S alg 1N3S aig
SIAIALI TYNOILJO HYOLOVYLINOD TV1OL L

Jojieil 124Ny |29y  :3wep 102foud

wJo4 uonengey pig SR ——————
Jamod % 1S Ay astaned] HIMOd ¥ LHOI'T

ALID2 3IS¥Y3IAVYHL




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: June 22,2015
Subject: Underground Cable Purchase

On June 18, 2015, three quotes were submitted for the #2 and #4/0 medium voltage underground cable
combined to be used in the Pine Street Overhead to Underground Conversion, Hickory Hills, and Cowell
Family Cancer Center Projects.

GRP Engineering Inc., (“GRP”) has evaluated the bids for the #2 and #4/0 medium voltage underground
and recommends Power Line Supply, low bidder at $43,200. The actual price paid may be higher or
lower based on the price of copper the day of purchase.

Unit Price Unit Price #4/0 Total Metals Price
Vendor #2 Cost/ft Cost/ft Price Adjustment
1. HD Supply $1.542 $2.148 $43,785 Yes
2. Power Line Supply $1.52 §2.12 $43,200 Yes
3. RESCO $1.79 $2.57 $51,975 Yes

Staff concurs with GRP’s recommendation to accept the bid from Power Line Supply, in the amount of
$43,200 and recommends the Board authorize the issuance of a purchase order for the materials.

For your review, attached is GRP’s letter recommending Power Line Supply.

If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the following motion would be
appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY , THAT THE

BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ISSUE A PURCHASE ORDER TO
POWER LINE SUPPLY IN THE AMOUNT OF $43,200, MORE OR LESS, FOR

MEDIUM VOLTAGE UNDERGROUND CABLE FOR THE PINE STREET - OVERHEAD TO
UNDERGROUND CONVERSION, HICKORY HILLS, AND COWELL FAMILY CANCER

CENTER PROJECTS.

47



GIRF

Engineering, inc. Powaer Uttty & Plectrioal BEnghiearing

June 18, 2015
12-0503.01

Mr. Tim Arends

Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686

RE: 2015 Underground Projects
Underground Cable Bid Evaluation & Recommendation

Dear Tim:

GRP Engineering, Inc. has completed our evaluation of the #2 & #4/0 medium voltage underground
combined cable quotes for Hickory Hills, Pine & State Street and Cancer Center Underground projects.
Three material vendors provided quotes for the 30,000 of aluminum 15kV cable required for these
projects. Power Line Supply (PLS) & HD Supply quoted Okonite cable. RESCO quoted Kerite cable.
During the bidding process, it was determined that 7,500 of #2 AL 15kV cable will be supplied from
stock, therefore the amount of cable purchased will be 22,500°

Vendor #2 Cost/ft #4/0 Cost/ft Total Price
HD Supply $1.542 $2.148 $43,785.00
Power Line Supply  $1.52 $2.12 $43,200.00
RESCO $1.79 $2.57 $51,975.00

All cost estimates for this project were based on $1.50/ft for #2 and $2.00/1t #4/0, which were just under
the bid prices. Reminder that the actual cable cost will be adjusted higher or lower based on metals
price on the day of shipment.

GRP Engineering, Inc. recommends that TCL&P accept the quote from Power Line Supply. Please
contact me should you have any additional questions regarding this evaluation and recommendation.

Sincerely,
GRP Engineering, Inc.

D Pilesdodi

Michael P, McGeehan, P.E.
Project Manager

660 Cascade W Parkway SE Suite 65 459 Bay Street
Grand Rapids Ml 49546 Petoskey MI 49770
P 616.942.7183 wwnw. grp-enginearing.com P: 231.432.9683

F: 616.285.6448 F: 231.439.9698




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: June 3, 2015
Subject: Hickory Hills Prgject Transformer Purchase

Two bids were submitted for five transformer, pad-mount, 1 phase, 7.96kV:120/240V, 112.5kVA for the
Hickory Hills project. The request for bids was for five instead of the project quantity of four to keep one
on hand in case of equipment failure out in the field. The remaining transformers required for the Hickory
Hills Underground and Pine Street — Overhead to Underground Conversion projects will be taken out of
current inventory. Following is a summary of the bid submissions:

Vendor Amount
1. RESCO $32,725.00
2. Power Line Supply $36,959.00

Even though this cost is within the Executive Director’s spending authority these costs are part of a larger
project which exceeds the Executive Director’s threshold and therefore, requires Board approval.

Staff recommends authorizing purchase order to RESCO, low bidder, in the amount of $32,725. This
item is on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed non-controversial. Approval of this item on the
Consent Calendar means you agree with staff®s recommendation,

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendatr” portion of the
agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the
following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY » SECONDED BY , THAT THE

BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ISSUE A PURCHASE ORDER TO
RESCO IN THE AMOUNT OF 332,725 FOR THE PURCHASE OF FIVE 112,5 kVA

TRANSFORMERS,



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board

From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: June 25, 2015

Subject: Electrical Material

On June 22, 2015, one quote was submitted for the Pine Street— Overhead to Underground Conversion
Project electrical material, three quotes were submitted for the Hickory Hills Project, and three quotes
were submitted for the Cowell Family Cancer Center Project.

GRP Engineering Inc. (“GRP”) has evaluated the bids for the electrical material and recommends Power
Line Supply for all projects.

Pine Street —~ Overhead to Underground Conversion

Vendor Cost
Power Line Supply $83,650.74
Hickory Hills

Yendor Cost
Power Line Supply $18,133.61
HD Supply (not all items quoted) $26,830.23
RESCO (not all items quoted) $17,235.14

Cowell Family Cancer Center

Yendor Cost

Power Line Supply $17,889.86
HD Supply (not all items quoted) $14,419.84
RESCO (not all items quoted) $18,344.42

Staff concurs with GRP’s recommendation to accept the bids from Power Line Supply in the combined
amount of $119,674.21 and recommends the Board authorize the issuance of three purchase orders for the
matetials.

For your review, attached is GRP’s letters recommending Power Line Supply.

This item is on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed non-controversial.  Approval of this item
on the Consent Calendar means you agree with staff’s recommendation.

50



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the
agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the
following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY » SECONDED BY , THAT THE

BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ISSUE THREE PURCHASE
ORDERS TO POWER LINE SUPPLY FOR THHE COMBINED AMOUNT OF $119,674.21 FOR
ELECTRICAL MATERIAL RELATED TO THE PINE STREET — OVERHEAD TO
UNDERGROUND CONVERSION, HICKORY HILLS, AND COWELL FAMILY CANCER
CENTLER PROJECTS. THE FIRST PURCHASE ORDER FOR PINE STREET — OVERHEAD
TO UNDERGROUND CONVERSION IN THE AMOUNT OF $83,650.74, THE SECOND FOR
THE HICKORY HILLS IN THE AMOUNT OF $18,133.61, AND THE THIRD IN THE

AMOUNT OF $17,889.86 FOR THE COWELL FAMILY CANCER CENTER PROJECTS.

51



Engineering, Inc. | Power Uiifity & Hecirical Unaineerisg

June 25, 2015
12-0503.01

Mr. Tim Arends

Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, M1 49686

RE: Pine & State Street Underground
Flectrical Material Bid Evaluation & Recommendation

Dear Tim:

GRP Engincering, Inc, has completed our evaluation of the electrical cable & equipment material quotes
for the entire Pine & State Street Underground project. Of the three material vendors invited to bid, only
one responded with a quotation, Power Line Supply (PLS). HD Supply & RESCO did not quote this
extensive list of material.

Vendor Electrical
Power Line Supply $83,650.74

GRP Engineering, Inc. recommends that TCL&P accept the material quotation from Power Linc Supply
for the Pine & State Street Underground electrical material. Please contact me should you have any
additional questions regarding this evaluation and recommendation.

Sincerely,
GRP Engineering, Inc.

TP Pleshodd

Michael P. McGeehan, P.E.
Project Manager

ee: Traverse City Light & Power
Ms. Karla Myers-Beman

660 Cascade W Parkway SE Suite 65 4859 Bay Street
Grand Rapids M| 49546 Petoskey Ml 49770
P: 616.942.7183 www.grp-engingering.com P: 231.439.9683

F: 616.285.6448 F: 231.439.9698




GIRP
Engineering, Inc.

Power Uity & Blectrical Dnginesring

June 25, 2015
15-0756.01

Mr. Tim Arends

Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686

RE: Hickory Hills Underground

Electrical Material Bid Evaluation & Recommendation

Dear Tim:

GRP Engineering, Inc. has completed our evaluation of the electrical cable & equipment material quotes
for the Hickory Hills Underground project. Of the three material vendors invited to bid, all responded
with quotations, but only Power Line Supply (PLS) supplied a complete quotation for all items.

Vendor Electrical
Power Line Supply $18,133.61
HD Supply $26,830.23
RESCO $17,235.14

(Not all ilems quoted.)
(Not adl items quoted.)

Although RESCO’s bid appears lower, they failed to bid all items, Additionally, some items from
RESCO were quoted “plus freight”, thereby making a comparison to other vendors difficult.

GRP Engineering, Inc. recommends that TCL&P accept the material quotation from Power Line Supply

for the Hickory Hills Underground electrical material.

Please contact me should you have any

additional questions regarding this evaluation and recommendation.

Sincerely,
GRP Engineering, Inc.

TP Pleedidd
Michael P. McGeehan, P.E. :

Project Manager

ce: Traverse City Light & Power
Ms. Karla Myers-Beman

660 Cascade W Parkway SE Suite 65

Grand Rapids M| 49546

P: 616.942.7183 www.grp-enginearing.com
F: 616.285.6448

459 Bay Strect
Petoskey Ml 49770
P: 231.439.9633
F: 231.439.9698

53



) 50

gineermg, inc. Pogver LRIy & Dlectiies! Unolneering

June 235, 2015
13-0576.01

Mr. Tim Arends

Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686

RE: Cancer Center Underground
Electrical Material Bid Evaluation & Recommendation

Dear Tim:
GRP Engineering, Inc. has completed our evaluation of the electrical cable & equipment material quotes

for the Cancer Center Underground project. Of the three material vendors invited to bid, all responded
with quotations, but only Power Line Supply (PLS) supplied a complete quotation for all items.

Yendor Electrical
Power Line Supply $17,889.86
HD Supply $14,419.84 (Not all items quoted,)
RESCO $18,344.42 (Not all items quoted.)

Although HD Supply’s bid appears lower, they failed to bid all items. For comparison purposes, a cost
from the low bidder was utilized on the item not quoted by HD Supply and it pushed their total above
Power Line Supply.

GRP Engineering, Inc. recommends that TCL&P accept the material quotation from Power Line Supply
for the Cancer Center Underground electrical material. Pleasc contact me should you have any
additional questions regarding this evaluation and recommendation.

Sincerely,
GRP Engineering, Inc.

D Pleshodd

Michael P. McGeehan, P.E.
Project Manager

ce: Traverse City Light & Power
Ms, Karla Myers-Beman

660 Cascade W Parkway SE Suite 65 459 Bay Street
Grand Rapids Mi 49548 Petoskey Ml 49770
P. 616.942.7183 www.grp-engineering.com P: 231.439.9683
F: 616.285.6448 F. 231.439.9698

54




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board

From; Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: June 25, 2015

Subject: Conduit Material

On June 22, 2015, four quotes for conduit material were submitted for the Pine Street Pedestrian Way and
three quotes were submitted for Union Street Conduit all for the Pine Street — Overhead to Underground
Conversion Project

GRP Engineering Inc. (“GRP”) has evaluated the bids for the conduit material and recommends All-
Phase Electric for both parts of the Project.

Pine Street Pedestrian Way

Vendor Cost

All-Phase Electric $18,899.96
Kendall Electric $19,896.98
Power Line Supply $19,681.58

RESCO (not all items quoted)  $18,273.86

Union Street

Vendor Cost

All-Phase Electric $24,460.75
Kendall Electric $25,182.54
Power Line Supply $24,875.80

Staff concurs with GRP’s recommendation to accept the bids from All-Phase Electric in the combined
amount of $43,360.71 and recommends the Board authorize the issuance of two purchase orders for the
materials.

For your review, attached is GRP’s letters recommending All-Phase Electric.

This item is on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed non-controversial.  Approval of this item on the
Consent Calendar means you agree with staff’s recommendation.

95




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OIF JUNE 30, 2015

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying questions, it
should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the agenda for full
discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the following motion would
be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY , THAT THE

BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ISSUE TWO PURCHASE ORDYRS
TO ALL-PHASE ELECTRIC FOR THE COMBINED AMOUNT OF $43,360.71 FOR CONDUIT
MATERIAL RELATED TO THE PINE STREET - OVERHEAD TO UNDERGROUND
CONVERSION PROJECT. THE FIRST PURCHASE ORDER FOR THE CONDUIT
MATERIAL FOR THE PINE STREET PEDESTRIAN WAY IN THE AMOUNT OF $18,89%9.96

AND THE SECOND FOR UNION STREET IN THE AMOUNT OF $24,460.75.

56



Engineering, Inc.

Power Uiy & Flactrion] Englnesring

June 25, 2015
12-0503.01

Mr. Tim Arends

Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, M1 49686

RE: Pine & State Street Underground

Pedestrian Bridge Conduit Material Bid Evaluation & Recommendation

Dear Tim;

GRP Engineering, Inc, has completed our evaluation of the conduit material quotes for the Pedestrian
Bridge area of the Pine & State Street Underground project. Of the five material vendors invited to bid,

four responded with quotations.

Yendor Conduit
All-Phase Electric $18,899.96
Kendall Electric $19,896.98
Power Line Supply $19,681.58
RESCO $18,273.80

(Not all items quoted.)

Although RESCO’s bid appears lower, they failed to bid all items.

GRP Engineering, Inc. recommends that TCL&P accept the conduit material quotation from All-Phase
Electric Supply for the Pedestrian Bridge portion of the Pine & State Street Underground project. Please
contact me should you have any additional questions regarding this evaluation and recomnmendation.

Sincerely,
GRP Engineering, Inc.

TP Poiddn

Michael P. McGeehan, P.E,
Project Manager

ce: Traverse City Light & Power
Ms, Karla Myers-Beman

660 Cascade W Parkway SE Suite 65

Grand Rapids Ml 49546

P: 616.242.7183 www.grp-engineering.com
F: 616.285.6448

459 Bay Street
Petoskey MI 49770
P: 231.439.9683
F. 231.439.9698

57




e,:—% " 5
Dt 1

Engineeriﬁg, inc. Power iy & Dlectrionl Fogneanny

June 23, 2015
12-0503.01

Mr. Tim Arends

Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, M1 49686

RE: Pine & State Street Underground
Union Street Conduit Material Bid Evaluation & Recommendation

Dear Tim:

GRP Engineering, Inc, has completed our evaluation of the conduit material quotes for the Union Street
and alley area of the Pine & State Street Underground project. Of the five material vendors invited to
bid, four responded with quotations.

Yendor Conduit
All-Phase Electric $24.460.75
Kendall Electric $25,182.54

Power Line Supply £24,875.80

GRP Engineering, Inc. recommends that TCL&P accept the conduit material quotation from All-Phase
Electric Supply for the Union Street portion of the Pine & State Street Underground project.  Please
contact me should you have any additional questions regarding this evaluation and recommendation,

Sincerely,
GRP Engineering, Inc.

TP Pleshodio

Michael P. McGeehan, P.E.
Project Manager

ce: Traverse City Light & Power
Ms. Karla Myers-Beman

660 Cascade W Parkway SE Suite 85 459 Bay Streeot

Grand Rapids Ml 49546
P: 616.942.7183 www.grp-engineering.com
F: 616.285.6448

Petoskey M1 49770
P 231.439.9683
F: 231.439.9698

58



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: June 25, 2015
Subject: Switchgear - Pine Street Overhead to Underground Conversion

On June 22, 2015, one quote was submitted even though four vendors were invited to bid for the Pine
Street— Overhead to Underground Conversion Project switchgear equipment.

GRP Engineering Inc., (“GRP”) has evaluated the bids for the electrical material and recommends Irby
Utilities for this project.

Yendor Cost
Irby Utilities $87,000.00

Staff concurs with GRP’s recommendation to accept the bid from Irby Utilities in the amount of $87,000
and recommends the Board authorize the issuance of a purchase order for the materials.
For your review, attached is GRP’s letter recommending Irby Utilities.

This item is on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed non-controversial.  Approval of this item
on the Consent Calendar means you agree with staff’s recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the
agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the
following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY » SECONDED BY s THAT THE

BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ISSUE A PURCHASE ORDER TO
IRBY UTILITIES IN THE AMOUNT OF $87,000 FOR SWITCHGEAR EQUIPMENT

FOR THE PINE STREET — OVERHEAD TO UNDERGROUND CONVERSION PROJECT.



B [
Engfﬁ@@ffﬂg, lnc- ;.1'5{}1,5;‘&;& Higi]i‘;f §? §§§?~ggg“»§ i“f}éng\,”“zg

June 25, 2015
12-0503.01

Mr. Tim Arends

Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686

RE: Pine & State Street Underground
Switchgear Bid Fvaluation & Recommendation

Dear Tim:

GRP Engineering, Inc. has completed our evaluation of the padmount switchgear quotes for the Pine &
State Street Underground project. Of the four material vendors invited to bid, only one responded with a
quotation. Note that the specifications for the switchgear were prepared to match the existing box pads
that are already installed in the equipment areas. This was done to prevent excavations in existing
equipment areas on both Pine Street & State Street,

Vendor Electrical
Irby Utilities $87.000.00

Irby Utilities (formally Champion, Inc.) submitted a completc quotation for the padmount switchgear.
Irby quoted S&C Padmount Switchgear which matches existing equipment on site.

GRP Engineering, Inc. recommends that TCL&P accept the switdchgear quotation from Irby Utilities
for the Pine & State Street Underground Project. Please contact me should you have any additional
questions regarding this evaluation and recommendation.

Sincerely,
GRP Engineering, Inec.

ITEDS Pleshidl

Michael P, McGeehan, P.E.
Project Manager

ce: Traverse City Light & Power
Ms. Karla Myers-Beman

660 Cascade W Parkway SE Suite 65 459 Bay Street
Grand Rapids M] 49546 Petoskey M1 49770
P: 616.942.7183 www.grp-engineering.com P: 231.439.9683

F. 616.285.6448 F: 231.439.8698




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

Y
Q@G TRAVERSE CITY

% LIGHT & POWER

To: Light and Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: June 17, 2015

Subject: Public Pier Presentation

On August 4, 2014, the City Commission authorized a Consultant Agreement with SmithGroupJIR
for services associated with Phase One — Site Investigation and Schematic Design, Phase Two —
Preliminary Design and Phase Three — Final Design of the Traverse City Public Pier Project (“Pier
Project”). This pier is currently planned at the mouth of the Boardman River east of Clinch Park.

At the May 4, 2015 City Commission meeting, the City Commission approved moving forward with
Phase Two-Preliminary Design Documents for the Pier Project. Concurrently, with this approval the
Commission moved forward with adopting a resolution supporting a $5,000 grant from Rotary
Charities to develop a funding strategy for the Pier Project. Since this approval, the City has begun
working on the development of the funding strategy for the Pier Project. One piece of the Pier
Project funding strategy is to find a source of funds for the design and construction of the renewable
energy system that will be located on the pier. The renewable energy system consists of solar arrays
located on shade structures and possibly one or two small windmills similar to the one located at the
Clinch Park entrance either at the entrance or the end of the pier as a means to provide all of the
pier’s electricity needs.

At the meeting, Missy Luick from the City Planning Department will be in attendance to present on
the Pier Project renewable energy system and request support through a resolution included in your
packet for the design and construction costs for the renewable energy system. Additionally, the
Mayor may be in attendance to speak to the Board in support of the resolution,

Staff has no specific recommendation regarding this issue. Funding the Pier Project at this time is
not expected to require any immediate increase in utility rates.

If the Board concurs to support this funding request the following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ,

THAT THE LIGHT AND POWER BOARD ADOPTS A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT FOR
FUNDING THE TRAVERSE CITY PUBLIC PIER PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF
$350,000.

61



TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER DEPARTMENT
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZATION CONTRIBUTION TO THE CITY

IN SUPPORT OF PROVIDING A RENEWABLE ENERGY SYSTEM FOR THE

Whereas,

Whereas,

Whereas,

Whereas,

Whereas,

Whereas,

Whereas,

Whereas,

TRAVERSE CITY PUBLIC PIER PROJECT OF THE BAYFRONT PLAN

the Traverse City waterfront on West Grand Traverse Bay profoundly
influences the quality of life in the City and the region, including the
region’s $587 million tourism and recreation economy; and

the City of Traverse City has, over several decades, worked to place much
of the bayfront inside the City into public ownership; and

Traverse City Light and Power provided considerable financial and land
resources to the open up large parcel on the public waterfront by
removing the Bayside Power Plant; and

in commemoration of the utility’s 100" Anniversary, the Traverse City
Light and Power Board funded a Legacy Project to benefit the citizens of
Traverse City by providing $1,000,000 to the Clinch Park revitalization
project, an implementation project of the Bayfront Plan; and

Traverse City Light and Power invested $15,000 for the universal design
small boat launch project as part of the Clinch Park revitalization project;
and

Traverse City Light and Power has already invested $2,029,159 in
Bayfront beautification projects that included undergrounding of wires
along Grandview Parkway; and

Traverse City Light and Power invested $7,000 in Grandview Parkway
beautification installing underground sprinklers; and

the Traverse City Bayfront Plan is a 526 million revitalization effort and

includes seventeen phases of which the Traverse City Public Pier is a
project; and

62



(Resolution of Support for Traverse City Light and Power Legacy Gift for Bayfront Plan-
Clinch Park Revitalization)
2

Whereas, the Traverse City Public Pier electricity needs will be provided entirely
through renewable sources; therefore, be it

RESOLVED, that the Traverse City Light and Power Board of Directors supports the
Traverse City Public Pier project and commits to providing up to $350,000 to design and
build the renewable energy system for the Traverse City Public Pier Project should the
project be built,

| hereby certify that the above Resolution
was adopted by the Traverse City Light and
Power Board of Directors at its special
meeting of June 30, 2015, in the
Commission Chambers, Governmental
Center, 400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse
City, Michigan.

Timothy I. Arends
Executive Director and Secretary

63




500

= City Planning Department
TO: TIM ARENDS, TCLP EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
FROM: MISSY LUICK, PLANNING AND ENGINEERING ASSISTANT
COPY: RUSS SOYRING, PLANNING DIRECTOR
SUBJECT: PUBLIC PIER RENEWABLE ENERGY REQUEST
DATE: JUNE 15, 2015

On August 4, 2014, the City Commission authorized a Consultant Agreement with
SmithGrouplIR for services associated with the Traverse City Public Pier project including field
investigation, shoreline studies, public outreach, design development, preliminary engineering,
and permitting and construction drawings. The project is funded by a $232,000 Great Lakes
Fishery Trust Grant.

SmithGrouplIR has identified the utilization of solar arrays as a means to provide all of the
electricity needs for the pier through renewable sources. The shade structure roofs structurally
can be built to accommodate a solar energy system that will provide all of the energy required
for the lighting of the pier. Currently, the design calls for LED strip lighting integrated within the
pier railings.

Should the Traverse City Public Pier project be built, a request of up to $350,000 from Traverse
City Light and Power to provide the renewable energy system is sought.

Shada struture

Openinginpise
end

— Saatingandgathering
pxe

Page 1 of 1

64



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OIF JUNE 30, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board

From; Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: June 22, 2015

Subject: Pine Street Pedestrian Way

At the June 9, 2015 Board meeting, the Board approved the project reauthorization for the Pine Strect -
Overhead to Underground Conversion Project (Pine Street Project). A component of the Pine Street
Project is the Pedestrian Way Project that will be completed and managed by the City Engineering
Department with monitoring of the electrical construction by TCL&P. The Pedestrian Way Project will
connect the underground conduit from the Pine and State Street to Hall Street Substation, providing an
additional circuit needed for reliability purposes.

City staff presented the Pedestrian Way Project to the City Commission for approval on June 15, 2015.
The memo prepared for the City Commission is included in the packet for your review.

The City is requesting TCL&P cover the costs related to lighting installation, electrical conduits, vaults
and related work to convert the overhead lines to underground for a total cost of $226,040.25. A
breakdown of these costs is included in the packet for your review,

If the City were not to move forward with the Pedestrian Way Project, TCL&P would either have to
install an underground line under the Boardman River or a new overhead line at an estimated cost of
$312,517 and $185,326, respectively. By participating in this project it allows the utility to work with the
city while each entity receiving a benefit. The utility being able to utilize the bridge to install the conduit
and not having to install either an overhead or underground line for the additional circuit needed for
reliability purposes. The city receiving funding for the lighting costs related to the Pedestrian Way
Project.

Staff recommends approving a purchase order to the City in the amount of $226,040.25.

If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the following motion would be
appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY s THAT THE

BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ISSUE A PURCHASE ORDER
IN THE AMOUNT OF $226,040.25 MORE OR LESS TO THE CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY FOR
THE ELECTRIC AND LIGHTING COSTS RELATED TO THE PINE STREET PEDESTRIAN

WAY.

065




‘The City of Traverse City

Communication to the City Commission

FOR THE REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING OF JUNE 15, 2015
DATE: JUNE 11, 2015
FROM: PENNY HILL, ACTING CITY MANAGERQQQ5

SUBJECT: 2015 PINE STREET PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE AND OVERHEAD TO
UNDERGROUND CONVERSION PROJECT

Attached is a memo from City Engineer Timothy Lodge recommending a contract
with Elmer’s Crane and Dozer for the above-referenced project in the amount of
$1,019,951.88, plus a 5.88% contingency ($60,000), for a potential project cost of
$1,079,951. 88.

As explained by Mr. Lodge, the following are the funding sources for the project:

Funding source Item Amount
Traverse City Light & | Lighting installation, | $226,040.25
Power electrical conduits,

vaults, and related
work to convert the
overhead lines to

underground

TIF 97 Engineering $ 44,000

Capital Project Fund | Remaining project $749,911.63 (plus a
elements 5.88% contingency

equal to $60,000)

I recommend the following motion (5 affirmative votes required):

that the Mayor and City Clerk execute a unit prices contract with Elmer’s

Crane and Dozer, in the amount of $1,019,951.88 for the 2015 Pine Street

Pedestrian Bridge and Overhead to Underground Conversion Project, more or

less, at the unit prices indicated in its bid, with such contract subject to approval

as to its substance by the Acting City Manager and its form by the City
Attorney,

Do
D




City Commission June 11, 2015
2015 Pine Street Pedestrian Bridge and Overhead to Underground Converstion

-Motion continued on following page-

with portion of the project costs te be paid for by Traverse City Light & Power
and TIF 97 as outlined in the City Engineer’s June 8, 2015, communication, with
the remainder to be paid for by the Capital Projects Fund; and further that the
City Manager be authorized to manage a project contingency of $60,000; and
that the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute any necessary change
orders for work associated with the project contingency, such change orders
subject to approval as to their substance by the City Manager and their form by
the City Attorney,

PH/becm
K:tcelerk\city commission\agreements\pine street pedestrian bridge 2015
copy: Tim Arends, Traverse City Light and Power Executive Director

Rob Bacigalupi, Downtown Development Authority Executive Director
Timothy Lodge, City Engineer




Memorandum ‘ The City of Traverse City e hgo %’% e |

Engineering Departinent

TO: Pénny Hill, Acting City Manager
Rob Bacigalupi, Executive Director, DDA
Tim Arends, Executive Director, TCLP

FROM: ~  Timothy J. Lodge, City _EngiW
DATE: June 8,2015 ' '

SUBJECT: 2015 Pine Strest Pedestrian Bndge and Overhead to Underground
Conversion Project

Sealed bids were received on June 2, 2015 for the above referenced projécf.
Two bids were received for this work as foliows:

Anlaan Corporation Grand Haven $1,193,25$;34: _f"_:_'f: S
Elmers Traverse City $931,734.88 - -

The Engineering Department cost estimate for the project is $919,537.75. We
have reviewed the bids received and the low bid contractor's experience with
similar projects and found that the low bid contractor is capable of performing the
work for this project. The City has worked successfully with the personnel

assigned to the project on the North Boardman Lake Trail Pedestrian Bridge

Project in the past as well.

The bid amounts above include unit pricing for 81 individual work items mcludmg
the items for installing conduits so the existing overhead lines can be placed
underground. In addition, we included alternate work items for the project as
follows:

1. Alternate brick paver materials resulting in a savings of nearly $8,800 if
selected.

2. Alternate bollards and foundations including a composite material option
and a cast iron option in lieu of the aluminum bollard in the base bld that__;“’- s

offers up to an $800 savings to the above base bid.

3. Alternate bridge options including a steel bridge truss with a concrete deck":-": ST

at a savings of $5,000 or an aluminum truss with wood decking at an
increase of $70,000 to the steel bridge truss with wood decking included in
the base bid.

4, Alternate to complete a 6 fool wide concrete sidewalk on the existing dirt
path along the riverbank to Union Street at a cost of $15,184 in addition to
the base bid.

5. Alternate landscaping materials that would increase the base bid amount

by $3,033 but offer a more substantial planting scene.




2015 Pine Street Pedestrian Bridge and Overhead
to Underground Conversion Project

June 8, 2015

Page 2 of 2

The projéct is being funded though TiF 97, Project ID #66 and TCLP Project ID
#837. With the inclusion of the aluminum truss and wood deck option, the
alternate to extend the sidewalk to Union Street, and the alternate landscaping

materials the final recommended contract amount is $1,019,951.88. Therefore, it

is recommended that this work be awarded to Elmer’s Crane and Dozer, Inc. and

that the proper City officials be authorized fo execute a unit price contract with .~
‘the above-mentioned low bidder, in the aforementioned amount, more. or fess, i

~ with funds available in Capital Project Fund with revenue sources to include TIF
© 97 and TCLP. - S S

" In addition, we recommend that atthorization be given to the City Manager fo
manage an additional contingency amount of $60,000 (5.86% of the construction
contract amount) should the need arise for unforeseen and unknown work that
may be required.

The project includes installing lighting, electrical conduits, vaults and related
electrical work to convert the existing overhead lines to be placed underground.
We recommend the TCLP issue a purchase order to the City for the project
lighting and electrical under-grounding work in an amount of $226,040.25 more
or less.

Finally, we recommend that an amount of $44,000 be transferred from TIF 97 to
the City’s General Fund for expenses related to engineering for the project.

(€]
o)




b

ofieg

) QNN ONIDINYNIL INTHIUINT XYL TYI0L
00°000°0E2% L6 411 1oL

D0'00H'OESYE

00" oeo.nnox»

WY SSELEE STOT/02 /v "paqulLg Biujy faqeg

00" Sﬁgw [y aoa.cnn.-u
GaOs [0GE 0003 [O0 000 02TF ) VOSTITSET SOPRR Y99di5 1003 ToM] ST5
0300 00LF 00°00070543 00°00C 0071 00°0% = {aNouWoudsEaepoy 16 3u0ad S5oM | BF9
(VT F T oo 00T B,
o0rps 0008 [000s 00°000°0TLE co-ot o0ro 3| o weq wans sou wedp wewoay uosg somumoidn| 8
5008 00005 2015 00G% 0003 [N 500% W (LY Uy S600g 15u25 Gons quns] oar ]
Eoe 00'0% i oa 08 CO0F oo of W (LT Ty S0P T0uls 3505 [eh]  zot
50°0% 0003 00000 935 0003 0G 0% W IRy SBpLg TG SEey [F5]
DOGO0'STES 0003 o008 C0'0% 000 A [+] § & SEO0EIY SHa0d]Gv3
R e e T — ioes oot T — e S p :
600 = oo L ool 000%™ (e s borooroseTs T lacies TETDSUBAG I Ul In) AEM S0 PAGE Biis ,.K.
T G000 5 TS 00°000 DOGT 000E CG0s 000% [ 0004 W
S 00G00'SE6F 0000 SE0 1F 00°C3 OO OO0 SE5% 0o'cE o003 0003 W
000t 00°000 00L3, 00000005 00" 0000043 000 [ oz 00°( A
000 00000 C5S 000000053 00°00C 0053, Ca'0F 00°03 o008 00°03 Al
00°000°00Z% DUD00'STE 13 [O0COGSTE TF 00°0% 00703 o00°c$ [00'000'S TS [o0'os )
_Mo oF 00000000 T ID0GO0T000 1§ G603 00es 00'0% 00"000°000 T$ 00°0% o TR ISULOR| TR
TS+ JATFITg
0008 00°000°£52% oG 000" b ISE 0008 0008 00-000* 2523 00°0% 00'08 00'os oot b} MAADURIS 03 URIPUROR) S0DSRRNG oy 1seg | SOL
00 CH [00'00055F 06 00C'S5% [oooE oc 0% 100°0% 000% 0005 0C"C0'55% 00°a% > HIWAFEOTY XO0IU-PIN NSCHT Q0T 39008 3000 Wea|  GIL |
00 000G00'SY  |00-000'000'TE 00 00G 500 55 |00'0c0"000 1% 007035 0003 0505 00 0% 00°0F 003 A ARG S S| o)
00°D% Do0C0’Z18% 00000 TS {00000z TRE 009% g DO0F 00 00 0% C00% A PRGBS A 0 007 SiL
4G ALl
DOOSLTLETE  00'0SL/TACE 00'00S'$96°IS 0003 0003 00'0% oo'o$ 000% 00'052°T6S% 00'0% TJ1Laoy
000000543 00000 0515 000000055 0003 TCo0% [T 0003 (G [0 0000515 B00% o) N e e L e T ) |
00052 2Tt DO 0SLTLTS 00'005568% o00s _8.3 oo0$ 00'038 oo'0s oosetizs oo a$ 3| (ewr+l (O15+) Suswansidwy sdupans oy g sswn| 19 v
00DF 00000 0L i 00°COQ DLLS 060G [ 0008 0008 oocf D0DO0DLTS 00" 0% 3 EWUIA0MIW] Bulpiing SiBRLED.] 26 }
T aLL
ONOE DNIDNYNIL INIWIHONT XvL
- Spung spung - TZ-0X0T 0Z-610T SI-9TOZ qY-LT0T £3-9T0Z SX-5I0T SI-+T0E " 20p wamford Mau 7. &
A-von A3 Pofosg 89, jEony AR (0612 AX0A (€23 X0, K813 1633, [erstd a3} mg prUsuo] AUED 3o < - A » Fafoag

e U Lf T S U NG00 y3efod SeYEBHT. oW
puni A 9THL-STOZ JEDA Ja0pPNg
NYTd INZHIAOHAKT TYLTdYD HYIA XIS

NYDTHIIN “ALID 3SUIAVEL 40 ALTD

FT/STOZ 40} PORRLANS SPR[0IY iy

-n
&Y,




GLOZ 'S aunp iejeQ uojssiwwed AIg

zo | ebog S10Z 'z sunp :ajeq pig
uswiyedeg Buyssu|buz 103rodd NOISHIANCD ANOHOYIANN OL QVIHYIAC ANV 3DAIHE NYIHLSIT3d 1334LS 3NId §L0Z
Ko esienmay jo Ao
22°008'v50'L EgESE'lse  § 00'666'6.8 _ § sway aug pue sbpug [201ang
00000'12 00005, § | 0000092y $)0000'e  $| ooooo'se 0000057 & pueliog Palyar V3l 1§
00005 00005t $00°000G §[00000s  §| 000017 000012 § 9[0d Jauueg v3[lL 05
000L9'L S | 00508 $ 1 00°004'} $ | 00'058 $ [ 00000’ 000005, § uorepuno ajod ubigiauueg V3T 67
0000082 $|00009'L  § 007008 $ | 00009} 00000'FL 00054, § UOijERUNC PUE PIE(j0g v3[8 [
000052k S§| 000082  S|o00o'e $ | oo0zy 00'054'C 0005L & 1835 3U0jS [EIMEN v3|§ iy
009929 S [007E $ | ST'SE6T SLpL b | 000962 $| o0or 3 wjsan|g I v3[661 9
02T S o0ve 05'EL6 SLyL 00°096°C $| 0009 3 S5RJ9) ARy Jaead v3[99 2
0010522 $ | 0052 00'008') 00008 00008} ¢|ooosz 8 1995 0L 0} 8 YoIig MY EEIE r
00°000°2 $ | 000002 00°005'6 $ (000056 6| 0000s'wL $| 000008yl $ waysAg uehebiul|  ANST[L 32
00000'8 $ [ 000008 § | 00°000%6 $ 10000006 § | 0000051 $| 00000051 § nsopu3 ‘|ouog Sugybn ‘Rued-ans ‘eued IS1aN ‘831G U313 va[l (12
00°0L6'8 5[ o018 § | 0LBEL') D $ | 00'008'S $| 00705 $ Gupybr usoay aday Ilen 1883 1404} K2
00°00%'8 S | ooy § | 0L0eEE $ 11861 0070050} $| 0005 $ Bugyfiry uasoy adoy ebpug 14012 o
000000501 § 007008 $ 1 0000078 00°00% 00°000'12 g|ooooL 8 IleipueH pajybil ebpug Ldjoig 58
00l §[ 100 00'009 009 00°006"2 $| 0062 $ (mojleys] "uiepng AipiginL 1400} 8E
00009 § [ 00008 00005 00052 00°000°2 ¢| 00005t § Beg Jayjid "[0iu0) U050, LEIH 3
0010006 $] 0000048 00'000'5E $ 000006 § | 00'000'EE $| 00000 § 501 'Papnisuog "ebpug va[l 9
00°00£'28F 00'00£'€8) 6000000891 S| 00000089L § | 0000SZSSL & | 00005255, § 501 "uing "abpug EEID 3
00°026'04 0082 00'025'L.€ $ | 00'822 $ | 00'000'82 00°002 Fagop ‘deidia| SAA DS|0vL e
i5€ 100 $ | 000v9% S|0gL $ [ o0'0gez's 00'51 Buyoosdisien auesquiapy Ld5[ese £E
000000z § (000006 § 0000021 $100008%  $| 00000') 00°005'C 1epn Jodeied juaingy valy 8
00086 § | 00zL § | 628 $189%0 00°005' 18 | 00004 Gugeog nyjeig-iuy 145(518 18
0010052 § | 0000z [ 05290 S | 00°SPE 00°6€Y s|ogose  § 1 9peI9) 9120000 | SUA NJ|STL [
0000086 $ 000000 § (0002929 $ [ 00°069 00°000'6% S| o005 § U0 "ainjonasang| SOA N3[86 62
0e-3 ybnoay; |-3 "oN wayy| [ 0LSSESL $[0Le $ | 2L%6r'9 e 00°€9L'Y) $|ooe $ pajeo) Axod3 ‘|aais Juawadiciuiay Sa1|}26y [
= e 006297 $ | 00°0S $ | SE'E6E'} ¥5°92 000042 $| oooy $ dIQ "manis NpReg|  SOA NI(5TS 1z
SO'18E'08$ SIS0 |EIUIBIT| o518 § [ 0008 5 [00'092E 000z 00°025' slocor § "Up 'UOJEABIX3 | SUA 12|69k %
LS PUB Z¥' L' 0V 6E “ON Wa| oousqoﬂ oougn.oﬁ Suca_m@ 00'000'68 00°000'06 $| 0000006 § sWwepiefod| WNS1|} 5T
00°554 00§ L9'9LE S|z 00'652 s | oo Ris0iaA YBIH Tayveld Y| SaA DS|ISH 2
02'659'S¥L$ $1502 Bunyb| [oo0ssZ 0005 £82Z5°E S| eeee $ | 00ozo'e §| oo'oe uonelojsey adois|  SUA US[ISE £
00'68'G § [ 00686 §|0000v'S $1 0000 $] 000058 $ | 0070058 uaje3Clay JueIpAH diiJ vall 3
00052 § | 00052 [ 00°006 $ | 00°00¢8 $ | 00002’ $ | 00°00% | 958D Jsnipy xog sleg va[g [
00667 HER $ | 00°426°E 51196 00°008'S S| 008 $ .9 912.0U03 PadiojuIBy-UoN Remaniig 145[004 0z
00°G86'S §lose $ | 08'9pL'L €5y 000920} $|aos $ HEMAPIS B1310UC) L 13S(0LL) 6L
00690l 0059 $ [ 0Lyllse 0Lzl 00'08L'9€ S|ooost [ENES 14[102 8l
000006 § 0000061 00°008'} 00008'LL 00°000'S $ | 000006 § uonepunc4 Uim lea\ 1edesed | WNS|1 Il
0000081 00'528 00°00Z'61 00°00% 00°022' slooort 8 1[EA YUeld JaquiL L8y 9l
00020} 0902 00'€0'} S| 8902 $ [ 00'000'2 S| 000y JEda13u0r pelelu] 14]0§ 8
01686 SE'0EL $ | 28YL6'E $ | 457051 $ | oo'oos's 00051 VEL 'YAH NOL[9Z [
0000965 $|000¢ $ | 06'600'SY S [1vee $ | 0008508 00ee 7 9dA] Yemapig Jened youg 14S[06E} £l
0000022 §|000% § | 05'leave S| ELsy $ 000012} e 1 9dAL MBMIPIS JeAed Xoug 145[066 Tl
000E1'L $ | ooee ¢ [ 0v'68z'8 S | #1928 00°002'9 $| 0002 § PAIPOM - £3 [1ejdg 4N 3jaRU0Y FE] S L
000LEZ § [ ovst § ] 00'5ea $ ] 06'8L 00°000°¢ $| 0002 PaINO-J) 11R19Q 18NS B QUNY 813idU0g 14051 [
00°005°E $ [ 00005 00'008's 00°008's 00°005°¢ $| 00005 S IEMPEIH JSANO V0D LT va[l 6
00051’ $ [ 00's0) 00°068't 00°€9) 00054 gloosz 8 dOY Al SSED. 1T 140g [l
00000 $ [ 00000 00'Lib'S 0LY'S 00006 ¢| 00005 § Jomag wioig Lz dwal[  WNs1[t L
00 LLLE § [ oo 00'815'C 00z $ | 009g0's $| 00y $ [ong19 Buns|x3 apeig auld pue ebenes 14(65Z1 9
0005} 00°S 00'006 $ | 0008 $ | 00'009'e sl o000z 8 [eAOWSY JUBLIIPAS "9IUBUBJUIEN ‘[01U0) UDjS0i3 aAdoe 5
00529 00°S 0STIE $1052 § | 00°c0s sl ooy 3 9ua4 J[|S Joijuog Uojsai3 1d[szL ¥
00°000'6L 00°000'62 00'505'51 § 1006055l § [ 00000y $| oo'ooo'sy 8§ udpeedaid als| WNS1|1 €
000295 05y § | 00'v6ET $ | 06°L $ [ oooro's $| ooy 3 lef0sds - bules|g 1350921 7
00000°0% S| 00°000'0% § | 000000y $|000007%  $| 000000y S| 000000y § 00°000°0vS XeW ‘uoseziiqoN|  WNST|L L
2214 [ejeL 9Ud wun 2d [B10] 304 3un 21 [ej0] 0Ud Jun sway| Jo uopduasag nn A 83 AN Wy
ueejuy sJaw|g Iewnsy sseauibug
auu_.o.—n_ cu_a‘_u_::au “::Em‘_u_uc_._ [} nﬂo_..tu.?c pue omv_.._m :n_.__h.oﬂun «uuhm u:_m

320[01d UOISIIAUOD pUnolbiapun 01 Peaysang pue abpug ueLysapad 19a41S auld

71



S10Z 'S1 aunr :8jeq uolESIMILOD AlID

¢loz sbud §102 'Z eunr lejeq pig
wawpedag Bupsauibuz 103rodd NOISHIANOS ONONYONIANN OL A¥3IHYIAQ ANY 320148 NYI¥.LS3A3d L33HLS INIE 5102
A0 essenei] jo A0
PE'eST'6L L § | eepeL'les  § SIIESELE  § 1500 UORINSUOY [BJO]
0L105'L $ | sa'zs s 000EL'E $ | 0051 00ore'e 0002 (uesuy, Baoues snuwiog) Jemp, poombag JeisQ pay Juesul, va|zvl [ad)
00007 ¥ $ | o000y S 00259 $ | ooeee 00°00¢'¢ 00°00€ .2 (sepiojnwiy snojndod) uadsy Bunen va[LL Y1
00°5LE'E $ | 00°6i€ 5 | 00'SkLE $ | 00°50¢ 005442 0054 5’| (S3pIojniany snondo) uadsy Bupent FEIE [l
00052’} $ | 00052 51007096} $ | 00082 $| 00°052'L $ | 00052 .| (sapiojnwial} snojndog) usdsy Bunieng va[L 11
0002601 0S¢ 5| 00°FhS'LL $]ose $1 00'08Y'Z) S| 00F J[BMADIS "2UCD b BjBUIBYY 145(0z1E oLy
00082 05} Q0'0V9'E S| 00L $ | o0'00z's $| oook [ uonesedald elig Y[EMBPIS 2u0D i Sleue)Y v3|075 6y
- 5 2 S § | 00°000°€E S| 00000°€E § 3§98 9}2I5UaY) JFBYUAS Ylm Wiy Hy-50| Pajnasuog ebpug LEID gy
* Z § [ Sl § | o000s'sel  $100°008°6L § ¥08(] SjaIIU0,) JGOGIUAG L WL Jv-G0L 'Ung ‘obpg V3|l 1
000005 §| 00000065 § [ 00°000'G€ $ | 00°000°SE  § | 00°000'¢E $] 00000€E_§ 328 POOAN M WNUJN]Y =50} 'PajonAsu0g ebpig LEID 9
000000, §| 0000004 S| 000000'8€2 S | 00'000'8EZ_$ | 00°00S'S6L 00°'005'S61 %98 POOM YiIM WNUILINGY Iy-501 ‘U4 "ebpug V[l Sy
000007, §[00000027. § [000000'28 $ 10000028 § [ 00°000'€S 00'000'€S %98 81810U0] Jlv-501 'Pajonsu0) “ebplg EEI oy
000005'8GL  § | 00°006'8GL & | 00°0000¥L & 0000000%L § | 0070Sz'SSL 00°052'551 39aq 8jeiouo -0} U4 ebpug va[l ERi
000007k $] 00008 §[000008%) 00°009'% 00°009'2} 00002'T Z IV ~Uojjepuno pue piejiog EEIE [
00001 §]o0000F) 00°000°2 00°005"} 00°000°9) $| 000002 § | JI ~UONEPUNOS PUE PiB0g v3[8 £y
06895 §[Sie 00'0LE0F 00°62 00°009'22 $| 000z $ ajeusaly z edAL ylemapig Joned 3oug 135]06€1 ]
000816k 09l 00'0SLve 00°SY 00°000'4} $| 0002 $ Aeulally | adAL A[emIpIS Janed Houg 1215055 1
vE'eszEeLL ¢ gaveELIeE  $ SLrigsele § Junowy joafoid [ejoL
Z9Usv'8eL 8 50°18€'08 $ 5L968'6E $ 5Wa)| [0110913 [ejoIang
00008 $ | 0001 $ | 00'00L°L $ | 0022 $ | ooosy 006 $ asodsig g jneH 'siodg yauslL| A ND[05 0¢-3
00°05. $ [ 0061 00°00€"t $ 10092 00°008 0024 H LA 11 ssei ‘luwoeg pues| — gA N2[0S 623
00°816 S [ 0090 00'66 00°52¢ 00°00¢ 007001 1504 pIensy V3[E 823
01y §[0zol 0'08y 0008 00°0ZL 0002 LPI9A JUIIYIOXT v3[9 /23
09'88¢ 09°8y 00°0b 00's5 00°0§1 00702 10US-8uQ PIIM JUHAYI0XT v3[8 %23
00°gSy 1571 00'0€9 0Lg 00°00€ 5001 § jeg papueas N9 0/ek L47]00€ 5¢3
0515 £l 00°004 $]002 00°08 §| 001 3 2leg PapUBAS NI Z#| L47[05 -3
002Z'L S [ 059L $ | 00'09€"L 5] 0058 $ | o0osy $ | 00'0¢ $ 2 X,9/5 'poy punaio v3[9t €73
00008’ S| 0000vz _ § | 00°000° ¢ [0000s't  § | ooooo's 5000057 § Sloyue L X 9X 2} v3[e w3
007228 S 00zes | 00009 $ | 00'009 § [ ooooz 00002 § JaACD 3 8|0YPUBH ,pZX,SEX.HT va[L 123
05'FSE L S 0515y [ 00°005' $ [ 00008 § [ ooszs 006/, § 1aA0D) 3 Bl0YPUBH 8LX,0EX..L v3[E 0z-3
00229 $ [ 0029 $ [ 00058 $ [ 00'0s8 $ [ oooor 0000y § ped xog 1eobuoImS | 1/6 HINJ V3|l 61-3
007524 $ ] 00229 $ [ 00'cog’t $ [ 00006 $ [ 00005 00052 § ped xog 1aiqe) Buizeuooag AXSL BE v3[T 813
0000068 $[0000098  $ 00700022 $[00000'Ze S| 000088 000058 § uojjef[ejsu] Jnpuo abpug il L3
9LI9E'L §186ELL S [ooore $ [ 0002 S| o009g 00°0¢ 3 {1248} snipey 09 ‘ssefbiegid LS .9 v3[zL 91-3
BLEST L 8611 $ [ 00'0ze 00°02 S | 000£€ 00°08 $ (0z45) snipey 09 'sseIfiagld L2z .9 va[1l Si3
86°ELL 965°ELL $ | 00°0e 0002 S| o008 $ 1000 $ (5135) snpey {,0¢) QLS sselbienid .06 .9 va[l e
76'S5Y 86°ELL $|o0gL 00'81 $ [ 000zZL $ 1 000€ [ (8135) smpey {,0¢) OLS sse1fiag!d .5p .9 valy €13
26'557 86°ELL $|ooeL S | 008l $ | 00021 $000€ 5 (y145) snipey ,09 ‘ssebiagld .S valy z13
96°ELL [ LD S| 008l § 1 o00e S 10008 $ (E135) Sniped ,09 SSelbiat)d «2g . va[l 113
86°ELL § | 85°ELL S | 00y $ [ 00y $ | 000 $1 0008 S (z135) smpey (.91} QLS ssejbiaq)d .06 & va[l 013
02'62¢ $ [ 0v9L $ [ o0'vhL $| 008y $ 1 0006 $1000€ $ Snpey ,9¢ Sseibiag3 .06 .£ vale 63
0E'8EL'L A 0£'649°S 15 0002y $] o0z 08/0v HOS OAd .9 LA[0kee 3
0,082 987 S6'491T k4 SLE0E'L BET Gouey3) 08/0F HOS DAd 7 IENEA .3
09°9EL ¥57 07’916 91'e 00'SEr $105 08/0F HOS OAd .E 141067 93
08'SE 6L} 00°8¢ $| 06} § 10002 $]001 08/0% HOS OAd .il-1 14102 3
001’9 HER § | 0070969 § | 008y $ | 0000802 $] 007, [ LSEL YOS -1 309 [euohoaiig L[5l 3
00'GLE'E $ [ 0052 $ | 00°065% § | 00%E § ] 00029’} $] 002} $ (synpuog g o) §) Joedwog 3 [Iyxoeq "yaua.L IR £3
00687k § 0062 § | 00'0Z7' 7L § | 0082 ¢ [ 00's99's 5] 0011 $ (SUNpUGY ¢ 01 £) 198dW07) 3 [[M0eg "ouaiL 1618 73
00'SLE'E $ 10052 $ | 00'5¥9°E $| 002 $ | 00°03E'L $ | 0004 $ (sunpueg Z 0} |) 19edwog 3 (198 "youa.L TERIE 13
SWaY [23LNIIF
320d [E}0L 3ud NN 291d [e10L Aud N 390d [E10L 3314 3N SWwajf jo uonduasag un fpis3 | oN way
ueeuy siaw3 Qjewns3y sseaulbug
walold uoissaAL0) punoiBiapun o} peasaaQ pue aBpug uewIsapad Jaang auld

328l01d UOISIaAUOD punoibiapun O} PEaYJanQ pue aBpug ueLISIpPad 190G auld

72



73

+ 3 Wi
Y3V NANE G300

ATIGTTRIT
IHWANOLOOROL — == — N3 v JOCIE HLA AJMIA 0100009 10 OL STUWRII LHOIEM ONLLIN NYeS Th
THD e “QBLON I LD L300 CONITON HYTNONVIAL o HIM 0313470
IVHOHYD VIV BN JHANG Bis NAOHS SAINED0 3 LI53M07 039040 TIV
bk ——— B0 4 ININIOMOSNGY T
B B 009 =34 £3-igvaio 113uoN00
GG INF TI0VHD OO TION
IS ALFLINVE e HHL 0 THEIVIY THL NG CTIGVE G| GHIBAIN TYHLINA1R SHL 40 HOIGS0 HHL ®
T —
“XTHHIA FINVIELINDN S+ O DHIOVOT JOMIN| TIVHE NDBAT GaITvOT
ALTIEVI OVIHIIAD En 50 TN L 30 M 0TI LON Tivke
INOHCE T2 GNNOKONION ——— e 041 OLsgwv 20 1 I N 000 ONISA SMLLST1 30 *A0d 01 49 ENKIVGY
P, wiHs305d WHOJM A v b0l GID0IMT NVRUSICId 40 NOITID THL MO S NOLLVOLIS IR
JQING G447 07 LHU ¥ LNTHHNDTHL M0 439 D1 I00IMT GHL 30 MOIEST SHL 2
T —
TUHINIAINGD airdanmNoL IS
B e —— DEE HiA TONYOHOTV NI Les S LA BTING NIGLTO0 BOWINY
NS HOHONY GRS NO LI 1V d W11 Vet TAI L3455 SHa N1 G0 10N 4-ONIDN:
AH OSTALINOD UNY ABVGELIOEN 34 AV 0¥ SNOLLVAZT3 JBNGY W2 10016 T e
N IoML L3 3CGIN0 THL HOA SHGLIVATT 30, GHY Si¥ 50 N1 LY Sibivs BORI Aglk3 &
ENOLLY 21t
TIOHNYH vl THL ML ZINVONOTIY I DN ONY DHIHNIXILL WIDIa JAVK TivHD L1JHD
T LS I N IR NOLVASS 4L SO MMM ML 40 ST B0 T 3
NEvEHDZvS Javw apcan () "50hE LHOHS IHLNO TD60YE Thl, NYH 1 HIHOM T8 INSVELAGY H L 40 JHISHIYT THL
NMVEHBLYE 40 v 20 LHEHH TIVHE 2L LIS THL ONIJYI O.L HOMic JWRLTH 1V '+
ANVAAH Tl | et 504 INIruawd NEQONYON] 30 TIVHD RN 1002090 HOY ININAVE
[P “vaacdle] ONEWS 9L HObid LT 1 NG GOVl T8 TIVHS KNI IALA0
P NENEC | ‘DJS0E INTIVNON S0 N 1T 3 TVHE NOLLYRDIaD8
BTG N MOIDLONA 3401 ‘LG I 36 NOILTTan03 ALy A3 LVIamnb ¢
Tow enas FE
AN T OLLIMHITNGD GHINA IEDCT AV VL TIATI M35 K3 NOILYHINGILS ¥ DSwpe
HO- IHENGESA B HOLSVHINDO OHL IONYRD O L7200 B 1340 4= vmt ')
amwans I
i S S e
xomavo [3 e ] Jave ﬁ!_._:na NI LT
Pr— iy - W) 2, deewid HINSE
o8 G =4l 3D
MHVHINTE T oz anoed Or e = AR
INVISCAH T84 MO
HINBOD ALNTS0R] QH00d A .Eumozua_.& NI, 0 dou
4 WL i LN I
ONIZIN ViR

A0 40
CERRS IRV o
m HILECN BNINOGT 083 T
g Chdzeen| l l | l 1 i 1 I T T o] | | o ! | T
VIN edaean ' w, w il al, [
433HS o bl &t g st B4 g
=3 h g ]
_ _ ! _ _ * _ ! , , 9 3 3 A 8 A |
TS JO Ny TvHINTD
A23r0Md AYM NYIMLE303d LS 3NId
FTUL ONRVED VIGO0 ALY INDDN ¥ DNy 83
s — < 404 300 55 0L 10N Juv ONY AV BIS0dKI [ [ | | o o I I [ I [ [ [ T T ]
FBIGY "IN " ALID ITUIAVEL ROSIYITOD Hs Q26N TU 01 auY 170¥L MM e B m._
SAY Newanvos ooy || WG DACY Tl 0 RVOHT OV AT a8 i i3 5 bt
% IOVAO KBNS HOMPY TOVANNE MW Rl o8 o3 m_m ﬂw i =i
A bt
AINIWLHYDTC ONIBIINISNT ﬁ S1L [ | | | | q A | | | | 1 | ] | |
ALID 33H3IAVAL 40 ALID s WAL DL AHOLABIIINGD it Hvnbvia el -
p ey tataer L CL Z nurge; 0 r0en
i i NOUVATTI 194000 2wk F3L¥ N0 I e R o i ’
v [ | NOHARITES0 NORWIY | 0N HOIHAL VT TN Lkl W LT3mid T — T T 00oes
alere | e | AATIH DOWO ¥ NOINT JHE NIH LA B AN LINMAT BIHL 3464 s —
aiozair | ¥ | ool | ¢ e S
o e~
A N
s N
ey - - - ] ML AT b T, N
ki oL | Shn ‘ONY HOLLTHINOD MOon NIVIVECLLVAA A L1
- 0L | HYIAOS [F3ponan 58 oL Snmu&ooﬁ 4 H L brvelid 1 479 nolinvey
SIS
Cadroe) CLart Cish CLaros tudrns [or ) e \ / B.nsn,mp.numﬁud K
e moael G £ SV GlIB{AAYOH J0v i -
LECks {5401 vivQ I 2 T o00LS
‘NOLINGD 03 0a0nd NOWLIHOS DN | Jotviatio | aoDw 54400 Ml Lyw JovNIvED BEINEH HL DOTeR 1A N
SAYAVEIN YO N 8L DL GOPY AT vy RO T
Tio P s i \ Il {AVF ol \
y v Lasmy
e iy, \ ST
o ONIEOJ WOLLOD G AT, 1 aﬂ»u “ /_. Ty AWM 4400 H I JOWNIVHT
oL ; ¥ lertogt ca iy I v
. Tard Tl 4| L._\, zE:uEnaSPL, (== o | T TEIRES T ATEL R
IO % P AHMIINHLD N MO i - ~
MRS N3 a3 T oA g R OVAY ) 20 CUINTH | 1 ~ Q.o 00085
s T |mor TR A LA vir et “yowan B 0y R
N - 4 A . - Tt <
T | Nor T T o VAT Vir P Ao 5 b N e S N AU |
x| Ln D DTN G KT NN vt | P s ey Tl rves ATl e, o Eal =
% Bl | L S et LN e W A oMV T ML AN 1 o o
T e ] & 3 A e
2 or |17 TRl Tyt e NaTHE ﬁ_ﬁg = ==
- £3dnd, RINICIE JAMA HIIHG | [Ty B —
T s o ey 11 el [ s ]
T ol ] SO0 -7 LI HALIN0 ¥ BAND A LRHINDD = — i i o
b mm.mm'n I E.éusluﬂﬁﬂlhumﬁvﬂgusm T ﬁ!l. e e i 4:11 Foer— ; e
= 3 ¥ 08 Al Cav T L | . ety bl 00085
o T WYY
RS s RE] MIALYDOTIH INVATAR JUL, ] — e
S ——
T VR RN (S 3 %) PR TR ———— EDOWAID Q3 IY.L30 404 By DK 9 UNY ] S8 s LL.\/\J o
S o =] TR AN MO K & rﬁl - = SIVAO QHTVLYD O3 NI BNV IeaY Ti9 -
T T THAR LAV I, 9 = +
SR v S [ B P 3 2 g
¥ &) i
ey %) @s N
DA I H B cooos
[T P ) D AN A m &y p1 K
e AR vk 0 3 rrveiaianno | B 3] il o
ADDAIE] v AL w11 b
ATIHA DI L AN A gyl a3

SHIVEANT INGS » HO4 TIVNETLTE
NFGIGNTINI 13815 NOINA L

SHTVADIRIT RO b Sl 5 ON3

' L0k NIEITMISN
! HIADING INGD L4 O

'
_ e ETIHINDGD T DAL

ooy %

TATHONDS €3 BelAL

¥ T8 B LNVHOAH ONLLECT 1aM,

XO ANV TATYA
TRV M1 B WEIN HAVA CHVHEIAH
ONLLABCE FAVIOTE BEACHIH:

| av G GNLLShC]
F0MTUNY AT BT

-~ onaoon-aund |

BEwgd TOR

LAOAYT 00 K e

e e
o2l
ALGHRANL 14100

TdaLd
WYOu34302
E !

WO |
N LHND

= — .
VB i D2 oL TS
YD AR SN

e
v QIO MY
| AEIN3 T AL

P

ALK 301N

MOLLWINNOS i
I Yivi L3dviivd |

s moﬁgr

TIALKT GY A T2e

NOLIVAVATNA L 20 BUIAI i




74

BLIIHT 6 30 YOG QN BOr
L COAO kel
3T NwHO
TR QaNDBIEg
UK AV _Eiva o T bl
WAOHE  TFNGTRIOH | oI IEINGT v NOWDIS e R I T
L33HS e , ar | _ i
A | | - f=— S .
JUNLONYLS 20 Ny TYHENGTD - e sy T any e | "
LOTroNd AVM NvHLSEaR LS INd - —_—
T ONIY B
B8V 1IN ALID ASHAAYNL |3 "
"AAY NYIWOHYOSE Go¥ K % 1
ANTNLYYSST ONHIINIONT w); [
N
ALID ITHIAVHL 30 ALID ﬁl...u v ik I T ) , i T
Iu...u | s | NO|LoINITIA NOWIATY | 0N
soere | v | ATl DO 3
! = . S . e )
O H3T-ONIHi NG 3001 B A ey
TLIE MO0 Hilw MG, -
i I ix ol
| M_l L[5 ,M_J.\
2 b Y o~ _Ilh o~ peg ey e TT&
bl WA
AIIANOILY AT J6 I eaGatad

MO WA RO _\l _41111|4
HeOM IV GL
KINAHRD AL

DAY 140D NO QAW
AAYRH Vi 0 GLIAR

VA TIALOR NO v
AAVIH "V 3G BLIAE

| .
|
[ o
. - ﬂwmﬂ@ nuuuﬁmﬂ v s oL
{Al) NOLHOH 01 P . A | NS N
= £ Tyn)[H3n 36 0} tuod . D?/ AT N
/| — l e
s 4 | -
i %) / T ——
. =] N\ ] o M
4 F= EANN T m
S ) -4
T - || 1 M
2 = 5 H % n) | _
i AT WIEE 1 AL o
2 A
fl
s
3 P
vo—
3NN hELLL
s 3I5HIbEA TonmIaH =
T T T T
ool .
ol [
1o .
! L
b 3 } W L
:
G fninod
W NI
) ﬁucgumu%a N i |
“ ksl H: uku(uu
L e PR
= ﬁ w1 |
T
= - =
R P — [l I S
] RN 3
i [ vg— Py




75

[JE=r=rmy
]
\ \ AN DI CEIVIHIND ¥ XL X b HEAVS NN VNI
AT L L0 sotw e Somion 100NN 53 Tivee JLYNATIATY Z 3L HNANTCIT SIAYAENNT T
OOV MV Wb D00 ST L X, X > LUNVETINT
N it NI ToN Lol v b HDOTNA 30 Tivees JAYNMIAIY | 3dthd WA AV NoHNE ¥
L 8D 20 N A oL e T
R A B Nt D .1 RG] 00 HOOTNA 30 YIobed £ Stad WIS MOAve o0 &
133HS s “AXT LMOING 3 HEINIE ONYIMEIAN ' € X
o6 X MO 02T HIDUNN I8 Vel | Sghs X weadtlhe ddavo Xoiea T
y B a5 iiatve D 2e
LOVINDD W03 GHADHGY O HIDTINA 1 TIvHS SHIAVA YOkR
NYld SNIdYOSaONYT
LOArosd At NYIILSI03d 1S 3NId W ILEH v 3
Ttz ey
$B9EY T 'ALID JSHIAWUL e T T
“BAY NYWOHYOS 90%
ANIWLEYISQ ONIUIINIONT M
ALID FTHIAVHL 4G ALD PR
WOTLIIRIET NOIDIATH 1 NV DN BaNYT
oA e i

p——

b o3 azseoutzuton [T10] /
AR 120 h
K

snensavns T
o TN B

Rzl

i i |
boaozenazd PR

RAVIH vty (1
WO 9w % 03
| I

Thew LV dschaaba

A ,//
Do oMM [

e WU TABOADMS

m

G0 A0 WOLOUHOL — — —
NI ——

B

.1 00 OLON AT
4 ANV if
i

A0aLNNT o

dvclg AevalnYa
ALTIOVD NAOEDLEIN
ALITIED RO ——rm
TGS ONROUDMITNN
BT e —
DAL QANOEDEIAND
THELDTE] QY IHEBALD e e
AnsnsE
ONMIIBHL ArAdubas

Sl NWNOAD 20 ft)
Ao L1 T

i § Emonangp #ol LYoy
»!:Hsi_ LT

FarHa IOk [¥one]

Fcsterkl Avlrvs @
I0HNve ks
IVIRDLY D Hhvals AalHodE (B
NeHazva )
Lvudamduls 4

ROGAIO FOHTTL [

Lz el
OOV TV

il syt 5 00 v
s anart e I P
sAhmvm 1 NI eoicd
SaknAne |3
2 Aatiun @
xmave [
o T
e 11
HINNOD ALVTHONI OO I
[EDER] (52 RONS £028 = ATTD
= it ! 300 s s
ﬂ.ﬂ G bl el HONDD
O =1 3TV0S AL GRONE O g = T
Lhevalrlan T NG

ALIZ HTHIAWNL NI o 4D 3L
[ e e B
wleTAdwAHINT ¥ *




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

(EsT. 1812]

To: Light & Power Board

From: Tim Arends, Executive Director

Date: June 23, 2015

Subject: Tree Trimming for the West Side Transmission Line — Tree Trimming Services
Agreement

As part of the West Side Transmission Line Project, tree trimming will be required in the Hickory
Hills and Hickory Meadows area. The trimming required in this area falls outside the scope of
work performed on a regular basis under the current Tree Trimming Services Agreement with
Penn Line Services, Inc. due to the special restrictions for this project such as ingress, egress,
equipment cleaning, utilization of matting, erosion and settlement control, etc. Bids were sought
for this project and bidders were requested to attend a walkthrough of the area reviewing the scope
of work on June 16, 2015,

As part of the bid request, bidders were asked to bid the approximate 1000’ of line starting from
Wayne Street working west to the low wetland area in two different ways:

Option 1 — Accessing the right-of-way through the gate located off of Randolph Street and
chipping all debris and broadcasting the chips within the right-of-way (including wood) with a
tracked wood processor.

Option 2 — Accessing the right-of-way without mechanical clearing equipment and manually
cutting down trees/brush then cutting and stacking all debris in approximately 4> high windrows

leaving all debris on-site.

Requests were sent out to six companies and bids were received as follows:

Bidder Bid Price — Option1  Bid Price — Option 2
Asplundh Tree Expert Co. No Bid No Bid

The Energy Group No Bid No Bid

Townsend No Bid No Bid

Nelson Tree Service No Bid No Bid

Penn Line Services, Inc. $132,000.00 $145,000.00

NG Gilbert No Bid No Bid

Townsend and Nelson Tree Service submitted formal no-bid letters citing issues with the
timeframe of the bid request and lack of a local presence at this time.

76




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

Staff is recommending trimming according to the specifications listed in Option 1. This provides
the best option to clean up the right-of-way throughout the Hickory Meadows and Hickory Hills
area in a manner that will be most efficient for the utility contractor that has to rebuild the line.
This option is contingent upon the Recreation Authority Special Board Meeting scheduled for July
1,2015. Iftheir board votes to allow TCL&P to gain access to the right-of-way across the Hickory
Meadows property, then TCL&P will be able to authorize trimming according to Option 1, If the
Recreation Authority Board does not allow this access, TCL&P will need to authorize trimming
according to the specifications listed in Option 2, which is cutting and leaving all debris on-site
throughout the Hickory Meadows recreation area.

TCL&P has budgeted $50,000 in the West Side Transmission Line Project for tree trimming in the
Hickory Hills and Hickory Meadows arca. The sole bid received from Penn Line Services, Inc. is
164%-190% above budget at $132,000-$145,000. The reason for such a gap between budgeted
and bid price is based on the impact of the previously mentioned special restrictions that were
unknown at the time of estimating the final budget.

Staff recommends selecting Penn Line Services, Inc. as they are the only bidder for the defined
scope of work. If the Board is in agreement, the following motion is recommended:

MOVED BY » SLCONDED BY ,
THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO ENTER
INTO A TREE TRIMMING SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR THE WEST SIDE
TRANSMISSION LINE PROJECT WITH PENN LINE SERVICES, INC. IN THE NOT
TO EXCEED AMOUNT OF $145,000; SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO FORM BY
THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND APPROVAL AS TO FORM BY GENERAL
COUNSEL.

FURTHER, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE WORK
ORDERS FOR SERVICES AND ADMINISTER AMENDMENTS AND CHANGE
ORDERS THAT ARE IN THE BEST INTEREST OF THE LIGHT AND POWER
DEPARTMENT.

77



13]101§30D ‘Uewag-s1AN elie)

VU] - 2 N% )mﬁ\”\&. . :Ag

13mod 8 1ysn

‘peaJ pue pauado Apiignd a4am uiaiay paile|ngel spiq ayl ¢ STOZ ‘€z aunr ‘Aepsany

uo awi} [eao]

NV 00:00:0T  1E1eyl Aj1nuad o1 sisiyl

p'd ON - -

ST0Z/S/9

UOS[IBD UIAIIS (UNY
S¥96% IIN ‘eAde)y
INUIAY ISHONMN 0ZSHT
uaqi9) oN

pg Mo 00°000°S¥T S | 00°000°2ET 3

4N

S10Z/S/9

[IPBUCIAl 1A U1
£89ST Vd ‘9|ep1102s
dNUIAY 3[2p1I03S 00E
oUlT UUad

(491197 |ewWuO4) pig ON - -

S10Z/5/9

uewysne aIA (uny
6E¥SY HO ‘Uociheq

AL 3ded 8210 O0EE
92IAJ2S 934 UOSIDN

(493327 |eWwIO4) pig ON - i

ST0Z/S/9

AJuaH Yieg :uny
89E/t NI “AuD Jadjied
8z Xog "0'd
PUISUMO |

pig ON - -

ST0Z/S/9

J3JIUUS[ Uy
8ET8Y IIN H0419Q

uopuAl LE38
dnoJo A8Jauz ay]

Pid ON = =

S10Z/S/9

JoplRuyas Aey tuny
8588% |IN Queses[d "IN
anug AemymoN 5522
07 Ladx3 93] upun|dsy

Z NOILdO T NOILdO
SHYVINIZY AD1dd 4ig A01¥d dig Isvd
3SY49 YOLOVILNOD TV10Ol| HOLlOVHLNOD TViOlL

ALIND3S aig

LN3S aig

y3aaaig

3UIT UOISSIWISUEL] IPIS ISOAN BYL J0) SutwwiLl] 93U

:awep 109fo4d

wJiog uonejnqey pig
Jamod 73 343817 A1) as4aned |

YIMOd ¥ LHOI'T

ALID 3IS¥3IAVHL

/8



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
[esr. 1912]
To: Light & Power Board
CC: Tim Arends, Executive Director
From: Kelli Schroeder, Manager of HR & Communications W
Date: June 25, 2015
Subject: Organizational Chart and Revised Administrative Position

Shortly after Mark Watson was hired in as Field Engineer in 2013, the Executive Director assigned
supervision of the Electric System Operators to this position on a trial basis. The change was re-
evaluated approximately eight months later and it was at that time that a determination was made to
incorporate this job duty into the Field Engineer job description permanently.

Staff is recommending that the title of this position be changed to Field Engineering Supervisor to
officially capture the supervisory role that was added in 2014. This directly correlates with The
Classification and Compensation System Update for Administrative Employees dated June 1, 2015,
and the proposed update to the administrative employee wage scale that has been included in this
Board packet as agenda item “e” for your review.

Both the Organizational Chart and job description have been included in your packet for your
consideration of approval.

If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation, the following motion would be
appropriate:

MOVED BY » SECONDED BY )

THAT THE BOARD APPROVES THE ORGANIZATIONAL CHART AND JOB
DESCRIPTION FOR THE FIELD ENGINEERING SUPERVISOR AS PRESENTED.

79




80

© I NG 2 olh @ ) ® (©) ®
NVIDINHO3L ¥3a1d INZLSAS JH1D313 - INVISISSY Q1314 STYNDIS DNI¥ILIN SYINYOM ININ NOLLONAOY¥d YIMOd YIdIIN FYOLS AVIH
L 1 1 1 1 |
_
¥ 1 mom_.ﬂ.umajm o i
LSIYI23dS SID ONIY3INIONI G131 YIINIDNI INZLSAS LNIANILNIY34NS INIT
{ I _
I
(1) () (1) (1)
ADOTONHDIL S SINNO2DV ONIY33NIDNI SNOLLYDINNWWINGD g
IWOITT3L 40 YIOVNVIA AN '8 S3DNAYIS 8 SNOILLYY3dO 8 $304N0S3Y H3ITIOUINOD
ADYINT 40 ¥IDVNVIN 30 Y3DVNYIN NYINH 30 Y3DVYNYIN
| 1 1 1 |
m
o
LNYLSISSY NIWAY
®

4012341d IAILN23X3

=i TISNNOD TVYHIN3D

SHYOLD3¥Id 40 Q¥v0og

{TT) 4015 FnpensIUILpY

23ueyo e mmumu_uc_D

(S7) 56 18907 YNIMN

:puasaq

:u0 pJeog ayi Agq paroidde sy
Hey) |euonieziuesiQ

HIMOd ¥ LHOI'T

ALID 3ISs¥43IAVHEL




TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
JOB DESCRIPTION

FIELD ENGINEERING SUPERVISOR

Supervised By: Manager of Operations & Engineering
Supervises: Electric System Operators

Position Summary:

Under the general direction of the Manager of Operations & Engineering, directs the mapping
and facilities management functions of the Engineering Department. Responsible for creating
and distributing accurate up-to-date mapping and informational databases; meeting with
customers, developers, contractors and other agencies; designing new and upgraded services and
developing material lists and cost estimates. Responsible for the direct supervision of the Electric
System Operators,

Essential Job Functions:

An employee in this position may be called upon to do any or all of the foltowing essential functions. These examples do not
include all of the duties which the employee may be expected 1o perform. To perform this job successfully, an individual must be
able to perform each essential function satisfactorily.

1. Performs all functions necessary for the physical accounting of facilities constructed as part
of the expansion of the distribution and transmission system.

2. Performs field staking of proposed projects and develops material lists for the projects,
including estimating cost and construction time. Prepares and acquires necessary permits
and easements.

3. Prepares and administers all phases of bid, award, contract and construction. Closely
supervises contracted services; which may include tree trimming services.

4, Develops methods for capturing field data and providing it to persons responsible for
updating electric distribution and transmission facilities maps. Audits and evaluates existing
field data and maps to insure accuracy of existing infrastructure.

5. Develops data networks to provide access to system facilities databases and provides
computer support for all service center functions. Fully utilizes software and hardware
platforms.

6. Creates and maintains databases developed from the above systems to allow for the digital
representation of system models for the planning of future facility expansion. Provides

81




Field Engincering Supervisor

Page 2

analysis of the existing and future system modeis. Utilizes AutoCAD and ArcGIS to
complete mapping tasks.

7. Supervises the day to day operations of the Electric System Operators.

8. Provides support and installation assistance for various systems such as SCADA, substation
equipment, metering at TCL&P and customer facilities, or wherever technical support is
needed.

9. Assists and works closely with the Manager of Operations & Engineering and Line
Superintendent in daily operations.

10. Keeps abreast of changes in the electric utility industry through attendance at conferences
and meetings, contacts with other professionals, reading literature and participating in
professional organizations.

11. Performs related work as required.

Required Knowledge, Skills, Abilities and Minimum Qualifications:

The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skills, abilities and minimum qualifications necessary to
perform the essential functions of the position. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities
to perform the job.

Associate degree in engincering or computer science, plus three years experience in
working with electrical distribution systems.

State of Michigan Vehicle Operator’s License.
Working knowledge of electric distribution system design and layout.

Working knowledge of National Electric Safety Codes, OSHA regulations, and other
codes and regulations governing power distribution.

Thorough knowledge of the principles and practices of electric generation and
distribution.

Thorough knowledge of utility system planning, operations and safety.

Skill in designing and developing new electric connections and systems.

Skill in utilizing a variety of electrical testing and control devices.

Ability to establish effective working relationships and use good judgment, initiative and

resourcefulness when dealing with employees, contractors, other public utility
professionals, customers and the public.

82




Field Engineering Supervisor

Page 3

. Ability to use basic office equipment such as telephones calculator, photocopier, fax,
personnel computer and software applications including word processing, spreadsheet,
database, CAD and GIS.

. In addition to the above requirements, all positions require the ability to read, write,

speak and understand the English language as necessary for the position; the ability to
follow written and oral instructions and the ability to interact positively with other
employees and members of the public. Employees are also expected to possess and
maintain a record of orderly, law-abiding citizenship, sobriety, integrity and loyalty as it
pertains to and reflects upon their employment. Employees must be physically and
mentally able to perform the essential duties of their position without excessive absences.

Physical Demands and Work Environment:

The physical demands and work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters
while performing the essential functions of the job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with
disabilities to perform the essential tunctions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to stand, walk, sit,
use hands and fingers, talk and hear. The employee must be able to squat, stoop or kneel. The
employee must occasionally lift and/or materials of moderate weight. The employee is regularly
required to communicate in person and by telephone, read regular and small print, sit, use limited
mobility in an office setting, use manual dexterity to type and enter data, and use sight to read
and prepare documents and reports.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee regularly works both indoors and outdoors
and regularly drives a motor vehicle between work sites. The employee may work near moving
mechanical equipment. The noise level in the work environment varies from quiet to loud.

Employee Signature - Date
Kelli Schroeder, Human Resources Manager Date
June 2015

83



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
CC: Tim Arends, Executive Director :
From: Kelli Schroeder, Manager of HR & Communications W/’
Date: June 25, 2015
Subject: Updated Wage Scale - TCL&P Administrative Employees

As some of you may recall, a Classification and Compensation Study was completed for TCL&P
administrative employees in June 2009. Through the evaluation of internal and external pay
factors which included an analysis of all positions and a market survey distributed to thirteen
comparable public sector utilities in Michigan, Indiana, Ohio and Wisconsin, the study resulted
in a comprehensive pay system with a recommended grade structure and corresponding pay
ranges for each classification.

Over the past six years, the utility has been annually adjusting the pay ranges to account for the
cost of inflation using CPI-U, Midwest Region. However, staff felt it was time to undergo an
update to the June 2009 study that would take into account position changes as well as changes in
the overall labor market.

The Classification and Compensation System Update for Administrative Employees dated June
1, 2015 has been included in your packet for review. The suggested pay grades and ranges were
based on surveys received from ten participating utilities in Michigan, Ohio and Wisconsin.

Staff is in agreement with the suggested pay grades and ranges specified in the report, with the
exception of Grade 6, Manager of Operations & Engineering. At the April 14, 2015 meeting staff
proposed and the Board approved adding a sixth level at a pay range of $95,000 to $125,000.
These numbers were based on rationale that included APPA’s 2014 Survey of Management
Salaries, the fact that this position is now a combination of what used to be two separate full-time
positions and our need to attract qualified candidates.

Staff is recommending that the attached updated administrative employee wage scale (ACT
Group Salary Ranges) dated July 1, 2015 be approved which reflects recommendations of the
June 2015 report as well as keeping the Grade 6 at a range of $95,000 to $125,000.

In addition to the above attachments, the June 2009 recommended pay grades and comparison
wages have also been included for your review.

(MOTION ON FOLLOWING PAGE)

84




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation, the following motion would be
appropriate:

MOVED BY » SECONDED BY ;

THAT THE BOARD APPROVES THE UPDATED WAGE SCALE FOR TCL&P
ADMINISTRATIVE EMPLOYEES AS PRESENTED.

85



ABojouyos] B wosee] o Jabeuepy

Jajjosuon

Jaaubug weisAg

Josiauadng BuusesuBug prei4

JUBISISSY SABASIUIIPY

§10Z ‘L Ainp aAnoayg
sabuey Aiejeg dnoig) [ oy
lamod R 1yb1y Ajn asionel |

86



TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER

& LIGHT & POWER

Investing Our Energy in You

CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION SYSTEM UPDATE
FOR ADMINISTR ATIVE EMPLOYEES

MuUNICIPAL CONSULTING SER VICES uc

87




MunNICIPAL CONSULTING SER VICES w.c

June 1, 2015

Ms. Kelli Schroeder, PHR

Manager of Human Resources & Communications
Traverse City Light & Power

1131 Hastings Street

Traverse City, MI 49686

Dear Ms.Schroeder,

We have completed the update of the classification and compensation system for administrative
employees for Traverse City Light & Power. This final report presents the results of the study as
well as the documentation required to implement and maintain the classification and

compensation system on an ongoing basis.

The report is organized in a series of sections and appendices as follows:

Section I: Overview of the classification and compensation study;
Section II: Results of the study and suggestions for implementation;
Section III: Classification and compensation system maintenance;
Section IV: Select employee benefits comparison;

Appendix A:  Market survey results;
Appendix B:  Suggested grade and salary structure with additional information;
Appendix C:  Summary of cash-based employee benefits comparison.

e © ¢ ¢ © o o

In summary, the study has resulted in a comprehensive pay system analysis based on
fundamental principles of wage and salary administration. Major tasks in the study process have
included:

Review of individual position information;

Development of a market survey and analysis of the resulting survey data;

Establishment of internal ranking;

Update of the pay grade structure and corresponding suggestions for implementation of a
new compensation system.

Primary components of the completed pay system include:

e The development of a pay grade structure based on an evaluation of internal position
requirements;

Pay ranges that provide a basis for evaluating the current pay levels of employees;

A sample progression schedule for moving employees through pay ranges;
Comparative summary analysis of several select employee benefits;

The data and information necessary for informed decision-making regarding pay and
benefit levels for affected employees;

88




o A final report developed as a system that can be used for ongoing pay system
administration,

We have appreciated the opportunity to assist Traverse City Light & Power in this important

study. Should you have any questions related to this report please contact me at 734.904.4632.

Very truly yours,

7= 1%

Mark W. Nottley, Principal
Municipal Consulting Services ILLC

5269 Daniel Drive B Brighton, M1, 48114 B Phone: 734.904.4632 B FAX: 260.350.0305

89




SECTION 1

OVERVIEW OF THE CLASSIFICATION AND
COMPENSATION STUDY

90



SECTION I

OVERVIEW OF THE CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION STUDY

The classification and compensation analysis contained in this report has been designed
specifically for non-represented employees of Traverse City Light & Power. It encompasses
fundamental principles related to wage and salary administration and the proper evaluation of
internal and external pay factors.

Tn the following subsections we provide information conceming the project approach, the results
of the study and the components of the classification and compensation system that we are
suggesting for administrative employees.

JOB ANALYSIS: THE FIRST MAJOR TASK

To accurately evaluate compensation, it is necessary to gain a strong working knowledge of each
affected position. To accomplish this, we performed the following tasks:

e A variety of data was requested and reviewed including job descriptions, the current pay
schedule and other information related to compensation and pay practices.

¢ Following job description review, all positions were discussed with the Manager of
Human Resources and Communications; to assure a full understanding of each position
including new duties assigned since the prior pay study.

MARKET SURVEY: DETERMINING PAY COMPARABILITY
We then designed and conducted a salary survey. This included the folowing tasks:

e The market comparables used in the 2009 study were used for the market survey (The list
of market comparables is presented in Appendix A with supporting statistics.)

e A survey instrument was then developed which provided a description of each studied
position and elicited information concerning wage levels and several select cash-based
benefits.

e Completed surveys were received from ten participating utilities including:

- Bay City Electric, Light and Power (MI)

- Bowling Green Municipal Utilities (OH)

- Coldwater Board of Public Utilities (MI)

- Grand Haven Board of Power & Light (MI)
- Kaukauna Utilities (W)

I-1

91



- Manitowoc Public Utilities (WI)

- Marquette Board of Power & Light (MI)
- Marshfield Utilities (WI)

- Wyandotte Municipal Utilities (M1)

- Zeeland Board of Public Works (MI)

It should be mentioned that each organization surveyed in this study is unique in its own regard,
with different organizational structures and alternative allocations of duties among employees.
Further, not every employer delivers the same mix of services found in Traverse City Light &
Power. Consequently, we have attempted to carefully scrutinize the assembled date and use only
the information that is applicable to TCLP’s positional pool. Qualifiers concerning the market
data are included in the footnotes of particular exhibits and appendices.

Essentially, the focus of our market analysis has been to determine the likely job market for each
of TCLP’s positions. Our objective was to identify positions with similar responsibilities,
requiring similar knowledge, skill and expertise. (See Appendix A for the market survey and all
related materials.)

PAY STRUCTURE: DEVELOPING PAY GRADES AND SALARY RANGES

The market survey data (contained in Appendix A) provided the basis for developing a
recommended grade structure and corresponding pay ranges for each classification (contained in
Appendix B and discussed in Section IT). Related to this:

o The grade structure organizes the classifications into six pay grades that contain the
ten positions.

e Proposed salary ranges were developed from an analysis of the salary survey data.
The ranges are designed to have midpoint values that approximate the reported
average market levels, The widths of the pay ranges (i.e. 30%) are consistent with
typical municipal range widths and are constant for all positions and grades.

¢ As later discussed, before being finalized, the pay ranges were increased by .7% to
account for differences in fiscal years and prepare TCLP for July 1, 2015 (i.e. FY
2015-16) implementation. The increase of .7% represents the change in the CPI-U
Midwest index for the previous calendar year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS OF THE REPORT

The suggested pay ranges are discussed in greater detail in the following Section 1T of the report
along with approaches for implementation of the pay/grade structure and related pay system.

Section III of the report focuses on techniques for maintaining the pay system for ongoing use in
the event that TCLP elects to adopt the suggested pay system.

I-2

92




Lastly, Section 1V provides discussion regarding the comparison of several cash-based employee
benefits, TCLP may find this information to be useful in evaluating the impact of employee
benefits on total cash compensation. Survey results pertaining to benefits are summarized in a
matrix in Appendix C of the report.

I-3

93




SECTION 11

RESULTS OF THE STUDY AND SUGGESTIONS FOR
IMPLEMENTATION

94



SECTION II

RESULTS OF THE STUDY AND SUGGESTIONS FOR
IMPLEMENTATION

In regard to implementing the compensation study results, it is our policy to provide suggestions
and supporting data for consideration, but not attempt to establish compensation policies for our
clients. Adoption of the study's findings is a policy matter to be decided by TCLP which must
consider financial and other policy constraints. Within this context we offer the following.

SUGGESTED PAY GRADES AND RANGES

As discussed in Section I, job analysis and market survey provide the basis for the suggested pay
grades and ranges contained in Table 1 below. Midpoints are structured to reflect market
averages, as determined by the market survey. The suggested grade and salary structure is also
illustrated in Appendix B with information pertaining to point parameters and market averages.

Table 1
Traverse City Light & Power
Suggested Pay Grades and Ranges

Recommended Ranges

Grade Position Minimum Midpoint Maximum
1 Administrative Assistant 36,340 41,791 47,241
2 Computer Systems Specialist 52,539 60,420 68,301

Manager of Energy Services and Key Accounts

3 Field Engineering Supervisor 66,112 76,029 85,945
System Engineer

4 Manager of Human Resources and
Communications
Line Superintendent

71,803 82,574 93,345

A Controller 80,560 92,644 104,728
Manager of Technology and Telecommunications

6 Manager of Operations and Engineering 89,317 102,714 116,111

Ranges have been updated by .7% for July 1, 2015 implementation. .7% reflects year-to-year increase in the CPI-U
Midwest for the prior calendar year.

Red indicates that the incumbent in the classification is currently paid above range maximum.

Green indicates that the incumbent in the classification is currently paid below range minimum.

In regard to the above, incumbent employees have salaries that are below, above or within the
suggested salary ranges. These situations are discussed separately below.

II-1

95



An employvee with wage level below tlhe range mininium

An employee with a current wage level below the minimum of the suggested range is referred to
as a “green circle.” in human resources terminology. There are two green-circled classifications;
the Field Engineering Supervisor and the Manager of Human Resources and Communications.

It is suggested that that the green-circled positions be moved to at least the minimum of the
range, thereby assuring consistent application of the developed pay system. Ultimately, the
timing of this action (if at all) will be a Board decision considered within the context of
compensation philosophy and ability-to-pay. The combined cost to move the two incumbents to
the minimums of the suggested ranges would be $10,432. This represents a 13.9% increase for
the Field Engineering Supervisor and a 3.4% increase for the Manager of Human Resources and
Communications over current pay levels.

An employee with current wage exceeding the range maximium

Conversely, employees who are above the maximum of the suggested range are termed to be
“red circle”. There is also one incumbent in the group with this designation: the Line
Superintendent,

One approach to red-circled positions is to simply deny any further pay increases until the
employee’s wage falls within the adjusted range. Some public employers temper the denial of
further pay increases by continuing to allow some type of annual increase. Options might
include:

+ Continuing to allow an annual across-the-board inflationary increase.
¢ Providing an annual across-the-board inflationary increase that is a one-time payment and
not added to base compensation. This would freeze base wage until such time that the

wage level falls within the pay range.

Employees with salaries falling within the range

The salaries of the other employees fall within the suggested salary ranges. Whether the wages of
these employees should, or should not be adjusted, is an issue that TCLP must consider within
the larger context of compensation philosophy. In our experience, organizations have widely
differing philosophies concerning pay levels. As examples:

» Some organizations choose to maintain employee wages low in relation to the market;
this approach typically encourages turnover.

e Other organizations seek to maintain the midpoint level of the market, thus providing
compensation at an average level.

e Some organizations prefer to move employees through an established pay range over the
course of employment, sometimes exceeding the market average as a means of rewarding
longer-term job commitment and job knowledge.

Ir-2

96



In regard to the above, the continuum provided in Chart 1 illustrates how compensation levels
within the suggested range may be considered with regard to job knowledge and expertise and
how this is philosophically linked to the salary range. Understanding this concept may assist
TCLP’s Board in considering the rationale for a step system as later discussed.

Chart 1: Continuum of Job Competency

Range o Range
Minimum Range Midpoint Maximum
< >
New to the job, still Has good job knowledge and Has experience and output
learning position or a meets expectations in terms of that exceeds expectations
poor performer job performance

As seen in Chart 1, newer employees who are not functioning on a completely independent level
or employees who are not sufficiently experienced may be appropriately placed at or near the
range minimum,

Over time, training and experience on the job will typically lead to increased competency for
most individuals. Employees will progressively move to the middle of the range, near the
midpoint as job experience is acquired. As employees continue to acquire increased competency
and value with passing years, they are rewarded with salaries toward the top of the range. The
issue of range placement is further discussed below.

CURRENT RANGE PLACEMENT: A COMPA-RATIO ANALYSIS

With the adoption of a new pay structure the relative range position of each position incumbent
can be illustrated. To assist TCLP in evaluating these changes, we have prepared additional
information concerning the current range position of each employee. Table 2 below depicts the
numerical relationship between employees' current salaries and suggested range midpoints.

-3

97



Table 2
Traverse City Light & Power
Compa-Ratio Analysis

Current | Recommended | Compa-

Position Wage Mid-Point Ratio

Administrative Assistant $46,619 $41,791 1.12
Manager of Energy Services and Key Accounts $56,826 $60,420 0.94
Field Engineering Supervisor $58,053 $76,029 0.76
System Engineer $68,765 $76,029 0.90
Manager of Human Resources and Communications | $69,430 $82,574 0.84
Line Superintendent $93,850 $82,574 1.14
Controller $86,986 $92,644 0.94
Manager of Technology and Telecommunications $84,474 $92,644 0.91
Manager of Operations and Engineering $94,536 $102,714 0.92
Average of Group | 0.94

A compa-ratio of less than one is below the range midpoint, or market average, and a number
greater than one indicates a salary exceeding the midpoint. Table 2 shows that TCLP’s
employees are paid, on average, 94% of what their counterparts in comparable communities
earn, or roughly 6% below the market average.

MOVING EMPLOYEES THROUGH THE RANGE
With market competitive pay ranges in place, TCLP will need to establish a plan for moving
employees through the ranges over time. Two of the more common approaches for this are

discussed below.

A Traditional Step System

A traditional step system provides a rational basis for determining salary adjustments and moving
employees through the range over time, thereby acknowledging time on the job and increased
proficiency. Should TCLP desire such a system, Table 3 (or some variation) could be utilized.

I1-4

98



Table 3
Traverse City Light & Power
Traditional Step Systen — 13 Step Example

Mid
Min Point Max

Grade Stepl Step2 Step3 Step4d StepS5  Step 6 Step 7 Step 8 Step 9 Step10  Step 11 Step 12 Step 13

1

SN L B W o

$36,340  $37,248  $38,157 $39,065 $39974 840882 $41,79 $42,699 $43,607 $44,516  $45424  §46,333 $47,241
$52,539 853,853  $55,166 $56480 $57,793 359,107 360,420  $61,733 $63,047 $64,360 365,674  $66,987  $68,301
366,112 367,765 369,417 3571070 372,723 874,376 $76,029  $77,681 $79,334 $80,987  $82,640  $84292  §85945
$71,803 73,599 875394 §77,189 578984  $80,779  $82,574 384,369 386,164 387,959  $89,754 391,549  $93,345
$30,560  $82,574 $84,588 586,602 388,616  §90,630 392,644  $94,658 $96,672 $98,686  $100,700 $102,714 $104,728
$89,317  $91,549  $93,782 396,015 $98,248 $100481 $102,714 8104947  $107,180  $109,413 $111,646 $113,879 $116,111

The example step system shown in Table 3 contains thirteen steps (note: any number of steps
could be used). This thirteen-step example allows for the reflection of range midpoints at Step 7
and provides a logical pattern of increases based on the suggested range widths. This step
structure can be used with longevity or merit-based systems, or some combination of the two.
Further, increases can be applied based on half- or quarter-step progression; full step increases
are an option but not required.

When considering a step system, it may be helpful to think of it as a way to join job performance
and competency in a position with the appropriate pay levels or step placement (as depicted
previously in the continuum shown in Chart 1). For example, a new employee could be hired at
the range minimum (Step 1), assuming labor market conditions permit. New hires will typically
need time to become familiar with the organization and learn the nuances of the position. During
this period a salary at or near the range minimum may be appropriate (Steps 1 through 4).

Conversely, if TCLP requires a highly experienced individual to fill a vacancy, and/or the labor
market is tight, a new hire may command a salary at, or in excess of, the range midpoint.
Essentially, each new hire should be considered individually — the range and steps are a guide to
help structure this decision process.

Regardless of where an employee hires in, over time he/she will either master the job duties and
perform with competency or leave TCLP’s employ. If the former is the case, an appropriate
salary level may be at or near the range midpoint (Steps 5 through 9). The range midpoint
approximates market averages; therefore, competent employees with a sound working
knowledge of the position should be able to command competitive salaties near this level.
Related, TCLP may ultimately need to compensate employees near this level to remain
competitive with the labor market — particularly in times of full employment.

The most exceptional performers, who are valued for their experience and work ethic, or who
have expanded their responsibilities, may be rewarded with salaries above prevailing market
rates, closer to the range maximum (Steps 10 through 13).

Though performance-based pay adjustments are the recommended approach to awarding pay
increases, time-on-the-job will play a role to some extent. Competency in a position and
significant contributions to the organization as a whole, usually come with time. While longevity

Ir-5

99



is not recommended as a primary factor in determining pay, it may prove useful in terms of
assessing job knowledge and expertise.

An Open Range Systemn

An alternative to the traditional step system is an open range approach. This system uses less
formalized salary increases and is sometimes viewed as more flexible. With an open range
system, salaries can be established or adjusted at any level within the appropriate salary range for
individual position incumbents.

It should be noted that some believe this increased flexibility leaves the pay system more
vulnerable to less consistent decision-making. TCLP should weigh its desire for flexibility
against its need for accountability and consistency in deciding which system, traditional step or
open range, would best meet organizational needs.

INTEGRATING A PERFORMANCE EVALUATION SYSTEM

Frequently, a performance evaluation process is integrated with the compensation plan to
provide a more competitive basis for awarding salary increases beyond the annual cost of living
increase.

With an evaluation tool, TCLP could assess each employee's level of job performance. Well-
grounded compensation decisions could then follow. Examples of such integration are provided

below using the implementation options presented above.

Using Performance Evaluation With a Traditional Step System

Should TCLP decide to use a traditional step system, an annual performance evaluation process
could be incorporated to promote a merit-based range progression to achieving step increases.
Using this approach, TCLP would need to determine the number of steps to be awarded based on
each evaluation ranking.

For example:

Excellent: 1 step
Above Average: 3/4 step
Satisfactory: 172 step
Below Average: 0 step
Unsatisfactory: 0 steps

100




Using Performance Evaluation With an Open Range System

Should TCLP choose an open range approach, it is suggested that performance levels be
assigned a percentage increase. Employees achieving a particular evaluation ranking would then
have their base wage increased by the appropriate percentage.

For example:

Excellent: 2.00%
Above Average: 1.50%
Satisfactory: 1.00%
Below Average: 0.00%
Unsatisfactory: 0.00%

A Combined System

TCLP may wish to use a range progression system that rewards both longevity and merit, One
way to achieve this would be to use automatic step increases initially (assuming satisfactory
performance), with merit based progression after midpoint has been achieved.

For example:

New Hire Step 1 (Range Minimum)
1*" Anniversary Step 2
2™ Anniversary Step 3
3™ Anniversary Step 4
4™ Anniversary Step 5
5™ Anniversary Step 6
6" Anniversary Step 7 (Range Midpoint)

After year six, employees could then earn additional pay increases based on merit and
performance factors, with the level of funding determined by TCLP in budget deliberations.

PLACING NEW EMPLOYEES

Original appointment to any position will ideally be made at the minimum rate of the suggested
pay range. Advancement can then proceed through successive increases. However, each new hire
will inevitably be unique, and may in fact represent a situation in which greater experience and
expertise are objectives in recruitment, Moreover, a shortage may exist in the labor pool for
somme positions, thus dictating the need to offer a higher salary. Therefore, each new hire should
be assessed individually and placed at a range level consistent with TCLP’s needs and market

-7

101




demands. In light of the competitive environment for some professional positions, we would

suggest that TCLP retain a high level of latitude in assessing individual situations and new hires.

PLACEMENT OF EXISTING EMPLOYEES WITHIN THE NEW PAY GRADE
STRUCTURE

The compa-ratio analysis contained in Table 2 provides information regarding the pay levels of
each employee relative to the newly suggested salary range midpoints. Discussion concerning
the treatment of red-circled and green-circled positions is also included.

Additionally, TCLP must determine what level of adjustments (if any) should be provided to
other employees concurrent with the implementation of the new pay system. As mentioned, this
is a budgetary and management issue that is not in our purview, However, we can offer the
following explanation on a viable option that is available to TCLP if a step system is chosen.

More specifically, TCLP will need to align the wages of current employees with the step system,

One common method would be to move each employee to the next highest step in their
respective salary ranges. This will result in an initial pay increase that will vary from employee
to employee depending on their current distance from the next highest step. However, it will be
modest — representing no more than one step increase (i.e. 2.5%) and in most cases significantly
less, The primary purpose of this approach is to establish the pay system and the relative
positioning of each employee within a suggested step level within the new pay ranges. This
could be done immediately or concurrent with the next wage adjustment cycle.

II-8

102



SECTION III

CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION SYSTEM
MAINTENANCE

103




SECTION I1I

CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION SYSTEM MAINTENANCE

A classification and compensation program, once designed and implemented, is not self-
sustaining, It needs proper maintenance to continue to serve its purpose. Maintaining the
program requires reviewing, adjusting and controlling salary structures so they continue to be
effective. Key points are discussed below.

MAINTAINING THE PAY GRADE STRUCTURE

As a result of reorganization, new programs or changes in management procedures, new jobs
may be established and the complexity of existing jobs may change.

For new positions, TCLP should define the particular duties of the position and create an
accurate job description. For altered positions, differences like increased requirements for
education and/or experience, an increase in the technical nature of the job, new requirements for
a specialized skill, additional supervisory responsibilities or other significant changes could
warrant a reevaluation of the grade assignment. A market study will help establish the financial
impact of these changes.

UPDATING THE COMPENSATION PLAN

Economic conditions, the availability of people, and the prevailing labor market rates will all
impact salary structures. To accurately reflect the labor market, the compensation plan must be
reviewed and adjusted annually.

In this sense, pay adjustments will be a two-step process:

1. A general “across the board” adjustment to each pay range should be made to reflect
inflationary or cost of living increases;

2. Individual-level adjustments based on steps and satisfactory performance should then be
considered.

To adjust the pay plan, TCLP could consider utilizing the Consumer Price Index (CPI). Related,
there are a number of CPI indices that are reported. TCLP should consider the CPI-U for the
Midwest Region for the annual update. The first adjustment to the salary ranges has been made
and is reflected in Table 1 and Appendix B. This adjustment of .7% reflects the change in the
CPI-U Midwest index year over year for the previous calendar year. This action will update the
salary ranges to the market for TCLP’s fiscal year beginning July 1, 20135,

As the system ages and operations and duties continue to evolve, the pay system will eventually

need major update and revision. When this becomes apparent, a full study should be conducted

1 -1

104



to check the adequacy of pay rates and the appropriateness of job descriptions. The typical life
cycle of a pay plan is seven years if properly maintained.

Hr-2

105




SECTION IV

SELECT CASH-BASED EMPLOYEE BENEFITS COMPARISON

106



SECTION 1V

SELECT CASH-BASED EMPLOYEE BENEFITS COMPARISON

In addition to pay data, some cash-based employee benefit information was also solicited from
the utilities included in our survey grouping. The collected information (summarized in
Appendix C) has not been utilized in developing the pay structure. Essentially, it is provided as
supplementary information, which may assist Traverse City Light & Power in determining
relative comparability. Benefits can generally be viewed as a compliment to the base salary. If
benefit levels are generous, an organization may choose to maintain employees at a lower level
of the pay range. In contrast, lower benefit levels may be offset by higher salaries.

For the benefits comparison, we have requested the surveyed utilities” administrative non-union
offerings. In reviewing the benefits data (contained in Appendix C), we have noted the
following:

LONGEVITY AND OTHER BENEFIT ISSUES

Longevity payments are found primarily in the public, as opposed to the private sector. The
rationale for this compensation component is simply that tenure in the job increases job
knowledge and capability and should be compensated. In this sense, longevity is closely linked
to organized labor’s philosophical position that pay should be based on seniority as opposed to
the more discretionary notion of merit. As public sector entities have become more budget
conscious over the prior two decades, elimination of longevity payments has been a frequent
management objective.

Traverse City Light & Power does not provide this benefit. Only two of the ten utilities included
in our market study provide longevity pay. Marquette Board of Light & Power has an annual
payout ranging from $325 to $475 with a five-year minimum seniority. Zeeland Board of Public
Works reports longevity pay ranging from $500 to $1,500 per annum also with a five-year
minimum seniority.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Retirement plans are classified as either defined contribution (investment-based, variable) or
defined benefit (traditional pension, fixed). Key findings pertaining to retirement benefits include
the following:

e Eight of the ten surveyed utilities provide a defined benefit (DB} retirement program for
employees as does Traverse City Light & Power. These traditional plans pay a fixed
pension to eligible retirees. Employee-required contributions to these plans are difficult to
average due to methods of reporting but the average appears to be roughly 5% of wage.
Traverse City Light & Power does not require an employee contribution and also
provides a potential IRS 457 employer contribution of up to 6%.

IV-1

107



» Two of the utilities have defined contribution retirements. The DC plan is a “pay as you
go” approach in which accrued liability and future pension obligations are avoided. As
such, it represents a transparent and portable retirement option. The employer
contribution averages 8% for the two utilities providing a DC plan.

HEALTH CARE PREMIUM COST SHARING

The specifics of health care coverage differ widely among employers and detailed comparison
of health plans is a task that is beyond the scope of this engagement. However, premium cost
sharing is one important factor that can be summarized.

Traverse City Light & Power requires a 30% premium cost sharing. This is higher than any of
the surveyed utilities. Two require 20% and seven in total have a percentage-based requirement,
Two have a fixed dollar amount and one (Coldwater Board of Public Utilities) has no premium
cost sharing requirement.

OTHER CASH PERQUISITES

Other reported cash perquisites include cars, car allowances and bonuses. In regard to the latter,
only Marquette Board of Light & Power reports an annual bonus program. Like Traverse City
Light & Power, four of the ten utilities report car allowances or car use.

As noted, cash-based benefits can generally be viewed as a compliment to the base salary, If
benefit levels are overly generous, an organization may choose to maintain employees at a lower
level of the pay range. In contrast, lower benefit levels may be offset by higher salaries. For
Traverse City Light & Power, in comparison to the survey group, there are some areas (such as
health care cost sharing) where employees pay more. Conversely, retirement appears to be more
generous than the average. On balance, there does not appear a level of difference that should
significantly influence management decisions on base wage levels either negatively or positively.

V-2

108




APPENDIX A

MARKET SURVEY RESULTS

109




Appendix A-1
Traverse City Light & Power
Listing of Utilities Used as Pay Comparables

Customer | Revenue

Utility Base (in millions) | Employees
Traverse City Light & Power 12,400 36 38
Bay City Electric Light - Power 20,056 36 43
Bowling Green Municipal Utilities (OH) 14,653 51 -
Coldwater Board of Public Utilities 7,000 34 46
Grand Haven Light & Power 13,525 40 70
Kaukauna Utilities (W) 14,900 65 57
Manitowoc Public Utilities (WI) 18,500 76 88
Marquette Board of Power and Light 17,000 36 75
Marshfield Utilities (WI) 13,000 40 e
Wyandotte Municipal Utilities 12,400 i 97
Zeeland Board of Public Works 6,200 27 23
AVERAGE OF OTHER UTILITIES 13,723 45 60

Dash indicates data not provided
Source: survey of listed entities

110




*SONI[IN PASI] JO ASAINS 199MOF
-suomysod opdynu jo e5eIoAL 10 A[INOT] WL UOISIIAUOD SJBIIPUL SI[EI]
‘ofuer Are[es Jo jutodprur s2ed1pUl Plog

uonisod ajqeredwos ou saeoIpUl Yseq
'y xipuaddy ur pargioads se safuer Led SuruSisse pue SurdoloAp UL PAIRPISUOD UG IABY BIEP JO3IRW Y} 0] SIOYI[END
“SOTINP IUWIOS SIPBNUOI J2pTOL Se uonisod oy} 10f YSIy poIopIsuoD SI $JUN0d0y K93 pue 2014105 A310ug JO I9ZeUBA 10J BIEp oaneredwo)
‘uon1s0d J29DL 24} 10J PAUOISIAUD PUER PIUSISSE SI1INP U} JO UOHRISPISUOD UI MO] PAISPISUOD ST 1010911 1] 10F BIep saneredwo)
“PIIDPISUCD OS[E 1B J3TD.L, Ul SUOHEIIUNUILIOD Y}IM PIIBIOOSSE SOIISU0dSal [eUoIHppE 91 ‘(2491 a5uel FuIysijqeiss U] “uenndo o Ul SWod3Ne Jurodpiu-resu
aAneiuasaidal v opiacid paSeioAr UM SMO[ pue sYSTY Sururewoy “Anfiqisuedsal apim-£)1o 0} onp uoSLRAWOd U3 WO PAJRUNUI[D U SABY SI0I0II( SIVINOSIY UBWNH [BI2AS

1S210N
ﬂ.n nrl [ —_—l 3 3 [ < < < 19 mgtooamqm ﬂvg
SIEHITS| OvL'co1$s | #91°001$ | 08T°9T1S | S80°S6S | 00FOILI$ | 008°06% | LISHFOIS | 910°18$ - LY8101$| 9€596$ suonesad( Jo JSeuery
000Z6% 6L6°18% 061°96% S80°S6$ | 00L°CTI$ | 00€98$ | €TL'Z8$ | 6I8°CLS | 00£'v6$ | 88L'16$ | 986988 Ia[jonuo)
0¥0°6L8$ | 0ST°T6S 0L8°LLS 017°68$ 001°VLS 006°€6$ 00%7°€6$ | LEOV6S | SE9VSS | SES'I8% | 810°98% | 0S8°E6S JuspuRuLIRdng Sur]
@ " < < 13 ct - -~ < 4 G, —t 3 WQOMHNOEEOUO.HOF muﬂ_..m
619°1LS 0S6°I8$ | 0S0°pL$ 00£°36% TS9°6LS | 618°CLS | 61+°T8S | 8ST08% | vLV' PSS SO[OUOO L JO JOSPURI
9re0LS | 009°18% 1€1°€98 018°98% 2 000°38% g - - 016'¢58 | 00 LS | S9L°89% IoouISuy waIsAg
SJUN0IY
000°59% - 069°56% STLLI% - - - - 000°08$ | YOI°LLS | 978°9S$ A93] pue sedIAIRS
AS19ud JO J95euRIA
SUOIJBITUNUINIO)
- : 788°16% 0L0°16% - 00Z°16% 00Z°58% - : - $€8°6L% | 0£7°698 pUe $90110s9Y
UeUIME JO 195BUBIA
< < 3 13 —~c - ¢ < MOWMEGG—SW
oFE0LS - 0LF 79% 0£9°TLS | 009°99% - - e 897°6L% £99°0L$ | £50°85% SupeewSug POt
. ; ; - ] : o W ¥ 1sieroadg
- - S08°19% . 001°99% 89668 005°89$ 961°658 | £52°05% | 020°09% swoysAS 19mdwmon
8€9°cHS = 106°SP$ 4 1£8°I€S . 00£°6£$ . [90°9%8 | SSFIPS | 19€°THS | 619°9F$ | IURISISSY SANRUSTUIIPY
04N | semImN ST FETE sepIm) | S JoMoJ | SoMII) | SOWM[I] | 19M0g |9BBIIAY | JaMOd SNOLLISOd
siqng | [edrunyy | pRYYSIBIAL | 7 3YSIT Jqng | euneymey | Igsry | onqng [[ediunjA| pue | J9JEA | ¥ IYSIT
JO parog | 9330puBAg JO plieog |Jd0MOMUEBIAI Jo paeog | Jo pieog U315y 1YSI L1
puedz7 aponbaey UIARH [J93eMp(oD| Suipmog | o111y ISIIARIL]L,
puesn A1 Aeg

SISEAN JMJIEIA JO uosLiedwo)
J2M0J % WSIT A1) ISIIABLL,
7V xipuaddy

111



NOLLVINHOANI TVNOILLIaav
HLIM HdALINILS AYVIVS ANV HAVAD dALSTIONS

4 XIANHAddV

112



Appendix B
Traverse City Light & Power
Suggested Pay Grade Structure

FY 2015 Market Recommended Ranges
Grade Position Wage Average | Minimum | Midpoint | Maximum
1 Administrative Assistant $46,619 $41,361 36,340 41,791 47241
3 sampuieriysiems ] $60,020 52,539 60420 68301
Specialist
Manager of Energy
Services and Key Accounts $6.428 825102
4 Dol Enginesring $58,053  $70,663 66,112 76,029 85,945
Supervisor
System Engineer $68,765 $74,300
4  Manager of Human
Resources and $69,430 $79,838 71,803 82,574 93,345
Communications
Line Superintendent $93,850 $86,018
5  Controller $86,986 $91,788 80,560 92,644 104,728
Manager of Technology
and Telecommunications fad 470 ¥80,25%
6 Manager of Operationsand g5 356 6101847 89317 102714 116,111
Engineering
Notes:

See notes on Appendix A-2 for qualifiers regarding some market data.
Ranges have been updated by .7% for July 1, 2015 implementation. .7% reflects year-to-year increase in the CPI-U
Midwest year-to-year.
Red indicates that the incumbent in the classification is above range maximum.

Green indicates that at least one incumbent in the classification is below range minimum.

113




APPENDIX C

SUMMARY OF CASH-BASED EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
COMPARISON

114




115

(RT10 10 Saduemol[e

ONl SOA ON SOA oN oN SOA SO A ON oN SIK IeD ‘SOSTIUOQ dAI9DI
speat] Juounredap o
Mwﬂmmw.nm\wmm% ue[q e (yuour
omm?vm\&n .vlw uerd ey dn Ang 10§ 911 | werd oseq S o D oy jo L
- > Vo - 0 -
2497 %07 %01 uoru 1 JoIL 0z1$ 1800 umuIBE Wi 10§ SUON 9y} U0 %07 fed1s] 10d) Aed 1ad ﬁwuu.an
Jo %zl Ppaseq 9Bl jeyy 1o Junoure ‘sak JJ
LLS/L9$/9ES 9107y 105 %S %0¢
) B pUB %01
JUSUWIDSBURIA]
(218D
SO SOK SOA SO L SaX S9X SO x ON SOX S Se X Ieay 01 2INALYUod
soohordurs og
(uonnqruuod i
*AJLIoruas JTokordwd uonnqLyuod oyt
= . uonnqLIuod g sookordwe wnurxe
J9y3SIy weid D@ o1 | 948'9 pue soKordms ‘ .
I | Satardis ueid D parmbaz B JoRIIUOD 05071 WISAS JoAordws uerd
. S %8 S i _. 0} UONNgLIUeD UIDISAS 789 “UOU %pZ'0T | 9 107 %0 | TUSWamay | g I0¥ %S| %9 ' gum g 103 paanbal
ue[d Dg 01 | IeAojdue %20 . - WI2)SAS - -
Iokodwia 94/ | UISTOISIAN soako[due a1e1s o1y uerd /g 98eyuao1ad “saA J1
uonnqLyuod %01 Apuarma) ; ! JUSUIAIT)OL . .
30 %08 RE[UOD %L 9 E 9ARY OSTY
Aorduio 049 oJel [enuue UISUOISI A -] 103 %0
30 %05 ki
{ITUSUIDINRI 0}
omqrnuoo saako[dma
ON oN s ON SOK SO SOL SOL S9K So X SOX op ‘os JT ¢ uerd
(dQ) yyeusq peuyep
® 0ABY NOK 0
005°[ (SIK+0€) SLYS *SJUNOWE Je[[Op
- 51 - - 01 ('s1£ §-6) - - - - - - - Io saSeiuoolad
00sS $ZES Jo oFuey 157] oseo[d ‘seh J1
(Aed Arassuo]
=p g ON oN SO X oN ON oN ON ON ON ON 9A12091 s99A0[duId
JATIRLSIUIWIPE O]
SHAOAN sanIN) sanInN Iamog » sanInIN sanIIN Iamog ¥ s s 1Mo Jamod SULIAJO 3Jauag
sqng | reddiungy | pRUYSIEA |1YSIY jo pleog aqng guneyney | Jysry jo pieog | dqng [ediunpy | puejysry | 3ysry H1o
Jo pieog | 9110pUBAAA ayanbaey J0MOJIUBIA] UJIABH puElS) | JO pieog uRID) QLI | ISIdABA],
PUB[IZ J9jeMploD) |  Surmog L1 Aeg

sjjouag paseg-yse)) A9y jo uosLiedwo))
Apm§ wonyesudaduwio)) puy UOIJBIIFISSED)

D xrpuaddy

J9M0J % ST A ISIIARL],



SINNU PAISI] JO A2AING :90JN0G

116

(uwononpoig
(1030011 Jo 1010211
JURISISS Y ‘192uIsug
pue 1012911 uorssImsueI],
"paLees aALNOIXT) 00S$ 2 uonNQLISI | S9OUBAO[[E QoUBMO][E AJroads
J1 S[OIRA 01 (geIs ¥) 00§ _ - vaﬂ_.moyctu&:m Ied : - 120 007$ aseard ‘sak 1
- Aueduio) - 20UBMO[[E T8 uonnquusiy | pagtoadsun
"SAOUBMO[[B soueuLOyIed “JaSeuely
1ed ON /s10afoad [BISUSD))
BIIX2 U0 saseq [2IYDA 10
S9SNUOQ [ENUU
T TR Smwwwwm% z T W RTINS ) MOJ | 1oA0g % | SULDQO IURg
SHOA | SDNGN | SBOBA | Jomog® | somimn s Br1jopieog | onang | redorungy | pueiysiy | S A
anqng [eddrungAl | payYsIeAl |1ysiy jo pieoqg Mqnd oo ﬁu%«: v_”_n._o Jo .P_mom :.&..U QLI | ISIdABLJ,
jo pieog | anopuedm SRPIBIEME 4 2001 ey N 1empio) | Sumog | And Aeg
pueeaz

(p,1u0d) syyauag A jo uosLredwo)
Apn)g uonesuaduwio) puy woyeIYIsse[)
A1p ayrey) sprdey Sig

D xipuaddy



TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER

CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION STUDY
June, 2009

P

REHMANN ROBSON
Certified Public Aceéeownmtants
17




Traverse City Light And Power
Classification and Compensation System
Recommended Pay Grades and Ranges

Current | Market Recommended Ranges
Grade Position Wage | Average | Minimum | Midpoint | Maximum
1 Administrative Assistant $37,283 340,251 35,000 40,250 45,500
2 Field Engineering Supervisor $56,442  $53,623 46,655 53,653 60,652
Human Resources Specialist $53,468  $53,305
3 System Engineer - $57,125 49,921 57,409 64,897
4 Line Superintendent $83,678  $75,474 64,398 74,058 83,717
Manager of Telecommunications Technology $70,007  $72,435
Manager of Communications and Energy Services ~ $72,072 $72,370
5 Energy Supply Manager $85,072  $87.914 75,024 86,277 97,531
Chief Engineer $94,162  $85,239
Controller $77,709  $85,544
Operations Manager $95,181  $87,699

118




119

AdAINS UCSQOY UUTWIYSY :901N0S

SATLLL d%¥T1DL TVALDY HDLVIA LON AVIA ANV SASOdUNd ATAUNS O TUV SATLLL NOLLISOd JA09V YALON
S0OIAIOS JOWIOISNT JO J0JI2|(] PUE J03DDJ)(] SUOHEIUNWIWOY ‘1032040 Bupospep jo ebrioay

0LETLS ¥ OLE'TLS TLO'TLS "SIAS ABIIU/SUOHEIUNWWIO]) JO JIBLULA

98¢°69S | 000'ELS | PLL'SLS 000°CLS 000'9L8 000°8LS 0ST'LLS 000°6LS 01L°€98 965°188 8£S°18S PLP'SLS 8LY'ERS puduLdng sul

PP 188 09L°L6S 860°68S 000°5LS 0r9°983 000°¢01S 000°£6% 005°88% 000°88% 1L5°8LS 669°L8S 181°56S apsrury suonedo

918°95S 16L°0LS 000°9LS 669°£8% 0L8'FLS SEF'TLS LOOTOLS SUOLUIUNWWO0III L JO JISLUL A

0007058 0St'LSS 000°65S 058°65% 000°09% SEP6ES £29°ESS ThH'958 Jostatadng SuLamSuy pRLg

0STE98 0007158 STI'LSS . 12UIBUT WASAS

001°+6% 000585 | 000°ELS | LLL98S 95L°08% 0Er'PLS 000°+6$ 000°£6S 005°88% 000°L8% 00T°£88 001°¢8% GETS8S TILF6S 22UIBUY JPID

107568 059°98% 000°56% 000°5LS FI6TLBS TLOS8S aageuepy Ajddng Asadug

865°THS 9Z5'0FS | 000°LES | I8E'1SS 861°CES 000°6£$ 910°6T$ SEL'LPS 009°€¢S STSLYS PTI'6LS 90C'ErS 1ST0FS £8TLES JUL)SISSY daNTISUIWpPY

000°6L$ SETIS6S 0FS LSS 006°8+§ 000°SL$ 00L°S5S 09L°SFS SOEESS 89F°ESS (A1) 1s1E122dg 251083y uewng

6zt 1 6% 15F°6LS 9Fr 0LS 0997188 000°LLS 000768 009668 000'F8$ 856'688 668'88% rrSUSes 6OL'LLS A[0.Nu0)

‘N 058 SHAOAN : 5 e} (NI | sy .:._n:
FGTS J0 MUdAY | Mgy Naumtuv : Ny 5 1) (IAA) $an8uy | put Jamog sanun " aa) pueyay | aqqng SN ...a.::._ soqrardwo))
—foang 10 patog ledungyl | sanun 5_. 1N PRULSIEI | Jo patog jedvungy saunun wonegy | Jo parog ledpiuna Bysiy a9y Joasumany | . pLL qor
2002 VdaV puepz mopuripy | naag | vysvuop SHnbItiy JOMOMUL JA] Jaodsuvso tuneyney putan | meapod ...”_u..“ ”...um_ 1D Aeg AJID d5AdAL |,

SUOIHSOJ M1 01 SASEAA Jo uostiedwo)
19M0g 3 ST A1) 9SI2ABA ],
g xipuaddy




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

QsT.Isl?

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

(100 YEARS

Date: June 22, 2015
Subject: 2015 Renewable Energy Biennial Filing

To: Light & Power Board
From: Jessica Wheaton, Manager of Energy Services & Key AccountsQ//c>

Attached is the 2015 Renewable Energy Biennial Filing that was prepared by the Michigan Public
Power Agency (MPPA) on behalf of Traverse City Light & Power (TCL&P). It is a requirement of
Public Act 295 that the utility files an update plan every two years with the Michigan Public Service
Commission (MPSC) that shows the utility will have enough renewable energy in its generation
portfolio to meet the state mandate. The filing included in your packet covers program years 2016
and 2017, with a forecast through 2029. Because the future of Michigan’s renewable energy portfolio
standard is still unknown, the filing included in the packet is status-quo. TCL&P is currently meeting
and exceeding the 10% renewable energy mandate and will continue to do so.

Before submitting the attached filing to the MPSC, TCL&P is required to offer an opportunity for the
public to comment on the plan. Those comments will then be submitted with the plan. Although
there is not a motion associated with this agenda item, [ respectfully request that an opportunity for
public comment be offered.

MPPA will file the attached report and minutes from today’s meeting showing the opportunity for
public comment with the MPSC on July 1, 2015.

120




TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER

RENEWABLE ENERGY PLAN
U-16635

JUNE, 2015

Based on this Renewable Energy Plan (REP) Traverse City Light & Power
(City) will have the required Renewable Energy Credits (RECs) for the REP
time period of 2015-2029 thereby complying with PA 295.

The primary source of RECs is participation in the Michigan Public Power
Agency (MPPA) Granger and North American Natural Resources (INANR)
Projects. These projects will utilize landfill gas for electric power generation
from a variety of locations in Michigan and possibly in neighboring states.

The City also has a purchase agreement to obtain credits from Heritage's
Stoney Corners Wind Farm.

The City will have excess RECs to sell during various time periods throughout
the REP planning period. Selling of RECs represents a source of income to
the City which will reduce overall power supply costs. The cost per REC will
be determined to a large extent by market forces in the Michigan REC market.
This REP assumes the sale of some of the excess RECs keeping the balance in
reserve.

The City will comply with Section 45 of PA 295 which refers to methods of
notification to customers charges, if any, for costs associated with its REP.

The City had a pre-existing policy in place to develop and include renewable
energy project costs with their power supply cost recovery, therefore, there are
no incremental costs of compliance. If RECs were to be purchased at some
point in the future then there would be an incremental cost of RECs for the
additional RECs purchased and would be included in a surcharge accordingly.

121




A B C J K L M N Q P Q R S T U \' W X
1 |TRAVERSE CITY
2
3 |GRANGER o
[ 4] 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
5
<] . . .
7 INET GENERATION BWH e 8,082 9,641 9,615 9,615 9,615 9,641 9,615 9,815 9,615 9,641 9,615 9,615 9,615 9,641 9,615
8 |capaciTy MW 1.024 1,220 1.220 1,220 1,220 1.220 120 1,220 1.220 1.220 1.220 1.220 1.220 1.220 1.220
9
| 10 |RenEwaBLE ENERGY CREDITS | ] 1 _
11 | BASE GENERATION RECS 8,082 9,841 9,615 9615 9,615 9,641 9,615 9,615 9,615 9,641 9,615 9,815 9,615 9,641 9,615
12 | ON-PEAK & MICH INCENT RECS RECS Iz 973 1,224 1,016 1,016 913 916 913 913 913 916 913 3 913 916 913
13
14] ToTAL RECS 9,055 10,865 10,630 10,630 10,528 10,557 10,528 10,528 10,528] 10,557 10,528 10,528 10,528 10,557 10,528
15 }
16 - .
17 |GRANGER UNIT COST $7 MWh s 8916 | § 9139 | $ u367 | $ 95.01 | § 9841 | % 100.87 | $ 10340 | 105.98 | § 108.63 | § 11135 | § 11413 | 8 11668 [§ 11991 s 12290 | § 125.98
[ 18] o&M $ MW 13 no1® -3 T . S £ ZU-S . SURR S - |$ - 1% - 18 - |8 - 1% - |8 - 13 - 1S -
18] Apmin S/ 3AWh s 062410 | § 0.63970 | § 0.65570 | § 0.67209 | § 0.68888 | 5 070611 | 8 0.72377 | 3 074186 |$  0.7604% | $ 077942 | § 0.79800 | § 0.81887 | § 0.83935 | § 086033 | § 088184
20 fWDS CHARGES $/ MAvn 5 - 3 - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ B - $ - $ - $ - 3 - k) - |8 - $ -
21 HINCREMENTAL UNIT COST S/ REC 3 8978 | $ 9203 |5 9433 | % 9668 | § 99.10 | § 10158 | § 10412 | § 106.72 | § 109.39 | § 112.i2 | § 11493 | 5 117.80 | § 120.75 | § 12376 | § 126.86
22 [TOTAL INCREMENTAL COST s s 725p0483|s se7210.11 )5 00601480 |§ ©20587.76 |$ 952827.45|5 07932389 | 1,001,06434 | $ 1,026,090.95 | $ 1,051,743.23 | § 1,08099033 | § 1,104,887.73 | § 1,132,61242 | § 1,160,027.73 | § 1,193211.06 | § 1.219,699.70
23 | witHPILT s 104]5 75462002 |§ 92270787 |§ 94319148 |§  966,771.27 |§  990940.55 | $ 101849684 | § 104110692 |§ 1,067,13450 | §_ 1,093812.96 |§ 1,124,229.95 | § 1,149,187.24 | § 1,177.91692 | $ 1,207,364.84 | § 1,240,39.51 | 5 1,260,487.69
24
25 |INTERCONNECTION GOSTS 3 s 10,183 | § R SE) Soi% ) - |8 - |§ - |8 o8 - |8 - |s - 18 - |s k3 -
26 | witHPILY $ 104 § 10,569 | $ - s - s - s - |s - Is B - s - s - s - s - s - s - |s -
28 |GRANGER ENERGY COST s _ 754,629 522,708 943,191 | 066771 | 900841 1,015,497 1,041,107 1,067,135 1,003,813 | 1,124,230 1,148,187 1,177,817 1,207,365 1240940 ] 1288488
29 IGRANGER INTERCONN COST $ $ 10,569 | $ - |s - s - Is - |s - s e - is - Is - s - s - s E R -
30 GRANGER TOTAL COST $ $ 765,198 | § 922,708 | 8 043,191 | 3 968,771 | 3 990,941 |$ 1018497 |5 104110715  §,067135]$  1.093813|$ 1124230 |§ 1,149,187 |§ 1177917 |$  1207365(S5 12409405 1,268,488
31
32 |GRANGER TOTAL COST $/MWH $ 94.68 | $ 95713 93.10 | 8 10055 | § 103.07 | $ 10564 | $ 108.28 | § 11099 | § 11377 | § 11661 | § 11952 [ § 12251 | § 125.58 | § 12872 | § 131.93

Page 1

GRANGER

122




A B C J K L M N O P Q R S T U v W X

1 [TRAVERSE CITY _ Bl T
2 OTHER LANDEILL - ALL SITES ]

3
2 | 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

5

6 . . —
7_|NETGENERATION MAH | 2,402 3,085 3077 8071|308 3,077 3077 3.077 3,085 3.077 3,077 3,017 3,085 3,077
8 |cAPAciTY MW "0.3%0 0650 0650 0850 0.650 0.650 0.650 0.850 0.650 0.650 0.850 0.650 0.650 0.650
g

10 JRENEWABLE ENERGY CREDITS )
11} BASE GENERATION RECS 2,402 3,085 3,077 3,077 3,077 3,085 3,077 | 3,077 3,077 13,085 3,077 3,077 3,077 3,085 3,077
12 | ON-PEAK & MICH INCENT RECS RECS 228 293 292 202 202 293 202 292 202 293 292 202 w2 293 202
i3

14| ToTAL RECS " 2,631 3378 3s9 | mase| 339 3,378 3,369 3,369 3,369 3.378 3,369 3,369 3,369 | 3378 3,369
15

17 |OTHER LANDFILL UNIT COST $kwh Ts 78.00 | § 70958 8195 § 8400 |3 8610 § 88.25 | § 2046 | $ 9272 [ § 9504 | § 97.41 | § 2085|s 10234 |§ 104.90 | § 107.52 | § 110.21
18| oam S KWh $ - s - s - s - Is - Is - |s - Is - s - |s - s - 1s - Is - s - |s -
[19] aomn $/ K¥Wh 5 055§ 0.56 |5 0.57 | § 059 3 060 |5 0625 0633 065 |8 0.67 S 0885 070 |5 072|s 013§ 075 s 077
20 |WDS CHARGES ¥ kh 13 - |3 N 2 15 S - E - 1% - 1% - % - |83 - |8 - |® B - 0% - |% -
21 |INCREMENTAL UNIT COST $/REC s 78.55 | § 051 |§ 523 8459 |3 86.70 | § 88.87 | § 9109 [ s 237§ 05705 98.09 1§ 10055 [$ 10308 |3 105.64 | $ 108.28 | $ 110.98
E TOTAL INCREMENTAL COST $ $ 185.694.31 | $ 248,381.30 | § 253,895.23 | $ 2680,242.61 | § 266,748.68 | $§ 274,166.48 | § 280,252.83 | § 287,25015 | § 29444063 | § 302828501 % 309,346.59 $ 31708035 | § 325,007.36 | § 334,04524 1 § 341,460.86
23| WITHPILT $ 104 [s 19624209 [ $ 25631656 | 26405104 |[$ 27065232 |§ 27741863 |§ 28513314 |$ 20146204 |§ 20874952 | § 306216.25 |S 31473364 |5  021,72055 | &  329,76357 | §  3IB007.66 | S  347.407.05 |  355,119.29
24 . , I
| 25 |INTERCONNECTION COSTS $ = s - s - |3 - |s - |3 - |s - |s - 18 - .18 - |s - 15 - |8 - |8 UL - |s -
26| WITHPILT 5 104 |5 - s - Is - |s - s - 13 - s - |8 - |s - s - |s - 1s - 1s - s - |s -
28 |OTHER LANDFILL ENERGY COST $ 196,242 258,017 264,051 270,652 271,M9 285,133 291,463 298,750 306,218 sta738 | 321721 329,764 338,008 | 347407 355,119
29 |OTHER LANDFILL INTERCONN GOST 5 5 - Is - s - - s - Is - - s - |8 K L - s - - 15 - s -
30 JOTHER LANDFILL TOTAL COST 5 $ 196,242 | $ 258317 |§ 264051 |S 270852 |§ 277419 |S 285133 2914635 2987508 308218]$ 314734 |$ 821,721 |5 320,764 33008 [$ 347407 |§ 355,119
31
WOTHER LANDFILL TOTAL COST $/ MWH $ 8169 | § 83.73 | $ 85.82 | $ B87.97 | § 80.17 | § 0242 | $ 94.73 | & 97,10 | § 99653 | § 102.02 | $ . .”10;4,57 $ 107.18 | $ 109,86 | § 11261 | § 115.42

Page 1 OTHER LFILL

123




A B G J K L M N O P Q R S T u V W X

i |[TRAVERSE CITY
2 HERITAGE STONEY CORNERS WIND FARM
3
[ 4] 2015 2016 2017 2018 | 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
5
6 .
7_|NETGENERATION 84WH 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 | 27,000
8 |capaciTy W 10.000 10.000 10.000 10.000 10.000 10.000 10000[ 10000 10.000 10.000 10.000 10.000 10.000 10.000 10.000
9
10 |RENEWABLE ENERGY GREDITS . N
11| BASE GENERATION RECS 27,000 27,000 21,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 | 27,000 27,800 27,000 27,000
12 | ON-PEAK & MICH INGENT RECS REGS - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
14| ToTAL RECS 27000 | 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 | 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 | 27,000 27,00 27,000
{3 I I I O O I B R A R R e I o
16 N o ,
| 17 |sTONEY CORNERS UNIT COST $/MWh () s 11363 | 3 11590 | § 11822 [ % 120.53 | § 12209 | 3 12545 | 5 127.95 | § 12052 | '3 133.43 | § 135.80 | $ 138.61 | s 141.28 | § 14411 [ 3 14699 | $ t49.93
18] o&M S/ MWh $ - 1% -8 - 13 - 1s i3 - |3 - 13 - |8 -8 - |3 - |3 - % - |8 - 13 -
19| AoMIN S/ MWh $ - i3 - |s - Is - |8 - 13 E - |s - |s - |8 - |s - ls - |8 - Is K -
20 [WDS GHARGES S/ MWh s - Is - |s - Is - |s - Is - |3 -8 - s - |s - |s - |s - |8 - s - I8 -
21 |INGREMENTAL UNIT GOST $/REC s 11363 | § 11590 | $ 11822 | § 12058 | § 122.09 | $ 12545 | $ 127.06 | $ 130.52 | § 133.13 | § 135.80 | $ 138.51 | $ 141.28 | § 12611 |8 14599 | 3 149.93
22 [TOTAL INGREMENTAL COST $ S 3,067.956.00 | § 3,129315.12 |$ 3,191,90142 | § 8,256,730.45 | § 332085424 | $ 3,387271.32 | § 345501675 | § 3,524,117.00 | § 3,594,500.43 | § 366649142 | S 3,739,82124 | § 3814,617.67 | § 3.890,91002 | § 3965,72822 | § 4,048,102.79
23| witHPur $ 104 |$ 319067424 |§ 3,264487.72 | § 3,319,67748 | S 3,385069.00 | § 345360841 |3 362276218 | $ 3,593,21742 |§ 366508177 | § 373638341 | $ 3,813,151.07 | $ 388941400 | § 3967,202.08 | $ 404654642 | § 412747735 |5  4,210,02690
24
25 |INTERCONNECTION COSTS 5 L - s - i3 - | - 1s - |8 - |s - |s - 13 - s - |s - 18 - s - Is - Is -
26 | WITHPILT $ 1.04 $ - 15 - 13 - s - 1 - |8 - |3 - 1% - 1% - |3 - 1% -3 - |8 - |3 - 1% -
| 28 |STONEY CORNERS ENERGY COST 5 3,190,674 3,254,488 3,319,577 3,386,969 3,453,688 3,522,762 3.503.217 3,665,082 3,738,383 3,813,151 3,869,414 3,967,202 4,046,546 4127477 4,210,027
20 |STONEY CORNERS INTERCONN COST $ $ - s - s - s - s K - Is - [s - s - s - s - s - s - s - 1S -
30 [STONEY CORNERS TOTAL GOST 5 $ 3190674 |$ 3254488 |5 3319577 |$ 3385960 |§ 3453088 |§ 3522762 | § 3503217 |$ 3665082 |S 5,738,383 |$  3813,151 |§ 3869474 |S  0.967,202 | 4046546 | S 41274775 4210027
A
32 |STONEY CORNERS TOTAL COST § / MWH $ 118.17 | $ 120.54 | § 12295 | 12541 | § 127.01 8 13047 | § 133.08 | § 135.74 | § 138.48 | $ 141.23 | 5 144.05 | § 146.93 | 3 14987 | § 15287 | § 156.93
13 S S S R DU
34 |rooTNOTES:
35 |(a) PPA has a fixed cost per MWh

Page 1 STONEY CORNERS

124




AVHEL

| ebed %

~—
000'L2 0522 0S2'T 0sZ'z 0522 0522 052’z 052’2 052'T 06T’ 0sE'e 052 08z’ siouio] Aeuois
(oco'sh) (osz'V) (osz'L) (0sz't) (052"t} (osz'L) {05z'1) (0sz'tL) (0sz'L) {ose't) (0s2't) (0s2't) (osz'V) (seles)y/seseyoind
8lE'e 98z P¥i4 98z 112 982 982 e 98z Lz 982 892 98z YEd 2ojUA
85F'e 802 Loz 802 10z 802 302 10z 802 Loz 802 S6L 802 SlIH PJEYRIO
8le'e 982 Lz 98z L1 982 98z Lz 98z LT 982 892 98z oue|g puesg
62Z'L 0L Lot voL Lok roL Y0l Lok 70l Lok voL 16 ¥0L it Uy Jue.g
252'e 161 sl 6L 58l L6k L6L S8l 16l sel -8 841 6L £ Uy Juelg
ey = s¢ 9e se 9€ 9E se 9 Se i €€ g 1SOM UNY Juelg
9zZL'L 56 z6 g6 z6 56 S6 6 56 z6 56 68 56 L# uny jue.g
ﬁ $,934 panbay

8LL $03Y oueseg
leyoL S1-9eQ SL-AON §L-100 GlL-deg §lL-bny gi-int Sl-unp SlL-ARpy Gl-idy Sh-ew Sl-qod Gl-uer

989'SZ 560'Z 120'2 S50'C 1202 S50 5502 1202 S50'Z 9E8'L #98'L 8L'L #98'L abrjuy JuoLny
000'/Z 052'C 052’z 0SZ2'T 0sz'T 0sZ'T 0sZT 0s2'T 0S2'T 0522 0522 052’2 05z'T sleuo) Aeuoig
{o00'sL) (ose't) (osz'tL) (osz'L) {osz'L) (osz't) (osz'L) (os2't) (0s2'1) (0sZ'1) (os2'L} (0s2'1) (0sz'l) {sejeg)/seseyoing
1£9'T 98z Lz 982 Lz 982 98z L2 982 26 $6 98 66 Med ad1uan
85’z 802 10z 802 L0z 80T 802 Loz 802 L0z 802 sl 802 SlliH PseYRI0
108'T 8eT 1£2 8€Z LEZ 88T 8€Z Ko 8T LEZ 8ez %4 =74 ouE|g pUBJD
L - L - = - - - - - o - - it uny uesg
W' L6 G581 6L S8l 161 [ a8l 161 sgl 161 zik 138 £ Uy Jueig
44 9 58 9 SE 9€ 9 =1 9% se =15 ze 9 1S9 UNy elg
€ZL'} S6 6 6 Z6 S6 6 z6 56 26 S6 98 g6 L# uny jue.g
L6228 5,03y peusnbay
$J3Y eujjeseg
IeoL S1-00Q SlL-AON §L-100 Gl-dog gL-Bny Si-inf si-unr SL-Aely Gl-idy SL-1En Sl-qe4 SL-uep

6202 SSSTT 620 " 6202 LB6TE 620T £68°0F 6202 869'785  620T

8202 S56'TT 8202 = 8702 L6C'TE 8202 S€6'0€ 8702 108155 8202

L70Z LIEDT L202 S L2702 16T £20Z L6B'0E LT02 998078 LT0T

9702 LTIL'ST 9207 g 9202 L6ECE 9202 L68°0E 9202 696687  920T

5Z0T LITLT 520T = ST0T L6T°TE ST0Z L6BOE  STOT TL0'BSY  STOT

#2702 L15'8T 202 = 202 LBTTE %202 SEGDE 202 SLT'STY  tT0T

€202 6L8'6T €207 B €207 LBT'TE £20T L68°0E €207 OvT'L6E €70

720z 6L2°T2 2207 = zeoz L6T'TE 20T L68'0E zeoz EVE'99E  TTOT

1z02 6L9°TT 1202 = T2z L6TTE 1202 L6B'0E 20T 9rY'SEE  TTOZ

0z0Z 607 020T & 0207 LBT'CE 0Z0Z SE6°5Z 020z 6YSYOE  0Z0Z

6102 Trr'0E 474 = 6107 LBT'TE 6102 L68'ST 610Z v19'8LT 6102

8102 T#8'9E 8T0Z = 8102 LBT'TE 8102 666'5Z 8102 L1L'75¢  810T

L1027 GET'EY L10T = L102 L6T'TE £10Z 666'ST LT02 8TL'9TC  LT0Z

910z LEY'GY 9T0T & 9102 L6ETE 9102 £47'9Z 9102 6TL'00T  910T

yish ol METOT T6v'SS  STOT Z0T'Y 5102 L6TTE  ST0Z 989'6T  STOC SLY'PLT  STOZ

pJos Jo paJjdx3 (Aouapyaq) {Aduapyaq) paJnbay UCRIPPY AlERA RNIPILD |e10L
sn|ding pu3-aeas snjdins Jusiny
sr'alL eci’ll | 986'9 |%eL s Wawapg 941 |
10z £102 ZL0Z

Uy dauel|dwo) Joj pasn

ALID ISHIAVHL




Z obed

0¢0¢

|Ej0L gl-2eQ Sl-ACN §L120 Gl-deg Si-Bny Sl-inr sl-unp Gl-Aepy Sl-idy Sl-ew Si-qad gl-uer

168'sZ 08L'Z Trl'e 08L'2 LT 08L'e 08L'Z T 08L'2 LT 08L'Z 990'C 08L'C aBejulA JuoLnD
000/ 0sZ'Z 0sz'e 0s2'z 02T 0see 0SZ'z 0sz2 0522 05T 082’ 05T’ 0se'e sioui0) Aeucis
{oo0'st) (osz'L) {osz't) (0sz'L) (osz'L) (csz's) (0sz't) (osz'1) (osz'L) (ose'L) {0sz'1) (osz't) (os2') (se|eg)/seseyoind
69E'E 98z Lz 98z Lt 98z 982 Lz 98z Lz 982 852 982 Sed ealusp
9z L6l 58l 161 cgL L6} 16} S8l 161 (=18 6L zLil 161 s|IIH PJey2I0
69E'E 982 Lz 98z L2 [=1:74 982 Lz 98z Lz 98z 852 982 Juelg puei
£ZL'L g6 z6 $6 z6 S6 $6 26 S6 z6 56 o8 56 i uny Jueig
9pe'e 181 58l L6L ssl 161 161 g8l 6L S8l L6l zLl [¥:]8 4 Uny Jueig
\zy 9 D> 9€ s 9 o€ o1 g€ = 9 ze =5 SO Uny jusig
EZL'L 56 43 6 z6 56 $6 z6 S6 z6 56 o8 §6 L# uny Jueig
26228 $,055 paunboy

$O3Y au|jeseq

lejoL gl-09Q GL-AON SL-R0 Gl-dog gl-tny gi-nr Sh-unr SL-ABp Gl-idy R §L-god gl-uer
666'ST 68L'z 151’2 68L'2 15L'Z 6612 68L'C 1512 68L'Z LGL'E 681'C 70T 68T obejuip Eat-zo
000'.Z sz 0S2'Z 0szT 0s2'T 0sZT 0sTT 052 0sZ'C 05T 0S2'Z 052'2 05T SI0W0Y AOUOIS
(o00's1) {ose't) (0sz't) (0sz'L) {osz'L) (0sz'L) (0sz'L) (osz'tL) (osz'L) {osz')) (osz'L) (0s2'1) (0sz't) {sejes)/soseyoind
69E'E 98z e 98z Le 982 98z 11 98z Lz 98z 852 98z Wied @ajuen
9T 161 s8l 161 sgl 161 161 sgl 16l 58l 161 TLL 161 S|IIH P/EYI0
B9E'E 98z YViA 982 iz 98z 98z L2 982 Lz 98z 8¢ 98z SUE|g PUBJD
9zT'L v0l L0} vOL L0t voL yOL Lok vOoL 1oL ¥0l v ¥0L it UNy Juelg
o9re'e 6L 58l 16l (=113 161 18l S8l 6L g8l L6 ziL 161 £ UMy uesg
a4 se g€ 9 SE =5 o =15 9t se 9e ze 9 19/ UNY Jueug
A3 56 26 56 z6 S6 56 z6 56 Z6 S6 98 g6 L# uny Juoug
26228 $,034 pasnbay

[SET §l-oeQ SL-ASN S0 §l-deg GL-bny Sl-ine gi-unp Sl-Aey Gl-Jay Sl-EA Sl-qed Sl-uer
666'SC 68LT L5L'T 68L'C 15L'Z 68L'Z %A L5L'Z 681'2 15L'Z 681'C v.0'Z 68L'T aBRIuIA JuonD
000'/2 02T 052’2 0sZ'T 0sz'z 05T 052'T 052 0sz'T 0se'e 052’ 05z’ 0se's sleuiod Aeuocig
(000's L) (052'1) {osz'L) (osz'tL) (052'L) {ose't) (os2'1) (052'L) (osz'L) (ose'L) {0sz'L) (osz'tL) (os2't) (so|eg)/seseyoing
69E'E 98z Lz 98z Lz 98z 982 Lz 98z e 98z g5z 982 Hed ooluap
WwZ'T 161 S8l 161 sgl 6L 161 S8l 161 =18 1)) zL 16k S|IIH pleyoIQ
69E'E 98z Y¥ra 98z Lz 98z 98z Lz 982 L2 982 852 982 JUE|g PUBID
9zz'L #0L L0t ¥0l Lol %01 ¥0L Lol #0L 1oL %04 6 vOL i UNY Juelg
WZ'T 161 sel 164 sgl 161 16) 58l 161 ssl 161 zLl [¥:]8 £ Uny Jueig
k44 9€ se 9€ 5 g 9t se o€ se =1 ze =5 1SOAA UNY Jus.g
£TL'L 56 z6 S8 6 S6 g6 6 S6 6 56 o8 56 L# uny Juoig
8LL $03Y eujeseg

2102
IejoL §l-99Q SL-AON §1-00 gl-dog SL-bny Si-ine gl-unr SL-ABIN Gl-ady Sl-le Sl-ged gl-uer

£12'9Z 90g'e 91T 0z’ 2912 S0z’ 902'T 91z 02T 91T 90Z'T 62L'C 90e'e obryuin Jusuny

126



AvYL

¢ obed
12y 9 SE 9 S€ 9 9t se o9 SE =5 e SE 1SOM UNY Jueig
£ZL'1 S6 6 6 z6 56 56 z6 g6 z6 56 98 S6 Lt uny Jueig

| 6z2e | $,034 poAnLey

[ejoL Si-2eQ S|-ACN S1-100 Gj-deg Si-Eny gl-inr Gl-unp Sl-Aep G l-ady Sl-ew Si-qed §l-uer

168'0¢ 165'C 655'C 165'C 6552 165'C 165'C 655 165'2 655' LBS'T £87'C 1652 aBRIuLA JuOLIND
000'22 02T 05T’ 052'2 02T 0sz' 052’z 0S2'T 0522 0s2'T 052’ 0sZ'T 0se'e seui0) Asuoig
(000'0k) (ees) (ees) (eg8) (eea) (eee) (ege) (ee8) (egs) (eg) {ee8) (eee) (ees) (se|eg)/seseuaing
69E'E 982 LLZ 98z L2 98z 982 LT 982 Lz 98z 852 98z sHed eojuep
WwZT 161 S8l 161 sgl 6L -8 g8l 161 sgl 161 zil L6l S|liH PJeY2I0
69E'E 982 Lz 982 Lz 98z 982 Lz 98z Lz 98z 852 982 Suelg puei
£zL'L 56 6 S6 6 56 G6 6 S6 z6 6 98 56 3 Uny Jue.g
are'e 161 sgl LBL =18 161 161 S8l 6L S8l 16l zll 16l £ uny Jue.g
a4 9t SE g S 9€ o€ = 9 ge 9 43 9€ 1S9MA UNY Jualg
£ZL'L 56 6 S6 6 G6 g6 z6 S6 6 g6 98 56 L uny jueig

[EEN 5l-08Q SL-AON SL-R0 Gl-dog §L-bny cl-nr Sl-unr SL-AB Gl-1dy Gl-te §l-ged gl-uer
168'0¢ 66T 6S5'Z 165 655'C 65T 165'C 655'C 265'C 655'C LB5'T £BY'T 165'T dBeuIA JuaLInD
00042 0se'T 0sZ'z 0sz'Z 052'T 052’z 052 0522 0522 05T 0S22T 0522 05T'T 516U0D) AoUOIS
(000'oL) (eee) (gee) (eg8) (ees) (ees) (ce8) (ees) (ees) {ee) (ees) (e£8) {ees) (sejes)ysoseyoind
69E'E 98z Lz 982 L 982 98z LT 982 Lz 982 852 98z Hed aouen
o' 161 g8l L6l 581 118 6L sgl 6L sgl 16 TLL 6L SIlH PJEYDIO
69E'E 98z Lz 98z Lz 98¢ 98z 112 982 Y¥r4 98z 852 98z Jue|g PUBJD
rAN S6 6 56 z6 $6 6 26 56 26 G6 98 56 bt Uny jueug
9z’ LBL 58l [ S8l 118 161 sgl 6L S8l 161 TLL L6l £4 UNY Jueug

=) S€ 9e SE oe oe g€ 9e SE o2 e SE 18O UNY JUelg
S6 6 c6 26 S6 G6 6 66 26 96 98 S6 L# Uny juelg
$03x palnbey

[SET §1-09Q Si-AoN 5110 cl-dog Gl-Bny SL-inf gl-unp sL-Ae Gl-idy Sh-EIN S1-ged §lL-uep
S£6'sC 08l zrl'T 08L'Z L'z 08L'Z 08L'Z Trl'e 081'Z LT 08L'e ¥0L'Z 08L'Z 9BERIUIA JUDLND
000'/2 05T 05T’ A 0SZ'T 0sZ'z 052Z 05T 052 05T osz'e 052'T 052 siaui0] Aeuoig
{ooo'st) {0sz't) (0s2'L) (ose'L) (0sz't) (osz't) (ose'L) (0sZ't) (osz'L) (052'L) (ose't) (os2't) (0sz'L) {seleg)/seseyoing
8/8'c 98z HE 98z Lz 98z 982 Lz 98¢ Lz 98z 89T 98z Med 0ouap,
z82'T L6} sal 161 sgl 161 6L S8l 161 sgl 161 BLL 161 SiliH pieyoIQ
8.8 98z LT 982 LT 98z 982 ue 98z Lz o8z 897 98z JUE|g PUBID
gzL'L 56 z6 $6 z6 g6 56 z6 S6 26 6 68 56 it UMy uR1g
z8T'T 161 581 161 sgl 16} 16l S8l 161 sgl 161 8lL 161 £ Uy uaig
Ty SE -1 9 se =3 9% SE o€ =1 o £e 9 159/ UNY weug
azl'L 56 z6 S6 z6 56 56 z6 56 z6 56 68 6 L# uny Jueug

[ 6228 | $.03¥ PoUNbEY

SO eulEsEl

127



AvHL

 ebed
B9E'E 982 LT 98¢ 212 982 982 LLE 982 LT 982 852 98% }ed adluen
ove'e 161 S8l L6L S8t L6L 16l g8l 161 S8k 151 il 16k SllIH RJEYUO
69g'e 982 LLZ 9ge LT 982 98T Lz 98T LT 982 85¢ 98¢ ouelg puBiD
EZL'L S6 6 S6 <6 56 g6 6 S6 6 56 98 S6 At Uny jueig
o9vZ'T L6l S8l L6t S8l (111 6L sgl L6L S84 L&L [74% 161 €# uny jueug
1zy 9€ ce se S€ 9e 9t Se 9B g€ 9e ZE 9€ 1SeAA uny Juaug
€2L'L S6 6 S6 Z6 s6 S6 6 56 6 S6 98 56 L uny Jueig

| 6228 | 039 paINboY

oL Sl-2eQ Sl-AON SLRO Gl-des Si-bny SL-inr gi-unr Si-Aep Gl-ady Sl-en Si-qe4 Gl-uer

1680 165'T 6552 165'Z 655'C 165'T 165T 655'C 165'T 655'Z 165'C E8Y'T 165¢C abejulp Juound
000'L2 0sz'z 0522 052'T 05z 05z’ 0522 052'T 0sT'T 0s2T 05z’ 052'T 0522T siouio] Aouols
{oo0'oL) {eeg) (ees) (eeq) (ces) (ees) (eea) (ees) (ee8) (ees) {ees) (eg8) (ees) (soleg)/seseyning
69E'E 98z LT 98z Lz 98z 982 Lz 98z Lz o8z 852z 982 Med eoluap
oz'Z L6l S8l 161 =18 161 161 S8l 161 sgl 161 zLL L6L SIIH PIBYRIO
69E'E 98z Lig 98z Lz 98z 98¢ Lz 98z Lz o8z 852 982 Jue|g PUBID
gTL'L 3 z6 S6 z6 56 $6 z6 6 z6 56 o8 56 i UNY Juesg
orz'z 161 S8l 161 =18 161 161 sgl 161 sgl 16} zLL -1 £ Uny waug
Ley 9 =13 9 [ S 98 Sg g 5 9 ze 98 1SN Uy Jue.g
£ZL'L 56 z6 6 z6 56 S6 z6 <6 6 56 98 56 L uny Juesg
[ zozze | 505 PoUnoy

SOy eulleseg

lelel Sl-0eQ SL-AON 51-100 gl-deg §l-bny Si-nr gl-unr G |-Ael Gl~idy SL-leW FIRCEE] Sl-uer e
5€6'08 L65'C 655'Z L6S'T 656'T 165 165'C BSG'T 65T 655'Z 265'C 125 65T oBejuIA JuoLIND
00042 0sZ'2 0s2'e 0S2'Z 05Z'T 0s2e 0sz'z 0ST'Z 0sZ'Z 052'T 0522 0SZ'T 0se'e sieuie] Asuois
(ooo'os) (egs) (ees) (e€8) (ega) (eeg) {ees) (ge8) (eg8) (ese) (e£8) {ee8) (ees) (so[es)seseyaing
8LE'E 982 Lz 982 11z 98z 58z Lz 98z L 98¢ 89z 982 Hed ealuon
zez'e 161 S8l 6L s8l 6L 6L 58l 161 g8l 16k 8.1 164 S|IH pLey2I0
8LE'E 98z V4 98T L1z 982 98z ¥4 98z Ll 982 89z =74 due|g pueld
9zL'L S6 z6 S6 z6 s6 56 6 S6 z6 S6 68 S6 it Uny Jueig
2522 161 g8l 161 S8l 1] 6L 58l L6l =18 118 8LL 161 £ Uny Juesg
zzy = g€ 9 [=1> kS 9 se g€ Se o€ £e g€ IS0 UNY Jueug
9zL'L S6 6 -3 z6 56 g6 6 g6 26 S6 68 S6 b UNY Jueug

$O3Y ouljeseg
¥20¢
IEjoL §1-00Q Gl-AON S0 Gi-deg SL-bny gl-inr gl-unp Sl-ABI Sl-sdy Sl-BN Sl-ge4 GL-uef
168°0¢ LBS'T 655'2 165'¢ 655'C 165'T 265'C 655'C 166'C 655'C 16S'T £8P'C 165'T 9BEJUIA JUOLIND
000'Z2 0sZT 0522 0s2'T 0sz'Z sz’ 052'C 05T 052'Z 0527 sz 0SZ'e 0s2'T 5JBUI0D ABUOIS
{ooo'oL) {ees) (eg8) (e£@) (ees) (ges) (e€8) {ees) (eeg) (e£8) (eee) (ees) (ees) (se|eg)/seseyoing
6oL'e 98z L 98¢ Lz 98z 982 LT 982 L2 98z 85z 98z Nied ea1uop
WwZT'ZT 161 $8L 118 =18 161 6L sgl 6L g8l 164 Tl 161 SllIH piey2IO
69E'E 98% Lz 98z Lz 98z 982 LT 982 2z 98z 852 98z ouE|g PUBID
forA g 56 z6 S6 26 $6 56 z6 56 26 S8 98 56 it uny Juoig

Wz L6L sgl 6L S8l L61L LeL sel 1:13 g8l 2:13 (223 161 £ uny Juaig

128



AVl

G ebeg

168'0¢ 165 655'T 165'T 655'C 165'T 165'T 635'C 165'T 655'2 165'C £8¥'Z 1662 oBruiA Juosuny
000'2L2 0522 0522 0sZ'T sz’ 0sZ'T 052'C 0S2'T 0sz'z 0sz'z 052'C 0522 0s2'T sieuie) Asuois
(oco'ol) (ge8) (eeg) (ee8) (ees) (eea) {ee8) (ees) (e£8) (ees) (e£9) (ees) (eee) (seles)/seseyaind
B9E'E 98z Lz 98z L1 982 98z LT 98z 112 982 852 98e Hed oojuen
W' 16} gl 6L 58l 16l 6L 58l 161 581 161 zLl 161 SIH PJEY2IO
89e'e 98¢ Lz 98z Le 98¢ 98z A 98z 12 982 852 98z JUE|g PUBJD
£ZLL 6 6 6 6 56 S6 z6 6 z6 56 98 56 bt Uy Jueug
o' 161 S8l 16l a8l 161 164 sgl 161 S8l 164 Til 6L £it UNy Jue.g
rd o SE 9e SE oe 9 se 9 S 9 ze o€ ISP UNY Juolg
£ZL'L g6 6 56 z6 S6 S8 z6 56 z6 S6 98 S6 L# uny Jueug
S,03y painbay
$O3Y buljeseg
620¢
[SETN §L-0eQ Sl-ASN SL-RO §l-deg Gl-tny Sl-inr gl-unp SL-ABIN Sl-dy Sl-tep Gl-ged Gl-uer
§26'0E 85T 655 165'T 655C 1BS'T 265'2 6552 165 655' L6ST 125'2 165'C oBejuin JuoLIND
000'.Z 052'Z 052’2 sz 0S2'T 0s2T 052’2 02T 0se'e 0se'e 05T sz’ 0s2'T slowo) Aeuoig
(ooo'0L) (eeq) {ees) (eee) (eeg) (e€8) (ee8) (ees) (eeg) (ee9) (ee8) (ces) (ees) (sejeg)saseypind
BLE'E 982 Lz 98z Lz 98z 98z Lz 98z Lz 98z 892 98z Med ealusp
52T L6l g8l L6L sl 6L 164 =18 164 =18 161 8l 161 S|lIH PJeY2IO
i 98¢ Lz 98z LT 98z 98z Lz 98z Lz 98z 892 98z auelg pues9
9zL'L S6 z6 S6 6 56 86 z6 S6 6 =13 68 56 it uny juesg
62T 16k sgl 161 581 161 161 sl 6L S8l L6l 8/t 161 £# uny jueig
FAd 9t =1 s s€ 98 gt s o€ SE 9 £e 9e 1S9pA UNY jJusug
9zL'L 56 z6 56 Z6 S6 S6 z6 6 z6 56 68 S6 L# uny Jueig
L62'ee S,055 PeUnboY
$O3Y euljeseq
TN §l-0e(Q SL-"ON SL-120 Sl-deg Sl-bny Si-inr gl-unp Sl-dep Sl-ady SL-JEn Gl-qed Sl-uer

168'0¢ 1652 655'C 165 655'C 165'Z 165'C 855'Z 165 655' 165'T £8V'Z 165'T obejulA JuoLng
000'22 05z'T 052 0szT 05T 052 0sz'c 052'T 022 0sz'T 0S2'T 0522 0s2'T s18Uc) AeUDIS
(oco'ol) (gee) (eea) (eeg) (eee) (eea) {eg8) (eeg) (ces) (ees) (eg) (ees) {ees) (seleg)seseyaing
69E'E 98z 142 98z LT 98z 98z LT 982 L1z 982 952 o8z %ied eoluen
orz'z L6} sl 161 g8l 161 161 s8L 161 sgl 161 L L6L SIitH PJeY2I0
69E'E 98z 112 98z LT 982 g8z 14T 98z LLZ 982 95z o8z sue|g pues
£Zi't 56 26 S6 z6 6 56 6 S5 z6 s6 98 S5 i UMY Juesg
WwT'T L6l S8l 16k sgl 161 161 s8l 161 g8l 161 TLh L6 £# Uny Jue.g

o€ 5 9 =5 9 ge SE 9 se 9 ze g 1SOpA UNY Juelg

56 z6 6 z6 56 S6 % 6 z6 56 98 56 L uny Juo.g

$,054 posnbey

lejol Si-0eqg Si-AON §1-120 Gl-deg Si-bny Si-inr Sl-unr SL-Ae Gl-idy Sl-sen Si-ged Gl-uer

168'0¢ 165'T 6S5'Z 655'Z L65'C 165'T 655'C 165'T 655'C L65'C £8r'Z L6S'T abejuip wouny
00042 052’2 052’ 05Tz 05Z'Z 0se'e 0sz'z 05z’ [iEr44 052’2 05z’ 05T 0sZ'Z slewio) Asudls
(ooo'ol) (eea) (ees) (ge8) {ees) (ega) (ges) (ee8) (ee8) (ees) (ee@) (ees) (eeg) (seles)y/seseyaind

129



A B C J K L M N 0] P Q R ) T U Vi w X 4
i |TRAVERSE CITY
2] .
_:_ 1TE Units 2015 2016 2017 2018 20189 202¢ 202% 2022 2023 2024 2025 2028 2027 2628 2028
4 {3ales Fosecast - 3 yT running average MH 322,971 -
& {10% Compliance Fador .10
B {RPS Requirement MWH 32.297
8 |RECS - RPS Required RECS 32297 32257 32,797 32297 32297 32,297 32297 32287 32297 32,297 32397 32,297 32,297 32,297 32227
9 |RECS - PRE-REP (BASELINE) RECS 7i8 778 778 78 778 778 7i8 773 778 778 178 778 778 778 78
{0 [RECS - Incremental Difference RECS 31,519 31,519 31,519 31,519 31,519 31,519 31,519 31,518 31,519 31,518 519 3519 . A.519 31,519 31,519
B it
12 J[FAcTOR 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 100 | 1.00 1.00 B
12 |Required New RECS RECS 31,519 31,619 31,519 31,519 31,519 31,519 31,519 31,519 31,518 31519 31.51% 31,518 31,518 31,519 31,619
= cigh
15 [RPS RENEWABLE ENERGY CREDIT COMPLIANCE o
16 | RECS CARRIED OVER RECS ©4,102 55,491 49,437 36,84 22579 21,279 19,879 18,517 7117 15,717 14,317 12,855
17 | RECS OBTAINED {NEWY) RECS 38656 41243 059 40,897 40,897 40,897 40,935 40,897 40897 40,397 40,935 40,857
18} RECS OBTAINED (BASELINE PLUS DIFFERENTIAL, IF ANY) "RECS . o s - - - . T - - - o - - 1T
19 | REC PURCHASES / (SALES) FROM OTHER SOURCES RECS {15,000) {15,000) {15,000) {15,000y {15,000) {15,000) {10,000y {10.00)) {10,000} {10,000) (10,000) (10,000) (10,000} {10,00G) £10,000)
20| TOTAL RECS SQURCES 87,788 81,734 7543 £9,138 62,738 56,376 54,976 53,576 §2,176 50,814 49,414 48,014 45.614 45252 43 852
29 | REGUIRED RECS (BASELINE PLUS NEV) RECS 32,267 32,207 32207 32,207 32,207 32,207 32,207 32,207 a2zor | 32,287 32,207 32,207 32297 32,207 32,207
23 Rees UseD FOR COMPLIANCE RECS 2,297 32,297 32,297 22,297 32,207 32,297 32,207 32207 32287 | 32,297 32,297 32,297 32507 32.297 32297 —
24 1 EXPIRED RECS RECS - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
25§ RECS CUMULATIVE BALANCE RECS 55,491 43437 43,139 36,841 30441 24,078 22,679 21,279 19876 | LAY 17,117 15,757 14,317 12,955 11,555
26
27 { incremental Comptiance with New REGs % $23% 131% 130% 130% 130% 134 130% 130% 1364 130% 130% 130% 130% i _1‘33'?3 130%
28| Comghanca % with Cumutative REC Balance @ 272% 2534 4% 214% 194% 175% 170% 166% i62% 157% 153% 145% 144% 140% 136%
29
:
10 |Revenus Requiremenis for Hew Renswables B
1| Buid (see project sheels for information) $ 3 - $ - L - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - L3 - $ -8 - - $ - ] -8 -
32| PPA $ 3 51,440 | $ 1,181,024 | § 1,207,243 | § $,237424 [ § 1268359 | § 1,303630 | $ 1332570 [ § 1365884 | § 1400031 | § 1,438,084 | § 1,470,808 5,507,680 | § 4,545,372 [ § 1588347 | §  1.623.607
13 | REC Purchases (Sales) 5 3 (16,500)| $ (16913) $ {17,335)| 8 (7,769 § {18.213) ¢ {18668} $ {12757)| § (12,076) § {13,402} & 13,737 (14,081) (14,433)] § (14,794)| {15,184)[ § {15.543)
4] Tetal 5 $ 944,940 | § 1,164,112 [ 8 1,189,907 | $ 1,219.655 | § 1,250,146 | § 1,284,952 | § 1,319.813 | § 1,352809 | § 1356620 | § 1425228 lasoazar 1,493.248 | § 1,530,579 | & 1,573,183 | §  1.608.064
at
36 |RECS Obtained
37 ] Generstion Based
38 Buid {see project sheets for information) RECs - - - - - - - - - - - - - o
34 FPA RECs 37,484 39,726 29.691 39.691 29,691 39,728 39,691 29.681 39,691 39726 395681 39,691 39,726 39,691
40 Bubtotal RECs 37484 39,726 30.691 39.691 39.69% 39,728 38,691 39.6%1 39,691 39,726 39691 33,6891 39,726 39691
41| Purchasa (Sold) From New RECS RECs {15,000) {15,000) (15.000) {15.000) (15.000) {15.000) (10.000) {10,000y (10,000) (10,060) {10,000) {10,000) (10,000} (10.090)
42 | Incentive (SB 213 Sec 38 (2)) RECS 1.201 1.517 1303 1308 1.205 1.209 1.205 1.205 1,205 1,209 1,205 1,205 1200 1.205
43 | Total RECS 23,656 26,243 25.95% 25,993 25.897 25935 30897 30,887 30,897 30,935 30,897 30,897 30,935 30,897
44
45 |For d Transfer Price per MWH SMTAH s - s E - s - I3 - 13 IE - s - {8 - s BE] s RE R E B -
46
_ll Amount recovered Lliwough PSCR .
48 |Transfer price x volume of energy {see INCR COST sheet) $ $ - |8 - s - s - 18 - i3 - |8 - |8 - % - |8 - |3 - 1% - i3 - 18 - IS -
49
[ 50 |incrementaf Gost of Gomgliance (see INCR COST shesl) $ 3 - |8 - 1% - % - 18 - 18 - |5 - [ - 1% - |8 - |8 . . $ - s - 18 - 1S -
51
52 |additianal in Labave PA 295 requirements 5 s BE - s - |s R E] - s - Is BE B - [s BE < ls BE B E - [s -
53
54 INon Vel flc Surcharge
55 {Meter for customer} Farecast {Humber} .
56 { Residential Ho. 9.480 2.547 §.623 9703 9.799 9.896 9897 10,102 10,210 10,320 10,432 10546 10,661 10,776 10,892
57 _Commercial Ho. 3,125 3.147 3472 3200 3230 3262 3295 3,330 3,385 3,402 3,439 347 3514 3,552 3.590
58 Industrial Mo 42 4z 42 43 43 44 44 44 45 45 46 | 45 47 47 48
591 steeliights Mo, - - - - - - - - - - - . - - -
60 1 Unmetered No. 4 4 4 344 344 34 344 344 H4 344 344 144 34 344 44|
61 Totat MNo. 12.931 13.080 i3.182 13.295 t3.418 13.545 13681 13,820 13.964 14,112 14,261 14412 14,565 14,719 14,874
2 A2
63 iMaximum Surcharge (all rate classes at caps) ) e
64 { Residential $ $ 00 | § 341290 | § 343689 | 8 346.437 | $ 349483 (5 352769 | § 356255 | $ 350900 | § 363.676 | § 367,560 | $ 371531 | § 35,565 | 8 379653 | § 333,779 387,930 | § 392,098
651 Commercial $ |§  1658|§  621735|§ 626107 |$ 631,813 |5 636661 |5 642648 |S 648998 | § $ 602518 |% 669692 (8 676,827 |5 684,178 |8 681622 |§ 693,140 705,701 |5 714204
66 | Industsial s [s 18750 % 93,832 | § o491 |8 95247 |35 eeoed|s | eegmBls  ered4s |s 3 99987 |$ 101054 |8 102,146 |5 103255 |8 104,370 |§ 105,573 106,655 | § 107,500 —
[57] sueeughts s |5 oeols PN E ST RN & TR £ SRR ¢ N S £ R - Is - s - |3 -~ s - -
68 | Unmetered $ 3$ 060 | § 2477 | § 2477 | § 2477 | $ 2477 |5 24771 8 2477 | § 2477 (8 24771 8 247718 2477 | § 2477 | § 2417 | § 2477 2,477 2477
69 [Tt s TS 1059333 ]S 1066764 1075274 |§ 1084705 S 1004887 |5 1105876 |$ 1116964 |S 1128658 |§ 1140883 |5 11529815 0165475 |8 11761315  1.180.869 | 1200763 1216668
70
71 |Ptanned Surcharge b _ i
72| Resdental Ty s s T ~Is - Is E - s R TTlE TUTs B e - Is - s s -
73| Commercial N s - Is ~ [s - Is K - Is - s ~ s s L) s - |s - |8 - Is ST -
74| Industrist 3 $ - $ - $ - $ - s - $ - $ - $ - 3 - $ - |3 - § - $ - $ - $ -
75] Steetights 3 s - s - s - Is - Is - s - Is - s - s A s - s - s - s s .
78 | Unmelered 3 $ - $ - $ - $ - 3 - $ - $ - $ - $ - 3 - ] - 3 - $ - 5 - $ -
77 | votal $ - S - $ - 3 - S - $ - S - $ - $ - $ - $ - 5 - $ - ] ' § -
Page 1

ATTACH C-TPRICE

130




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 30, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

Northwestern
Michigan
College
To: Northwestern Michigan College Board of Trustees
Traverse City Light & Power Board of Pirectors
From: Vicki Cook, Vice President of Finance and Administration, NMC
Tim Arends, Executive Director, TCL&P
Date: June 10, 2015
Subject: Joint Community Solar Project

For several months, staff at both Northwestern Michigan College (NMC) and Traverse City Light & Power
(TCL&P) have been discussing the possibility of constructing a Community Solar Project, comparable to the
one TCL&P and Cherryland Electric Cooperative (CEC) launched in 2013 — Michigan’s first Cominunity
Solar project. The project would be structured similarly to the original project where customers of TCL&P and
CEC would be able to lease a solar panel from the array and receive a credit on their monthly utility bill based
on the array’s generation. The unigue part of this project is that it would utilize NMC student labor to install
the solar panels.

Through initial discussions, the following project details have been drafted:

Location: NMC Automotive Service Technology Building’s south lawn (2510 Aero Park Drive)
Construction date: Spring 2016

Class performing installation: EGY 141 Solar Voltaic

Solar array size: Approximately 100 panels

TCL&P has the project listed in its 2015-16 capital improvements plan and, with TCL&P Board
approval, could front the capital needed to build the project with the expectation that the utility would
be fully reimbursed once the project is completely subscribed. After that time, NMC would assume
ownership and maintenance of the array.

There are many factors that could result in the termination of the project including cost and community
interest. In an effort to coliect additional information and identify possible project roadblocks, staff at NMC
and TCL&P will be doing the following in the coming months:

Finalize the engineering and design of the project.

Release an RFP for the purchase of project equipment (solar panels, inverters, concrete, racking, etc.)
to deterimine actual project cost. The project cost will determine the per panel lease price for customers
and, if that cost is not deemed to be attractive, the project could be tabled. The first Community Solar
Project was able to take advantage of a federal 30% tax credit for a commercial solar installation,
which resulted in a per panel lease price of $470, less a $75 per panel credit offered by the utilities.
Unfortunately this project is unable to take advantage of the tax credit as there is not a for-profit entity
participating. It is our hope that by utilizing student labor the savings will be enough to make the
project economically feasible.

Ifthe project cost results are favorable, the utilities will begin soliciting customers to participate in the
project. It has been suggested that the project be at least 50% subscribed prior to authorizing
installation. If the utilities are not able to garner enough customer and community support, the project
could be tabled.

Enter into an agreement between NMC & TCL&P detailing the ownership transfer, net metering,
and responsibilities of both parties in respect to this project.

The project appears to be a win-win for both NMC and the utilities in that NMC’s students will get hands
on experience installing solar, along with adding another renewable energy demonstration site to the
college’s portfolio, and the utilities are able to offer another opportunity for its customers to support
renewable energy.

131




